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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
“EERE  ZEERE ZEEEF —Z2E\E ZBEAE

UEEETIT HK$ Million 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
BRES Shareholders’ funds 8,649 9,316 9,229 8,173 10,774
BEER Subordinated notes 3,290 3,480 5,148 5,672 4,602
RPRER Deposits from customers 58,354 67,279 79,084 82,361 89,572
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 7713 8,768 8,843 4,655 2,060
FRes Total deposits 66,067 76,047 87,927 87,016 91,632
BEEE Total liabilities (including

(BREEERR) subordinated notes) 80,844 92,701 106,692 104,192 102,838
RPER Advances to customers

(BEEESZER) (including trade bills) 45,572 50,603 61,295 60,999 57,165
EEEE Total assets 89,517 102,037 115,940 112,386 113,629
TR AR A Profit attributable to shareholders 979 1,196 800 189 601
2ERESR Total dividend distribution 565 652 373 168 -
METBT HK$
FREREF Basic earnings per share 1.06 1.28 0.86 0.20 0.60
BRI Dividends per share 0.61 0.70 0.40 0.18 -
HBA IR Percentage %
ERHERLE Loan to deposit ratio

(BREEETH (including certifcates

FHE) of deposit issued) 69.0 66.5 69.7 70.1 62.4

AFRTEMERAT —TTAEHF
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFER/FREE EEHRE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RHRITEERRLQF DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED
EHY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TFE David Shou-Yeh Wong
FE Chairman
A John William Simpson
BIHNTEE Independent non-executive Director
IR David Richard Hinde
BIHNTEE Independent non-executive Director
& Robert Tsai-To Sze
BIHHTEE Independent non-executive Director
REE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung
BIIHNITEF Independent non-executive Director
ek B ) Seng-Lee Chan
BIHNITEF Independent non-executive Director
IR — 2 Kazutake Kobayashi
FHITEF Non-executive Director
=% B Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
EERAIBHRITIAEE, Managing Director and Chief Executive
X Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu)
HITEFE Executive Director
FiRZE Gary Pak-Ling Wang
HITEFE Executive Director
EapicRiid Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
HITEE Executive Director
ElEg) Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau
HITEE Executive Director
HEHEEY AUDIT COMMITTEE
£E Robert Tsai-To Sze
E Chairman
Tk John William Simpson
IR David Richard Hinde
RALKFHNER & NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
& Robert Tsai-To Sze
E Chairman
o John William Simpson
IR David Richard Hinde
REE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung
FrE David Shou-Yeh Wong
=% B Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

REGISTERED OFFICE

36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

Telex: 74063 DSB HX

S.W.I.E.T.: DSBAHKHH

Web Site: http://www.dahsing.com

SECRETARY

Hoi-Lun Soo B.A. (Hons.), ACIS

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

SOLICITORS

Herbert Smith

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
MEVAS Bank Limited

(Please see pages 248 to 252 of this annual report for respective list of

branches.)
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DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE
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Board of Directors

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Aged 69. Appointed as the Chairman of the Company in 2004. Chairman
of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing Bank,
Limited, MEVAS Bank Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah
Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, Macau Insurance Company
Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company Limited, New Asian Shipping
Company, Limited and various other companies. Over 40 years of
experience in banking and finance. Member of the Advisory Committee
of the Securities and Futures Commission, the Hong Kong Association
of Banks, the Chinese Banks Association Limited and the Hong Kong
Shipowners Association. Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers. Father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, an executive Director of
the Company, its key operating banking subsidiaries, and the insurance

subsidiaries under DSFH.

Mr. John W. Simpson

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 69. Independent non-executive Director of the Company, Dah Sing
Bank, Limited and MEVAS Bank Limited. Had been a director of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited from 1987 to June 2004 when its
banking business applied for separate listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. Associate of the Chartered Institute of
Bankers in Scotland. Over 50 years of experience in banking and

finance.

Mr. David R. Hinde

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 71. Independent non-executive Director of the Company, Dah Sing
Bank, Limited and MEVAS Bank Limited. Had been a director of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited from 1987 to June 2004 when its
banking business applied for separate listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. Currently Chairman of Invesco Asia Trust plc.
and Macau Property Opportunities Fund Limited. Over 30 years of

experience in international investment banking.
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DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 69. Appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company in 2004. Also an independent non-executive Director of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing Bank, Limited, Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS Bank Limited and Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited. Currently the Chairman of the Audit
Committees, the Nomination and Remuneration Committees of both
the Company and DSFH, and a non-executive Director to a number of
Hong Kong listed companies. Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Also a former partner of an international

firm of accountants with which he practised for over 20 years.

Mr. Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 59. Appointed as an Independent non-executive Director of the
Company in 2004 and of Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of
the Company, in 2006. Currently Legislative Councillor (Industrial First),
Chairman of the Vocational Training Council. Honorary President of
Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Textile Council of Hong Kong.
He is also a Council member of the Hong Kong Trade Development

Council.

Mr. Seng-Lee Chan

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 63. Appointed as an Independent non-executive Director of the
Company in August 2008 upon his retirement in June 2008 as the Chief
Executive Officer of Heidelberg China Limited. Over 40 years of
experience primarily in the Print Media Industry and with a sound

knowledge of the Asian markets, particularly in China.

Mr. Kazutake Kobayashi
Non-executive Director

Aged 47. Appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company in
December 2009. Currently Deputy General Manager of The Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. (“BTMU”) Hong Kong Branch. Rich
expertise in retail banking and corporate banking, with over 23 years of

experience in banking and finance.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)

Managing Director and Chief Executive

Aged 57. Appointed as the Managing Director of the Company in 2004.
Appointed as Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited in 1993
and promoted as its Managing Director in January 2002. Joined Dah
Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of the Company, in 1977
and has served and managed various departments before appointed
as a director of Dah Sing Bank in 1989 and was promoted as its
Managing Director in 2000. Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
and a director of various major subsidiaries of the Group. Director of
Great Wall Life Assurance Company Limited, and Bank of Chongging
in which the Group has a 20% equity interest. Associate of The Institute
of Bankers (U.K.), Founder Member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers and The International Retail Banking Council of the U.K. Over

30 years of experience in banking.

Mr. Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu)

Executive Director

Aged 60. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, in 1986 and was appointed as an executive Director of Dah
Sing Bank and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited in 1995 and 2004
respectively. Currently the Chief Executive and Director of Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A. incorporated in Macau. Over 30 years of

experience in banking.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Executive Director

Aged 49. Appointed as an executive Director of the Company in 2004.
Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, as the Group Financial Controller in 1995 and was promoted
as a Director of Dah Sing Bank in 1997. Also a Director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited. Currently Group Finance Director
responsible for the overall financial management and control,
operations and IT functions of the Group. Qualified accountant, Fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Over 20 years of experience in financial management mainly related to
banking.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

Executive Director

Aged 40. Appointed as an executive Director of the Company in 2004.
Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, in 2000, appointed as a director in Dah Sing Bank, Limited
in 2005 and as the Vice Chairman in March 2010. Currently also a
director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS Bank, Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited
and Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited. Qualified solicitor in England
and Wales and Hong Kong. Son of David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman
of the Company and Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited.

Mr. Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau

Executive Director

Aged 58. Appointed as an executive Director of the Company in 2007.
Also an executive Director of Dah Sing Bank, Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and MEVAS Bank, key operating subsidiaries of the Company.
Currently Head of Group Risk of the Banking Group, responsible for
the strategic direction, overall business and risk policy, ongoing
management and control of risk of the Banking Group’s portfolio.
Chartered Financial Analyst and Ph.D in Economics. Member of Board
of Trustees of Global Association of Risk Professionals. 20 years of
experience in governmental or quasi-governmental departments in

supervision of financial related corporations.

Senior Management

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited and Dah Sing
Bank

Aged 42. Joined Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited in 1998 and
currently its executive Director. Also a Director of Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited,
Macau Life Insurance Company Limited, Dah Sing Bank and Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited. Head of Treasury and Corporate Finance of Dah
Sing Bank responsible for its treasury and corporate finance activities.
20 years of experience in financial services both in the U.K. and Hong
Kong.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009 n
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Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. John Cheung-Wah Lam
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank and MEVAS Bank

Aged 55. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, and appointed as its executive Director in 2005 and as the
Head of Retail Banking Division responsible for retail banking business.
Also a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS Bank and
Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited. Fellow of The Institute of
Canadian Bankers. 30 years of banking experience in Hong Kong and
North America.

Mr. Kwok-Leung Kwong (Thomas Kwong)
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank

Aged 61. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, and was appointed as its executive Director in 2007, and a
Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited in 2008. Currently Head of
Commercial Banking Division in Dah Sing Bank, responsible for
overseeing and supervising commercial banking business and asset
based and trade financing. Over 30 years of experience in banking and
finance.

Mr. Xiaojiang Yan
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank

Aged 55. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, in 2006. Appointed as an executive director of Dah Sing Bank
in 2007, and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited in 2008, responsible for the
banking development, and branch supervision and management in the
Mainland China. 20 years of banking experience in Hong Kong and
China.

Note: Interests of Directors and Senior Management in shares and underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations, if any, within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at
31 December 2009 are disclosed in the “Interests of Directors and Chief
Executive” of the Report of the Directors as included in this 2009 Annual
Report of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

During 2009, economic conditions broadly improved, with Hong
Kong benefitting from stronger economic growth and lower
unemployment, as well as positive economic conditions in the
Mainland continuing, in part due to the stimulus measures promoted
by the central government. Macau also followed a similar trend.

Globally, following the

ZE W N AR BB T SRA R 23R
TREH - M ERRBIRERERNER
BIRITENIBRGUNRE - KBEERE
E2E REZZTNFTHF  IF
PRETERIEERE - 2REHELEH
MISUCDREBLEAMAE -

unprecedented and
substantial monetary and
fiscal stimulus measures
implemented by many
leading countries in late
2008 in response to the
global financial crisis, and
improved conditions in the
banking industry following
large scale recapitalisation,
there were signs of
economic stabilisation, and
also evidence of a broad-
based recovery in the
second half of 2009. The
global economy and
financial market appear to
have passed the worst point
of the cycle.

BELBERRZHERENRILE  KE2K
R _ZT)\FRENRE  BREEENHE -
ZZN\FZ—EBNATLEEETL  LHBESZ
TA-TAERFEAEZ-BEET - &E
MEARKFIREERS » RN EERR 218
58 ARFRETZHREE RN (BIEH
AEBERIZ —BRRERTEETEEER
ETRE)  KEz - REXATRIERLER
BARRLEDHB _TENF+_A=1+—
BZBEDZABN\RBSZ =8N BAZE
“ERAF+ A=t -BHZAMZTE R
B ZTREOKFE -

The Hang Seng Index closed at above 21,800 points and Dah Sing Financial
Holdings and Dah Sing Banking Group share prices recorded a stronger
performance at the 2009 year end.

E_ZTTNFFE  BEEEFRRBE21,800% KFTERRATBTER
BREXRBFESE L5 -

In line with the stabilising and slightly more favourable economic
conditions, our performance improved substantially over 2008, with
profit attributable to shareholders rising from HK$189 million in 2008
to HK$601 million in the year, an increase of 219%. Our capital
position also strengthened notably, both due to the stronger
operating performance, as well as due to a number of capital raising
initiatives during the year included the conversion of our
shareholders’ loan of HK$1 billion as equity, with Tier 1 capital
adequacy and total capital adequacy of our Group increasing from
6.8% and 13.6% as at 31 December 2008 to 10.2% and 16.8%
respectively as at 31 December 2009.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Whilst net interest income was slightly lower than 2008, fee income
was weak, principally due to reduced activity in the wealth
management business. With the gradual improvement in the
economy, credit costs began to turn around, with impairment
charges dropping substantially for the year. We also did not
experience any exceptional or large losses on securities
investments during the year.

Core lending performance was steady, with a slightly lower loan
book. Our deposit position continued to be very healthy, with the
increase in customer deposits during the year more than
outweighing the reduction in wholesale funding.

We took part in an industry wide settlement scheme with Lehman
minibond investors during the course of the year, and have placed
great emphasis and effort to improve and upgrade our investment
product sales in line with the new guidance from regulators, as well
as market practice and expectations.

Our 20% associate, Bank of Chongqging, achieved a set of very
strong results in the year, contributing HK$196 million to our profit,
representing 62% growth when compared with 2008.

Dah Sing Bank’s wholly owned and locally incorporated subsidiary
bank in China, Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, continued its gradual
expansion, with the opening of new branches in Nanchang and
Zhenjiang, in addition to the existing operations in Shenzhen and
Shanghai. With China’s strong growth and huge development
opportunities, we look forward to the continued growth of this
subsidiary, and our business expansion, in China.

Senior management of the Group recently met with
Mr. Liu Mingkang, Chairman of China Banking
Regulatory Commission.

(left to right) Mr. Derek Wong, Managing Director

and Chief Executive, Mr. David S.Y. Wong, Chairman,
Mr. Liu Mingkang, Mr. Harold Wong, Director.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Board of Directors

During the year, Mr. Kazutake Kobayashi, succeeding Mr. Keisuke
Tahara, was appointed as a non-executive Director to represent the
interest of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. in the Company.

| would like to welcome Mr. Kobayashi joining the Board and
express my gratitude to the resigned Mr. Tahara for his valuable
contribution during his tenure in the Board.

Mr. David S.Y. Wong (right), the Chairman of
Dah Sing Group, presented a souvenir photo to
Mr. Chung-Kai Chow (left) upon his retirement
with effect from 1 June 2009, after his 22 years
of directorship in the Group.
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On 1 June 2009, Mr. Chung-Kai Chow retired as the Vice Chairman
and a non-executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Group, after 22 years of
directorship in the Group. | would like to express my tremendous
gratitude to Mr. Chow on his retirement for his invaluable
contribution to the whole Group.

Future Prospects

2008 and 2009 were two of the most difficult years for the global
financial industry in recent history. Whilst Asia was less badly
affected than Europe or the US, the past two years had also been
very challenging. We are optimistic that the improvement in our
results in 2009 under the healthier economic backdrop, as well as
the steps we have taken to strengthen our capital position, mean
that we are now through the worst of the storm.
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Therefore, our strategy for 2010 will be one of cautious optimism.
We believe that the prospects for the Greater China and Asian region
are still promising, and that over the medium to long term will
present many opportunities. However, in the short term we are still
mindful that the crisis is not fully over, and that we will still need to
operate with caution.

With the turbulent decade ended in 2009 now behind us, we look
forward to the continued growth and prosperity of our Group during
this new decade, and above all, we believe that our Group’s future
prospects are encouraging.

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow directors for their valuable
contribution and extend on behalf of the Board, our appreciation to
all our colleagues for their hard work and dedication over the past
year, and also our appreciation of the support of our customers and
shareholders.

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2010
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T 7 i B Financial Highlights
REEEBEUBERRBEEMINATE - The highlights of the Group’s financial performance for the year are
summarised in the table below:
—EEAF —EENF &
2009 2008 Variance
FEE Net interest margin 1.95% 2.11%
BEATT HK$ Million
MBRRE R B Operating profit before
2 & A impairment losses 609.9 1,459.0 -58%
HETIERENBTEEE RS Operating profit before gains or
NEER 2 EE R losses on certain investments
and fixed assets 182.3 800.5 -77%
1% B P& A8 5 Profit attributable to shareholders 600.8 188.6 219%
BEPEXR Advances to customers 57,165 60,999 -6%
BEPER Customers’ deposits 89,572 82,362 9%
BEIT2IFRE Certificates of deposit issued 2,060 4,655 -56%
FREET Total deposits 91,632 87,017 5%
BETZERE Issued debt securities - 2,804 -100%
BERBD Subordinated notes 4,602 5,672 -19%
B8 FR (BIEFRE) Loan to deposit (including
= certificates of deposit) ratio 62.4% 70.1%
A U A LY 2R Cost to income ratio 73.9% 51.6%

EAREREERLEE_STNFTHFE

Against the backdrop of a gradual stabilization and recovery in the

FERMRERT  SEREXERIFEERTIK
Wt - BEFSREEBRNN —ETNFESF
F RN

A - SEMERIBEE R RIEZ E&EE N A
BBRN_TEN\F - T EHRRPEE
WA R &8 S B INFTEL -

local and global economy especially during the second half of 2009,
our Group reported much improved net profit in 2009, assisted by
non-operating or exceptional gains, and absence of exceptional
impairment losses.

Our Group’s operating profit, however, both before and after
impairment losses, was much lower than 2008. This was caused
mainly by weaker operating income and higher operating expenses.
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KFRTEMERA D

Financial Highlights (Continued)

Net interest income in the year was down by 3.3%, a result of a
mild contraction in our loan book, lower net interest margin due to
very low short-term money market interest rates and lower yields
earned on surplus funds. A much lower level of non-interest income
was recorded in the year, which was caused in part by a substantial
reduction in fee and commission income earned by our wealth
management business, with new business sales largely suspended
during most of 2009 after the collapse of Lehman Brothers in
September 2008, and due to our own caution in distributing
investment products to retail investors while we worked to upgrade
our operations and control processes for this business. Another
main factor adversely affecting our non-interest income was fair
value loss recognized on the mark-to-market improvement in the
valuation of certain of our own issued subordinated securities.

While operating expenses for our core businesses were only slightly
higher than 2008, additional operating expense provisions due
mainly to the settlement of various claims in respect of Lehman
Brothers related investment products were incurred, resulting in an
overall increase of 11% in our Group’s total operating expenses
versus 2008.

With the lower operating income and higher operating expenses,
our pre-impairment operating profit was down by 58% from 2008.
With a notable improvement in loan asset quality recorded in the
second half of 2009, our total loan impairment losses and other
credit provisions decreased by 35% when compared with 2008.
The improvement in loan losses was however insufficient to offset
the unfavourable impacts of the drop in operating income and
increase in operating expenses. A significant decrease in our
operating profit after impairment losses in the year was recorded.

A combination of the fair value gain on our investment properties,
our 20% share of a much stronger net profit reported by Bank of
Chonggqing, and an exceptional gain on the repurchase of certain of
our issued subordinated securities contributed to boost our
pre-tax profit in 2009, resulting in profit attributable to shareholders
of the Group increasing by 219% over 2008.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Financial Highlights (Continued)

As at 31 December 2009, our Group’s total gross loans and
advances amounted to HK$57 billion, down by around 6% relative
to the end of 2008. The major areas of contraction were trade
finance, affected by the fall in global trade volumes, and equipment
and vehicle finance. Equipment finance in particular had been an
area of weak performance due to the export oriented nature of many
of our manufacturing customers, and the portfolio was managed
down as part of a risk reduction exercise to mitigate the high credit
cost in the business experienced in the recent downturn. In
aggregate, the retail lending portfolio including credit card advances
and personal loans remained relatively stable.

Customers’ deposits totalled HK$91.6 billion, representing an
increase of around 5% over the previous year. The growth in
customers’ deposit reflected ample liquidity in the Hong Kong
market during the year. The loan to deposit ratio as at 31 December
2009 was 62.4%, slightly lower than 2008.

Highlight of Business Performance
Personal Banking

Our Personal Banking business, serving the retail banking, VIP
banking and private banking market segments of Hong Kong and
Macau, experienced another extremely challenging year in 2009
following the global financial tsunami and major market shocks in
2008. This business reported lower operating income, higher
operating expenses and an operating loss in the year, despite a
meaningful reduction in loan impairment losses.

The lower operating income was attributed to much lower fee and
commission income earned especially on lower sales of wealth
management products and lower investment trading volumes by
customers. Higher provisions relating to the settlement of claims of
retail investors pursuant to the general repurchase scheme (together
with another 14 banks in Hong Kong) for the Lehman Brothers
minibonds, and a voluntary repurchase scheme for certain Lehman
Brothers principal protected notes distributed by the Group’s
Personal Banking Division were charged in 2009, resulting in an
increase in the total operating expenses of this business.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Highlight of Business Performance (Continued)
Personal Banking (Continued)

With the improvement in the local economy and a relatively stable
level of unemployment particularly in the second half year, there
were signs of stabilization and even improvement in the asset quality
of our unsecured retail lending portfolio toward late 2009, and a
reduction in the loan impairment losses in the year was recorded.

We continued with our cautious business and lending strategy
during the year, although we had moved to adopt a more proactive
approach in growing our retail lending business during the second
half amidst the recovery of the local economy. However, due to the
slower business momentum in the first few months in 2009 and
aggressive competition in the market particularly the keen price
competition in the residential mortgage market, our overall loans to
individual customers contracted by 3% when compared with 2008,
with a mild contraction in most types of retail lending including
mortgages and credit card advances.

The impact of the collapse of Lehman Brothers in September 2008
continued to resonate during 2009, and was particularly noteworthy
in Hong Kong due to the relatively large number of retail investors
having bought different Lehman Brother-related investment
products distributed by a large number of retail banks. We devoted
significant resources to resolve issues and customer complaints
arising from this incident, and made repurchase offers to and
voluntary settlements with retail investors in the year via repurchase
schemes that demonstrated our commitment to the upholding of a
high standard of conduct in operating our business and serving our
customers.

As of the end of 2009, our branch network includes 48 retail
branches in Hong Kong under the name of Dah Sing Bank and
MEVAS Bank, and 15 branches in Macau under Banco Comercial
de Macau, and one subsidiary private bank in Guernsey, Channel
Islands providing offshore private banking services.
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Highlight of Business Performance (Continued)
Commercial Banking

Commercial Banking, which includes trade finance, commercial
lending, syndicated lending, equipment finance and vehicle finance,
reported a higher profit when compared to 2008, despite the
challenging operating environment in the first few months in 2009.

Overall loan balance under Commercial Banking businesses was
down by close to 13% relative to 2008, caused mainly by our more
cautious new business lending to small and medium sized
enterprises, decrease in trade finance business in response to the
drop in trade flows and exports business of our manufacturing and
trade finance customers, and our strategy to reduce lending to
equipment finance customers who were much affected by the
global slowdown and contraction in manufacturing orders since mid
2008. A stronger performance in growing customer deposits was
achieved by our Commercial Banking businesses, with deposits
from our commercial customers up by 7% relative to 2008.

Despite the relatively notable decrease in its loan book, the total
operating income of our Commercial Banking businesses in 2009
was slightly higher than 2008, driven by improved net interest
income, which was boosted mainly by a much lower funding cost
in line with the significant drop in short-term interest rates, and a
wider spread earned on a portion of its loan book with fixed rate
yields.

During the second half, the improvement in the operating
environment, gradual recovery in manufacturing and exports, and
appreciation in local property prices assisted in a marked
stabilization in the asset quality, followed by continuing
improvement in loan impairment charges in the last few months in
2009, which led to much lower loan losses when compared with
2008, and a significant increase in operating profit.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Highlight of Business Performance (Continued)
Treasury

The performance of our Treasury business improved compared with
the previous year, mainly due to the absence of significant
impairment losses on securities. Liquidity was managed cautiously,
with new investments concentrated in low risk and short tenor
money market instruments.

Overall operating income was higher than 2008, driven mainly by
higher net interest income amidst an environment of ample market
liquidity and very low market interest rates, despite a relatively lower
spread earned on new surplus funds investment and interbank
placements. The lower contribution from non-interest income was
mainly caused by negative fair value adjustments on some fair value
hedged investments, and lower trading gain.

The absence of significant or exceptional impairment losses
enabled our Treasury to register a stronger profitability in 2009,
against a loss made in 2008.

The improvement in the global credit market in general during 2009
led to a general easing in credit spread and therefore an
improvement in the revaluation of our Treasury’s credit portfolio.

Banco Comercial de Macau (“BCM”)

BCM achieved a much higher level of profit in 2009 driven mainly
by lower loan and securities impairment losses, which benefited
from a more stable and also improving operating environment and
credit market performance. BCM’s total loan and deposit balances
were broadly similar to 2008.

After a significant slowdown in its economic growth during the
second half of 2008 and the first few months in 2009, Macau’s
economy recorded a strong rebound during the second half year to
bring to an overall net positive, though mild, growth in its GDP in
2009.
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Highlight of Business Performance (Continued)
Dah Sing Bank (China)

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a wholly owned new
subsidiary locally incorporated in China in 2008, completed its first
full year of operation in 2009 with a small net profit. DSB China, in
its early stage of development, focuses mainly on commercial
banking businesses. It is headquartered in Shenzhen (together with
a sub branch), and has branches located in Shanghai, Nanchang
and Zhenjiang. DSB China has started to offer retail Renminbi
banking businesses in China and is currently working to further
expand its branch network.

Opening ceremony of Zhenjiang Branch of Dah Sing Bank Opening of Nanchang Branch of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

(China) Limited on 29 December 2009

on 23 July 2009
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MEVAS Bank

MEVAS Bank (“MEVAS”), the separately branded Hong Kong
banking subsidiary under the Group focusing on the personal
banking sector, recorded a modest level of net profit in 2009.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Highlight of Business Performance (Continued)
Bank of Chongging

Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”) is the leading city commercial bank
in Chongging. Chongging is the largest city in Western China and
one of the 4 leading cities in China reporting directly to Beijing.
BOCAQ is operating with a branch network of around 80 branches.
Against the backdrop of the rapid economic development of China
in general and the greater Chongging region in particular, significant
infrastructure investments, rising domestic consumption, strong
loan demand and high market liquidity, BOCQ achieved a set of
very impressive results in 2009.

BOCQ’s total assets, as of 31 December 2009, driven mainly by
loan and treasury asset growth, reached RMB80.9 billion, up 43%
relative to 2008. Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2009
was RMB876 million, up 34% on 2008.

Our interest in BOCQ was increased to 20% in October 2008. The
higher profit reported by BOCQ and our increased share of its net
profit during 2009 full year led to a significant increase in the
contribution from our investment in BOCQ on equity accounting
basis, which amounted to HK$196 million in the year, a growth of
62% over 2008.

Risk Management and Compliance

In response to the severe financial turmoil in 2008 and the resultant
new challenges and increase in regulatory demands, the Group had
conducted appropriate reviews of its risk management system and
process, and business strategies pursued in the past few years prior
to 2008, and had taken actions to strengthen corporate governance
and risk management effectiveness. Additional resources and focus
were put into the upgrade of the Group’s risk function, including
the effort on further strengthening credit risk management and
enterprise risk management process and IT system.

During the year, we strengthened and expanded our compliance
function, and took action to deal with areas of improvements
brought to light by the financial crisis, and elevated the emphasis of
compliance awareness and best practices in all our key businesses
and operations.
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Capital and Liquidity
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Combined Capital base of
banking subsidiaries
(HK$ million) — at 31 December

— Core capital 7,708 5,175
— Supplementary capital 4,963 5,174
Total capital base after deductions* 12,671 10,349

Capital adequacy ratio

- Core 10.2% 6.8%
— Overall 16.8% 13.6%
Liquidity ratio (average for the year) 57.3% 48.9%

The total combined capital base shown above reflects the consolidated
capital base of Dah Sing Bank calculated on a regulatory consolidation basis
specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (‘HKMA”), Mevas Bank and
D.A.H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) computed on Basel Il basis with
reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules.

There were a number of capital actions during the year. A term loan
of HK$1 billion was extended from Dah Sing Financial Holdings
(“DSFH?), the parent of the Group, to the Company in March 2009,
which was injected as additional equity capital into Dah Sing Bank
(“DSB”). In September, this loan was capitalised, and new shares
of the Company were issued to DSFH in consideration for the
capitalisation of the loan, at a price of HK$8.00 per share, which
had the effect of increasing DSFH’s shareholding in the Company
from 70.86% to 74.13%. In addition, in April 2009, the Company
placed 54 million new shares to third party investors at a price of
HK$5.60 per share, raising net proceeds of HK$300 million, which
was then injected into DSB. The result of these capital raising
exercises, together with profit retention in the year, was to increase
the combined core capital adequacy ratio and total capital
adequacy ratio of the Group’s banking business from 6.8% and
13.6% as at 31st December 2008 (and on a proforma basis, 8.1%
and 15.2% as at 31st December 2008, after considering the capital
injection to Dah Sing Bank announced in early 2009) to 10.2% and
16.8% respectively as at 31st December 2009.
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Capital and Liquidity (Continued)

Our Group operated throughout the year with a very high liquidity
ratio due to a strong pool of liquid assets including cash and
placements with banks, and diversified marketable securities held
for investment and liquidity purposes.

DSB’s long-term credit ratings, at “A3” and “A-” assigned by
Moody’s and Fitch respectively, were affirmed in 2009.

Human Resources

In 2009, we continued our work to improve the service excellence,
teamwork, caring and trust culture throughout the organization.
Personal support and counseling services as well as crisis
management training were provided to staff-in-need through our
employee assistance program. Our staff social club continued to
promote staff and family well-being, and organized different social
and sports activities to help promote staff benefits, affinity,
friendship, health and community services. We are pleased to have
been recognised again by the Hong Kong Council of Social Services
as one of the leading Hong Kong caring employers, a recognition
we achieved each year over the past eight years.

Due to slower business activities, drop in new businesses and
resource rationalization, the Group’s headcount during the year
reduced slightly. The total number of employees of our Group,
including our staff in Macau and China, slightly decreased from
1,891 at the end of 2008 to 1,793 at the end of 2009.
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Corporate governance practices

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance,
and follows all of the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing

Rules”).

This report is issued in accordance with Appendix 23 of the Listing
Rules, and explains how the Company applies the provisions set out in
the Code.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted on 23 March 2009 a revised code for
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
prevailing required standard set in the Model Code in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry, the Directors of the
Company confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year 2009.

The Board of Directors
(1) The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
so as to promote its success and continued growth. The Board is also
responsible for ensuring that the Company has sound systems of risk
management, internal control and regulatory compliance. The Directors,
collectively and individually, have a duty to act in good faith, and to
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Group. The Board sets
the business objectives for the Company, and monitors the execution

of those objectives by the management of the Company.

(2) Board composition and meetings

The Board is made up of the Chairman, Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, five
executive directors including the Chief Executive, one non-executive
director, and five independent non-executive directors. Brief

biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 6 to 10.

Board meetings are held at least four times each year at approximately

quarterly intervals, and additional board meetings are held as necessary.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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The Board of Directors (Continued)
(2) Board composition and meetings (Continued)

The following table sets out the attendance record of each director at
the board meetings held in 2009:

Number of Board meetings in 2009 11

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze 9/11 82%
John William Simpson 8/11 73%
David Richard Hinde 9/11 82%
Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 10/11 91%
Seng-Lee Chan 11/11 100%

Non-Executive Directors

Kazutake Kobayashi 17l 100%
(appointed on 28 December 2009)
Keisuke Tahara 10/10 100%

(resigned on 28 December 2009)

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong 11/11 100%
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 11/11 100%
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 11/11 100%
Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu) 11/11 100%
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong 11/11 100%
Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau 11/11 100%
Average attendance rate 94%

Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board meetings to give all
directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice is given in advance. Directors may submit to the
Company Secretary, in writing, and at least seven days in advance,
matters that they would like to include in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. Minutes of the Board and committees of the Board are kept
by the Company Secretary or the secretary of the relevant committee,
and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice

by any director.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)
(2) Board composition and meetings (Continued)

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. In
circumstances where directors believe that independent advice is
needed, they should approach the Company Secretary or the Chief
Executive in the first instance with their request. No such request will
be unreasonably denied, and the Company Secretary or the Chief
Executive will endeavour to identify and engage an appropriate

professional adviser at the expense of the Company.

All directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment. Every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every

three years.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of running the
Group to the executive management, and has delegated responsibility
for certain matters to a number of committees, which are described
more fully in the following sections. There are a number of matters which
require the deliberation of the full Board, and may not be delegated to
the committees of the Board or the executive management. These

reserved matters include:

° Transactions that a substantial shareholder or a director has a

conflict of interest;

° Material acquisitions or disposals (i.e. an amount that exceeds
10% of the lower of the Company’s net asset value or market

capitalisation at the relevant time);

° Material investments or disposal of investments (except for
normal investment or dealing in securities in the ordinary course

of deploying the surplus funds of the Group);
o Any material change in the nature of the Group’s business;
° Appointment of new directors;
° Approval of relevant policies; and
° Approval of annual budget.

The Company maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal

action against its directors.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company acknowledges that there are two key aspects of its
management - the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of its business, and that there should be a clear division
of these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance of power
and authority, so that no one individual should have unfettered powers
of decision. The roles and objectives of the Chairman, Mr. David Shou-
Yeh Wong, and the Chief Executive, Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong),
are therefore separated and have been approved by the Board. The
Chairman mainly provides leadership for the Board to ensure that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Company to provide business direction and operational leadership
for the benefit of the Group’s businesses, enhance shareholder value

and ensure sound internal control.

Non-executive Directors

The Company has one non-executive director and five independent
non-executive directors. Each of the independent non-executive
directors has provided to the Company confirmation of independence
as required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The term of appointment of non-executive directors is
normally for a term which coincides with their expected dates of

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Non-executive directors, as equal Board members, give the Board and
any committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise
and varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance
and active participation. They attend regular and special Board
meetings, and are encouraged to attend the general or special meeting
of the shareholders of the Company. The non-executive directors make
a positive contribution to the development of the Company’s strategy
and policies through independent, constructive and informed

comments.
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Nomination and Remuneration of Directors
Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the Board sets out the requirement for a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new directors to the Board. The terms of reference also explicitly
prohibit the delegation of decisions regarding the appointment of new
directors to sub-committees of the Board or to the management of the
Company, and require that such appointments are made after

deliberation by the full Board.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Company in
August 2005 with specific written terms of reference setting out its role
and responsibilities. The Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company in August
2006 with a set of updated terms of reference. It is responsible, among
other things, for the review of the nomination of new directors, approval
of the remuneration of directors and senior management. The majority
of the members are independent non-executive directors. The terms of
reference for the Committee are available for inspection at the

Company’s registered office.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held three meetings in
2009. The current members of the Committee and their attendance

records in 2009 are set out below:

Number of meetings held in 2009 3

Robert Tsai-To Sze (as the Chairman) 2/3 67%
David Richard Hinde 2/3 67%
Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 3/3 100%
John William Simpson 3/3 100%
David Shou-Yeh Wong 3/3 100%
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 3/3 100%
Average attendance rate 89%

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009 29
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Nomination and Remuneration of Directors (Continued)
Remuneration of Directors (Continued)
The work of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during 2009

included:

- Determining and approving the remuneration levels for executive

directors and senior management

- Reviewing the nomination of directors to the Board and senior

management of the Company and of the Group
The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair and competitive
packages commensurate with market terms, and is based on business
needs, expertise and quality of the individual, and industry practice.
For determining the level of fees paid to members of the Board of
Directors, market rates and factors such as each director’s workload
and required commitment will be taken into account. The following
factors are considered when determining the remuneration packages
of executive directors:
- Business needs and performance
- The economy and business conditions in general

- Each individual’s contributions to the Group

- Reference to market pay level commensurate with the individual’s

responsibility

- Retention considerations and each individual’s potential

During the process of consideration, no individual director will be

involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
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Auditors’ Independence and Remuneration

The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the independence of
the Company’s external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), for

performing the audit of the Group’s financial statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC only when the
Company can benefit in a cost-effective manner and the independence
and objectivity of PwC as the Company’s external auditors can be

maintained. Otherwise, professional services from other firms are used.

In addition to audit related services, PwC, based on agreed-upon
procedures, provided the Group non-audit services by rendering
regulatory compliance review services, review of tax returns and
computation, tax advisory services, review of the Group’s interim
financial disclosure, and a review of the update on the offering circular
of Dah Sing Bank, Limited’s US$2 Billion Euro Medium Term Note
Programme during the year.

Details of the fees payable to PwC for the year for audit and audit-

related services are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established by the Board of the Company, is
responsible for ensuring the objectivity and credibility of financial
reporting, reviewing the internal control system and compliance with
regulatory requirements, and approving audit plans and reviewing
findings and reports of the internal and external auditors, and that in
presenting results to the shareholders, the directors have exercised the
care, diligence and skills prescribed by laws, and that appropriate

accounting and financial reporting standards are followed.

The Committee makes recommendation to the Board on the selection,
oversight and remuneration of external auditors. The Committee
reviews and monitors the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards.

The Committee reviews and monitors the integrity of the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, including significant financial

reporting judgements used in producing the financial statements.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The Committee reviews the Company’s internal controls and reports its
finding and comments to the Board. Descriptions of the Company’s
internal control system are set out below, whilst for risk management,
these are shown in the Supplementary Financial Information under Risk
Management and described with appropriate financial quantification in
the Financial Risk Management sections as notes to the annual financial

statements.

The terms of reference for the Audit Committee are available for

inspection at the Company’s registered office.

The members of the Committee are Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman),
Mr. John William Simpson and Mr. David Richard Hinde. All the
members of the Committee are independent non-executive directors
with extensive experience in banking, finance and business
management. The Committee’s chairman, Mr. Sze, is a qualified
accountant and was a partner of a predecessor firm of
PricewaterhouseCoopers up to June 1996. None of the other committee
members are employed by or otherwise affiliated with the former or

existing external auditors of the Company.
The Committee members meet at least three times a year with the
Company’s senior management, the head of internal audit and the

external auditors. In 2009, a total of three meetings were convened.

The attendance record of individual directors at the Audit Committee

meetings in 2009 is set out below:

Number of Audit Committee meetings in 2009 3

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze (as the Chairman) 3/3 100%
John William Simpson 3/3 100%
David Richard Hinde 2/3 67%
Average attendance rate 89%

To enable directors to be informed of the discussions and decisions of
the Audit Committee, the minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are
included in the board papers of regular board meetings sent to

directors.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during

2009 in discharging its responsibilities:

a. Review of, and providing advice and recommendations to the
Board for the approval of the 2008 results announcements and
audited financial statements of the Group, and the 2009 Interim

Report;

b. Review of external auditors’ findings and comments, and
management’s reports on major accounting and financial
disclosure matters in respect of 2008 audit and financial

statements ;

C. Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2008 for inclusion

in the Company’s 2008 annual report;

d. Review of a summary of major issues to be reviewed and
discussed at the Board level but with significant accounting and
disclosure relevance;

e. Approval of the reports to the Board providing a summary of the
issues, focuses and discussion reviewed and dealt with by the
Audit Committee in the second half of 2008 and the first half of
2009;

f. Review of connected party transactions and disclosure;

g. Review and approval of the appointment and remuneration of

external auditors;

h. Review of the findings and recommendations of the external
auditors, including the recommendations made pursuant to a
special review on regulatory compliance;

i Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit plan;

j- Review and approval of internal audit plan;

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Audit Committee (Continued)

k. Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and

recommendations;

Review of reports on applicable compliance and regulatory
matters and adoption of the minutes of the meetings of the

Compliance Committee;

m. Review of update from Group Risk on the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (“HKMA”)’s examinations and regulatory concerns,
management’s actions in implementing the HKMA’s

recommendations; and

n. Endorsement of the amendments to the Charter of Audit

Committee for submission to the Board for approval.

Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the responsibility to develop
and maintain a sound internal control system. The internal control
system, operating through a framework of management and operational
controls, and risk management systems, is intended to allow the Board
to monitor the Group’s business performance and financial positions,
to control and adjust risk exposures, to adopt sound business practices,
to obtain reasonable assurance on controls against fraud and errors, to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and to provide
oversight and guidance to management in achieving the Company’s
objectives. However, it should be recognized that the Group’s internal
control procedures can only provide reasonable, not absolute,

assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

The key procedures that the Group has established to maintain an

effective internal control system are as follows:

° A clear management organizational structure is set up with well-

defined lines of authority, accountability and responsibilities.

° Specialized committees are formed to oversee and control
significant risk factors, such as credit risk, liquidity and interest

rate risks, operational risk and compliance risks.
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Internal Controls (Continued)

Regular reporting of the performance of the Company’s
businesses to senior management and management committees
including the Executive Committee. Actual performance results
against budgets are closely monitored. The Board reviews the

Group’s business and financial performance on a quarterly basis.

Written policies and procedures are established to facilitate
proper assessment of customers, services to customers,
segregation of duties, accuracy and completeness of transaction
processing, safeguarding of assets, credit control and risk
monitoring, control of business exposures, compliance control
and monitoring (including anti-money laundering), staff training,
IT development, IT governance and information security, business
continuity planning, financial control (including accounting,
regulatory reporting, financial reporting to comply with regulatory
and financial reporting standards, management accounting and
budget control, reconciliation of accounts), and system of
management oversight including the operations of various

functional committees.

The independent internal audit function monitors compliance with
management policies and procedures, and regulatory
requirements; and will conduct a wide variety of internal control
reviews and audit activities such as compliance audits and
operations and systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency
and effectiveness of the systems of control. The Head of Internal
Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Chief Executive with direct access to the

Executive Committee.

The independent group risk function monitors and reports the
Group’s risk positions and analysis to the Board via the Risk
Management Committee and the Executive Committee, and
operates to sustain a sound asset quality in the portfolio of the
Group’s businesses with due consideration of a proper risk and

return balance.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009



AP 56 5 18

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A5 B ()

s  AEEERAEBITESZARKRE RS
B MYIAEEBIEARE TERE
ZEBERER  ANEBZETRERED
R+ FRRIREERETEENS
ZEARERLER - HERKRSAEER
BT RREREADEIERRF

s AEHEEEZARZESWEARZES
HO#sesEEGRHENL  YAEEE
RBEH|E] - R R INRARGBIE - BUR

NI 2 3257 - ARERE ST PR AR RRE

REEHS - ARBEZERRARMPER
SEEREZNERPZETE BAE
B ESE 2 BB

SE R AR

EEeNBMNERZESREREMEL Z
E - URAB RIS ZEEEL 2 RS - 1t
4 & B 2 AR B I E 2 BRI TTRTAA o

“EENFEZENCEE2RAMEETRT
AETHANERERR 2 FEFNE - AEEAR
ERHCDIKBEERZR E.Z?amﬁf\mimﬁ‘duﬁﬁﬁ
REREHBREME 2 ERARERER
ERERR T EAEITRE

|_H,

ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ —TTAFER

Internal Controls (Continued)

° The Group’s banking business is working on the upgrade of its
risk management framework and capabilities to progress toward
the implementation of the more sophisticated risk management
practices under the Basel Il capital accord, with the banking group
starting on the basis of standardised approach for regulatory
capital reporting and management commencing 2007. This
development will contribute to enhance the overall risk

management and internal control process of the Group.

° The Group’s Compliance Committee at the management level
serves to uphold a high level of awareness and accountability of
compliance requirements and is responsible for overseeing and
guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement of
compliance system, policies and practices to ensure compliance
with all statutory requirements and regulatory guidelines. The
Legal and Compliance Division of the Group performs an
independent on-going monitoring role on the Group’s compliance

with relevant rules and regulations.

Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system, the Board
has considered reviews performed by the Audit Committee and
executive management, and the findings of both internal and external

auditors.

The 2009 reviews included an annual assessment of internal control
system with reference to the provisions of the Code regarding internal
controls. Under the direction of the Audit Committee, the Group’s
Internal Audit in the year conducted an assessment covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and

risk management practices.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2009.
Principal Activities and Segment Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the
“Company”) is banking investment holding. The principal activities of
the subsidiaries are shown in Note 32 to the financial statements. An
analysis of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the reporting period by business and geographical
segments are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 53.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
shown in Note 46 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 47 to the financial statements.
Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,588,000.

Fixed Assets

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group are shown in Note 34 to the

financial statements.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HEY Directors
AERRNREERAREAPIEEES 4 ¢ The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
R David Shou-Yeh Wong
TE Chairman
R *John William Simpson
N *David Richard Hinde
*$£ B *Robert Tsai-To Sze
REE *Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung
PR s *Seng-Lee Chan
PR —fi2 Kazutake Kobayashi
(REZFZFNF+ A=+ NHEZE) (appointed on 28 December 2009)
=HEM Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
BEERAIPRRITIAEE, Managing Director and Chief Executive
HEEX Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu)
FirZE Gary Pak-Ling Wang
EapiRiil Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
2EH Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau
A RR Keisuke Tahara
(R=ZZFZNF+ZA=1T/HEE) (resigned on 28 December 2009)
BUIENITEE * Independent non-executive Directors
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors (Continued)

In accordance with Article 105 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
David Richard Hinde, Robert Tsai-To Sze, Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu)
and Gary Pak-Ling Wang retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Kazutake Kobayashi will retire at the forthcoming annual general

meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards their continued
independence while serving as members of the Board of Directors, and
the Company still considers all the independent non-executive Directors

to be independent.

Interests of Directors and Chief Executive

At 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they have
taken on or are deemed to have acquired under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
and the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction

adopted by the Company were as follows:

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

B ARAR A W) SR B A T B Z B4 HE 2 a) Interests in shares of the Company and associated
corporation

FEERS

HEBCDET

RAFD L

Percentage

of share

BHEE interest

Number of shares in the

BARER EEREEY HrEs AR relevant

Personal Corporate Other Total issued

EE Director Interests Interests Interests Interests  share capital
BEALNTERER Number of ordinary shares of
1B L B R R A HK$1 each in the Company

By David Shou-Yeh Wong - 824,169,170® - 824,169,170 74.13
BEAHSREBERAT Number of ordinary shares of

SREE22ETHEBRE G HK$2 each in Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited

IF% David Shou-Yeh Wong - 5,590,495 94,909,4119 100,499,906 38.61

iy i3 John William Simpson 10,0001 - - 10,000 0.00

BEENC Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu) 38,800 - - 38,800 0.01

3 Notes:
1. BEE2EBERDEREREE=S 2K 1. The corporate interest is in respect of shares held by a company in

A LSRR RAFAZBAD

2. RZZEZNF+ZA=+—RHZRHA - 2.
AETEEEBRBEATSRERBR AR
(ITR# £ @) 100,499,906 BN E
B (hAEBEEITIRA38.61% -
MiZE 5 K B E 5D EXVE R E EWARIE
BEERRBRG 2 EERERS -

3. WERHSBBRONTESETERERE 3.
MEEMAILZ 2REEZFEAESER(E
EERARMEERA -

4. WERHEBBRMOIHEELELSEREE 4.

FHRHES -

a0 EEERER PG L IR

R

4

which the director has an interest of one third or more.

Such shares in the Company represent the corporate interest of
David Shou-Yeh Wong under Part XV of the SFO by virtue of his
beneficial interest in 100,499,906 ordinary shares of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), representing 38.61% of its
entire share capital currently in issue as at 31 December 2009 being
the record date.

Such shares in DSFH are indirectly held by HSBC International
Trustee Limited, a trustee of a discretionary trust established for
the benefit of David Shou-Yeh Wong and his family members.

Such shares in DSFH are jointly owned by John William Simpson
and his wife.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation
i) Share option scheme of the Company

The Share Option Scheme (“DSBG Option Scheme”) of the
Company was initially approved by Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), being the sole shareholder of the Company, on
12 June 2004. With the approval of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“SEHK”), the terms of the DSBG Option Scheme
as disclosed in the Company’s initial public offering prospectus

remained valid after its public listing in June 2004.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the

summary of DSBG Option Scheme is disclosed as follows:
(1)  Purpose of DSBG Option Scheme:

The purpose of DSBG Option Scheme is to attract, motivate
and retain high quality executives to contribute to the

Group’s business and growth.
(2) Participants of DSBG Option Scheme:

Eligible participants of DSBG Option Scheme included
directors and employees holding supervisory positions in
DSBG and its subsidiaries.

(8) Total number of shares available for issue under DSBG
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as
of 31 December 2009:

The number of shares available for issue under DSBG
Option Scheme is 38,995,000 shares, representing 3.51%
of the issued share capital of DSBG as at 31 December
2009.

(4)  Maximum entitlement of each participant under the DSBG

Option Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of DSBG Option Scheme and the

Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)
©)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an

option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of the
Company, and is specified when related options are
granted. Shares under the options must be taken up within
10 years from the date of grant. All the existing share
options under the DSBG Option Scheme shall be
exercisable upon vested in varying amounts between the
first and up to sixth anniversaries from the date of grant, or

in a shorter period as the case may be.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it

can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of the Company, and is specified when related
options are granted. None of the existing share options
under DSBG Option Scheme shall be exercisable within one

year from the date of grant.

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments or calls must or may

be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 28 days upon offer of granting of
options or such period the Board may determine from time

to time.
Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of the Company in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of
the Listing Rules and is calculated as the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing prices of
the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five

trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.



o 3

B MATB AR (8
) AEAON T BRI 2 W) I HE R E 2%

€ ))

) ARAEZBERESE (E)

Q) R¥RITEERBMET B HBAR

H

RFIRTTE

AR R &l —

=

=

eS|

FRAT-AEEHHEREN B
T-mENAT—AER

RERNABBEEE - AABAREEE
LEMBARNE TERER TRRE -
R-ZZFZENFT-_A=+t—8  EARQF
RSB TIDRITEZ ATRB AR AR
MEMERFHBDOT -

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(9) Remaining life of DSBG Option Scheme:

DSBG Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing from 12 June 2004 and

expiring at the close of 11 June 2014.

Pursuant to the Company’s Option Scheme, certain directors of

the Company and its major operating subsidiaries were granted

options under the Company’s Option Scheme. Details of the share

options outstanding as at 31 December 2009 which have been

granted under the Company’s Option Scheme are as follows:

ARERE 2 ARARDEE

Number of the Company’s shares in the options

RZBENE ZETNER RIEENE
-f-B ZEBBAFR ZBEAERM  AWEH tZR=T-R it ]
B8 R®¥ ik Lapsed/ ] iEE" Exercise period
Held at Granted  Exercised cancelled Heldat  Exercise BFAH # S
ARA Grantee 1/1/2009  during 2009  during 2009  during 2009 31112/2009 price  Grant date From To
g (B/AE) (RIAE) (RIRE)
HKS (dmA) (d/miy) (dmiy)
£z Directors
BEX Lung-Man Chiu
(John Chiu) 250,000 - - - 250,000 1670  25/11/2004  25/11/2005  25/112010
L Frederic
Suet-Chiu Lau 250,000 - - - 250,000 14.40 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
Easge Aggregate of
Employees? 300,000 - - - 300,000 14.40 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
250,000 - - - 250,000 1432 30/12/2005  3012/2006  30/12/2011
100,000 - - - 100,000 17.30 25/9/2006 25/9/2007 25/9/2012
100,000 - - - 100,000 17.84 19/7/2007 19/7/2008 19/7/2010
250,000 - - - 250,000 17.84 19/7/2007 19/7/2008 19/7/2013

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009



o 3

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

O RAT B RN R ()
L) AEA T B A 23 W) BT R R I M 2 b)

Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

€ )) Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) RREZBIREE (&) i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

[ Notes:

1. BEET2TEEDRIRRIT EMBRAE 1. The exercise prices for each tranche of granting was determined in
17.03(9)f§ + 2& KIBITEBRG ()L accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules prevailing in
THRBRMEE 2 KME - B(i)ERT force, being calculated as the higher of (i) the closing price of the
AR AER S ARERMEE 2 FHRm Company’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and
B MERzZRSEMEE E&5ETAH (i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares traded on
RIARBRMDBHELNT - the SEHK for the five trading days immediately preceding the date

of grant. The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the respective dates of grant are set out below:
BFBEAMAFHBITEBRD
REBXBAZKRHE
Closing price
®¥H TEE of the Company’s shares on the SEHK
Date of grant Exercise price immediately before the date of grant
(B/A/F) BT BT
(d/m/y) HK$ HK$
25/11/2004 16.70 16.60
25/8/2005 14.40 14.15
30/12/2005 14.32 14.35
25/9/2006 17.30 17.04
19/7/2007 17.84 17.58
2. READBEREE-_ZETNF+_A=7 2. Set out under this sub-paragraph are particulars and movements

— R LEFEARERTITR R Z 28 M
B BIARRARFARALIEZEMER
AETHERER  EAEE SMTH
ABHTEZRBEE - BREBIRERIED
BETEEAN] TIENESR -

3. EARFIRBMEET - WEARABERE
TEREBALRZ RBEHE -

4. EARFRBHEET  WELAARRA]
EAREEN BRI HERER TR
-

5, BHEZEZAFS_A=t+HILFEMR
BEHRBRENERE

HE_ZTNF+_A=+—HILFERN
BRERRE 2 BEETFBRRUBHRE
M EEST ©

ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ —TTAFER

during the year ended 31 December 2009 of the Company’s
outstanding share options which were granted to certain eligible
employees, who are directors, senior executives or officers of the
Company’s major operating subsidiaries and are working under
employment contracts that are regarded as “continuous contracts”
for the purpose of the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.

None of the grantees under the Company’s Option Scheme were
granted share options exceeding respective individual limits.

No share options under Company’s Option Scheme were granted

to the Company’s or the Group’s suppliers of goods or services.

Value of options granted during the year ended 31 December 2009:

Details of the computation of value of options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2009 are shown in Note 51 to the financial
statements.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings

Limited, the holding company of the Company

The shareholders of DSFH approved to adopt the new Share
Option Scheme (“DSFH Option Scheme”) on 28 April 2005.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the

summary of DSFH Option Scheme is disclosed as follows:
(1)  Purpose of DSFH Option Scheme:

The purpose of DSFH Option Scheme is to provide an
incentive and/or reward to grantees for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, DSFH

group of companies.
(2) Participants of DSFH Option Scheme:

Any director, manager, or other employee holding an
executive, managerial or supervisory position in DSFH
group of companies as the Board may in its sole discretion
determine to be eligible to participate in DSFH Option
Scheme.

(8) Total number of shares available for issue under DSFH
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as
of 31 December 2009:

The number of shares available for issue under DSFH
Option Scheme is 9,580,462 shares, representing 3.68%
of the issued share capital of DSFH as at 31 December
20009.

(4) Maximum entitlement of each participant under DSFH

Option Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of DSFH Option Scheme and the

Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

(5)  Period within which the shares must be taken up under an

option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of DSFH,
and is specified when related options are granted. Shares
under the options must be taken up within 10 years from
the date of grant. All the existing share options under DSFH
Option Scheme shall be exercisable upon vested in varying
amounts between the first and sixth anniversaries from the

date of grant.

(6)  Minimum period for which an option must be held before it

can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of DSFH, and is specified when related options are
granted. None of the existing share options under DSFH
Option Scheme shall be exercisable within one year from

the date of grant.

(7)  Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments or calls must or may

be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 28 days upon offer of granting of
options or such period the Board may determine from time

to time.
(8) Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of DSFH in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the
Listing Rules and is calculated as the higher of (i) the closing
price of DSFH shares traded on the SEHK on the date of
grant; and (ii) the average closing prices of DSFH shares
traded on the SEHK for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings

Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

(9) Remaining life of DSFH Option Scheme:

DSFH Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period

of 10 years commencing from 28 April 2005 and expiring at
the close of 27 April 2015.

Pursuant to DSFH Option Scheme, certain Directors of DSFH and

its major operating subsidiaries were granted options under DSFH

Option Scheme. Details of the share options outstanding as at
31 December 2009 which have been granted under the DSFH

Option Scheme are as follows:

AREEEZAHLRRAHE
Number of DSFH shares in the options
RZ28nE ZRENER R-RENE
-f-B ZBBAFR ZBEAERM  AWEH tZR=T-R it ]
B8 R®¥ ik d Lapsed/ bE:] EE" Exercise period
Held at Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Heldat  Exercise BFAH # S
ARA Grantee 1/1/2009  during 2009  during 2009  during 2009 31112/2009 price  Grant date From To
g (B/AE) (BIAE) (RIAE)
HK$ (d/my) (d/mfy) (d/my)
£z Directors
EER Hon-Hing Wong
(Derek Wong) 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 5171 26/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
h% Gary Pak-Ling Wang 400,000 - - - 400,000 5171 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
THE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong 250,000 - - - 250,000 5171 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
100,000 - - - 100,000 61.93 28/9/2007 28/9/2008 28/9/2013
Easg Aggregate of
an employee? 250,000 - - - 250,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
100,000 - - - 100,000 61.93 28/9/2007 28/9/2008 28/9/2013

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

&) AEA L E] B W 4 5] i e B 2 b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
() Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)  AREZERRFAX 2 EERGR i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
DALz RIRKEET B () Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

5t Notes:

1. BRK T 2TEETREBERIT EMRANE 1. The exercise prices for each tranche of granting were determined
17.039)k - 2E R mBRHOERTH in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules prevailing in
RERPTEE 2 M E - E@iER T EA force, being calculated as the higher of (i) the closing price of DSFH
FEAZXZARBIMER 2 FHKRME - shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (i) the average
MERzRSEMEE - EFRXTHAA closing price of DSFH shares traded on the SEHK for the five
MeRBROKHENT trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The closing

price of DSFH’s shares immediately before the respective dates of

grant are set out below:

BFAAIAF&®
REBXBAZKRHE
Closing price

BFHHB TEE of DSFH shares on the SEHK
Date of grant Exercise price immediately before the date of grant
(B/A/%F) I BT
(d/m/y) HK$ HK$
25/8/2005 51.71 51.05
28/9/2007 61.93 60.90

2. RAEASBRETEHZE-_STNF A= 2. Set out under this sub-paragraph are particulars and movements
—HIEFEA - R EARITERRE during the year ended 31 December 2009 of DSFH’s outstanding
ZBERFE WA ERE T AARK share options which were granted to an employee of the
HIXrZLBMBAR—REER - BRAKH Company’s major operating subsidiaries, who is a director of DSFH
CRN—BEE  UABBEBIEIER and is working under employment contract that is regarded as
TlEBEEH] TENES - “continuous contracts” for the purpose of the Employment

Ordinance of Hong Kong.

3. ERFeMRBRENET - WEARAE 3. None of the grantees under DSFH Option Scheme were granted
BTZREMBA LR ZBRE - share options exceeding respective individual limits.

4. TR SRR ST - W RRER 4. No share options under DSFH Option Scheme were granted to the
TRIEBMEAEE 2B mARBHE DSFH’s and the Group’s suppliers of goods or services.

75 o

5. HE_ZTTNF+-_A=1+—RALLFEFRR 5. Value of options granted during the year ended 31 December 2009:

R RRERNEE

HE_ZTNF+_A=+—HILFERN
BERBEEEZETFBHNUBHRE
MIFEST ©

B LilEREBHRE - K-

— =

=

NE+=ZR=

T—H ARBMREBE[ESFMEGIMREZ
EENTRAHER AR BLMALEESS

BRBOMLE -

—ZETNEER

| us EEERELEIIN

Details of the computation of value of options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2009 are shown in Note 51 to the financial
statements.

All the interests stated above represent long position. As at
31 December 2009, none of Directors of the Company held any short
positions as defined under the SFO as recorded in the register of

directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company, its
subsidiaries, or its holding company a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors of the Company nor their spouses or children under
18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares

in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Company.

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

Shareholders’ Interests

At 31 December 2009, the register of shareholders’ interests in shares
and short positions maintained under section 336 of the SFO showed
that the Company had been notified of the following interests, which
are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of Directors, being

5% or more held in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.

HEBREZROHE
(REZBDL)

Number of shares

IR g4 (and percentage) interested
Shareholder Capacity in the relevant share capital
TREES RAERBHEEATHRERGMERIEHERER

Christine Yen Wong

A BREBERAT

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited

ELHRELERAA
HSBC International Trustee Limited

Deemed interest by virtue of

her spouse having a notifiable interest

BEEED

Beneficial interest

EE R
Corporate interest

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED

824,169,170 (74.13%)"

824,169,170 (74.13%)

824,169,170 (74.13%)®

ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)

Notes:

1. Such shares represented the deemed interest of Christine Yen Wong by
virtue of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong being a substantial
shareholder of DSFH which held a controlling corporate interest in the
relevant share capital of the Company. Christine Yen Wong is taken to
have a duty of disclosure in respect of her deemed interest in the
Company. This interest comprised the same interest of David Shou-Yeh
Wong under the heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive”

shown above.

2. Such shares mainly comprised the corporate interest of DSFH in the
Company indirectly held by HSBC International Trustee Limited
(“HSBCIT”) in trust for a discretionary trust established for the benefit of
David Shou-Yeh Wong and his family members. HSBCIT is taken to have
a duty of disclosure in relation to the relevant shares of the Company held
through its controlled companies. Relevant shares have been included in
the “Corporate interests” of David Shou-Yeh Wong as disclosed under
the heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31
December 2009, no short positions were recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions

maintained by the Company.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year ended
31 December 2009. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s own shares during the

year ended 31 December 2009.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2009.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Connected Transactions

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2009 since its incorporation have been set out in

Note 50 to the financial statements.

Five-Year Financial Information

The published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years are included in the section of the annual report under

“Financial Summary”.

The Company was incorporated on 11 March 2004 as a subsidiary of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”). Pursuant to a group
reorganization, DSFH transferred its banking-related subsidiaries to the
Company in June 2004 through a share-for-share swap and the
Company became the holding company of these banking-related
subsidiaries thereafter. Based on the merger accounting treatment and
for the purpose of disclosing the five year financial information, the
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries were
produced on the basis that the Company had existed and the banking-
related subsidiaries had been subsidiaries of the Company throughout

the reporting periods.

Major Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group derived less than
30% of its interest income and other operating income from its five

largest customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the

Company and within knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The accompanying financial statements comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the

preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2010




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Mz —ZTAFE Z—TT/N\F
Note 2009 2008
A EWA Interest income 3,020,122 4,612,468
FMEXZH Interest expense (885,368)  (2,404,882)
BRI E WA Net interest income 6 2,134,754 2,207,586
RS 8 &AW A Fee and commission income 476,843 637,000
AR & KA e Fee and commission expense (128,562) (104,736)
FREERASWA Net fee and commission income 7 348,281 532,264
FEE (B8 A Net trading (loss)/income 8 (174,926) 211,060
H 2@ WA Other operating income 9 27,952 63,265
EEWA Operating income 2,336,061 3,014,175
BES W Operating expenses 10 (1,726,125)  (1,555,157)
MERBEE A 2 & EEF Operating profit before impairment losses 609,936 1,459,018
EFREBENMEMEERE Loan impairment losses and other credit
provisions 13 (427,660) (658,535)
ETRERBEEEEWRZREEA Operating profit before gains or losses
ZEE T on certain investments and fixed assets 182,276 800,483
HETEREMETEEE R Net gain on disposal and revaluation of
TEEHZFRZE premises and other fixed assets 14 2,751 854
HEREMFEREQNFEREZ Net gain/(loss) on disposal of and fair value
FlEs (E18) adjustment on investment properties 15 78,306 (78,923)
HENHEEZHF Net (loss)/gain on disposal of available-for-sale
(B8 Wz securities (24,519) 18,490
i AN e Share of results of an associate 195,770 120,589
FE(R KRG B 8E 2 245 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 5,103 5,674
OB EEER 2 F W Net gain on repurchase of subordinated debts 16 243,983 =
REIHEZF2RBEER Impairment losses charged on held-to-maturity
Erctid securities - (357,684)
AHEEESZRERIE Impairment losses charged on available-for-sale
et securities - (297,618)
B %4 Al 5 A Profit before income tax 683,670 211,865
FHIE S H Income tax expense 17 (82,789) (21,288)
FEREF Profit for the year 600,881 190,577
FEMREERMER Attributable to:
V8 2 il 7 R R Non-controlling interests 55 1,935
ZN/NGI) g5 Shareholders of the Company 600,826 188,642
FEREF Profit for the year 600,881 190,577
’E Dividends
B ER S Interim dividend paid 19 - 167,897
BREAER Earnings per share
HAK Basic 20 HK$0.60 HK$0.20
#E Diluted 20 HK$0.60 HK$0.20

FO0EEF2208 2 W ARGRE M BHIHRE 2 —

#5 -

financial statements.

The notes on pages 60 to 220 are an integral part of these consolidated

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

E-TEANFT_A=+—HILEFE
(A7 ¥EF LAz 3m)

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

iz =—ZThE —TTN\F
Note 2009 2008
FEERF Profit for the year 600,881 190,577
FEHMmEEKZE  (B8) Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year
AHEEES Available-for-sale securities
ERNERS 2 AFEKS (BB Fair value gains/(losses) recognised in equity 428,735 (1,397,233)
#HREWER 2 EY Reclassification adjustments for amounts
FEE transferred to profit or loss
-HE - Disposal 24,519 (18,490)
- & — Impairment 26 16,048 297,618
FERARLIE (L) B # Related income tax (expense)/credit (76,677) 177,582
392,625 (940,523)
TE Premises
RN ERZ A ERE (BE) Fair value gains/(losses) recognised in equity 326,407 (106,874)
TEAFERZ FBER Deferred income tax (recognised)/released
HEm (R /B2 on fair value gains/losses and disposal of
ERER IR premises (18,106) 49,965
308,301 (56,909)
BMEGIMEB IS IRER Exchange differences arising on translation of
MEHERE the financial statements of foreign entities (3,007) 39,157
BRI IR 2 F 2 E A Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year,
2HE ks (E18) net of tax 697,919 (958,275)
NBRBERZFE Total comprehensive income/(loss)
2HEkE S (F8) 85 for the year, net of tax 1,298,800 (767,698)
FEME 2 E U AR ERRS : Attributable to:
V8 2 | 7 AR R Non-controlling interests 701 1,548
ZIN/NET |95 Shareholders of the Company 1,298,099 (769,246)
HBRBERZFE Total comprehensive income/(loss)
2EWE S (BE)BHE for the year, net of tax 1,298,800 (767,698)

FO0BE £ FE2208 2 MIFETI N A EHREKZ —

5 o

KFRTEBERA D

financial statements.

—ZETNEFR

The notes on pages 60 to 220 are an integral part of these consolidated



Ao B s AR L 3R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—ETNE+_A=+—H As at 31 December 2009

(LAB BT TAIPIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
e —ZTBAE ZZZTN\F
Note 2009 2008
BE ASSETS
Re RIERITH A Cash and balances with banks 21 10,453,366 12,665,167
FERIT—E=+ =@ A A B FR Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 22 4,282,749 1,656,950
¥ 1’Eiﬁ'?f E-? R&EmE Trading securities 23 5,595,316 1,875,564
BEARFEFELHLE Financial assets designated at fair value
ﬁ)\%@ SRR E E through profit or loss 23 11,232 565,290
TESMIT A Derivative financial instruments 24 588,778 1,066,439
SHEERREMERB Advances and other accounts 25 66,983,952 69,507,336
A & 7 5 Available-for-sale securities 27 12,086,178 14,247,299
FE B B S Held-to-maturity securities 28 8,598,408 6,159,264
é‘ﬁ BRRIE Investment in an associate 30 1,299,257 1,132,461
HEEHIEERE Investments in jointly controlled entities 31 60,791 59,973
Fﬁ% Goodwill 33 811,690 811,690
BREE Intangible assets 33 110,432 126,875
TEREMEEEE Premises and other fixed assets 34 1,950,180 1,666,499
wEMZE Investment properties 35 657,235 546,172
BVEATRIB & &= Current income tax assets 61,916 139,860
BERIEE = Deferred income tax assets 43 77,268 159,380
BEAE Total assets 113,628,748 112,386,219
=L LIABILITIES
|ITER Deposits from banks 1,435,136 2,443,594
MTESMIT A Derivative financial instruments 24 1,213,734 2,267,640
FIEEERTENEE Trading liabilities 37 2,068,300 1,791,419
BEARFEFEARS Deposits from customers designated
TABZHE PR at fair value through profit or loss 38 - 471,065
EFEER Deposits from customers 39 89,572,204 81,890,447
B BT FRE Certificates of deposit issued 40 2,060,010 4,654,985
BETHERES Issued debt securities 41 = 2,803,640
‘RIEER Subordinated notes 42 4,602,235 5,671,716
HiiRB kER Other accounts and accruals 1,861,540 2,183,662
BERTR 18 B f& Current income tax liabilities 17,485 12,682
BEEBIEBE Deferred income tax liabilities 43 6,969 1,575
aEast Total liabilities 102,837,613 104,192,425
= EQUITY
R IEHIRE IR R Non-controlling interests 17,495 20,593
AAFRRELER Equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders
A% Zx Share capital 46 1,111,759 932,759
G Reserves 47 9,661,881 7,240,442
BRRES Shareholders’ funds 10,773,640 8,173,201
EmEE Total equity 10,791,135 8,193,794
EzkBEE Total equity and liabilities 113,628,748 112,386,219
EERN T ZETF =A== +tHAEREESR Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
o 24 March 2010.
ErE David Shou-Yeh Wong Hon-Hing Wong
EaE Director Managing Director
F60E £HE2208 2R GE B wEK 2 — The notes on pages 60 to 220 are an integral part of these consolidated
a7 o financial statements.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009 m
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—ZEEAF+-_A=+—H
(AR T THIR)

As at 31 December 2009
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Mz Z—ZTAE —ZTZN\F
Note 2009 2008
LIpENEIE = Investments in subsidiaries 32 4,550,693 3,265,734
MBEE Current assets
& MIRIT4 84 Cash and balances with banks 21 17,789 19,076
FEURR R H At AR B Accounts receivable and other accounts 449 356
18,238 19,432
mBEE Current liabilities
TERER K EMIRE Accrued expenses and other accounts 2,436 1,373
FRBEE Net current assets 15,802 18,059
4,566,495 3,283,793
= EQUITY
f& Zx Share capital 46 1,111,759 932,759
] Reserves 47 3,454,736 2,351,034
EEEE Total equity 4,566,495 3,283,793

BERR-_ZE—TF=A - +HBEHERREE

fff o

ErE =EE

EF EEparE

FO0BE £ FE2208 2 MIFETI AN A M ETHREK Z —
o e

AFRTEMERAT —

March 2010.

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Director

financial statements.

ThEFH

4

Hon-Hing Wong

Managing Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24

The notes on pages 60 to 220 are an integral part of these consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

E-TTNF+_A=+—RHIFE

(AR T THIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ADARREGES
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
R
e
BEA ROEE HtREE {RERF Non- RE#HAH
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings interests equity
“ZEAFE-RA-A&H Balance at 1 January 2009 932,759 2,228,436  (309,892) 5,321,898 20,593 8,193,794
FERENRAHE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 697,273 600,826 701 1,298,800
FATEBRARN (B0 Issue of ordinary shares (net
BIRNER) of share issue expenses) 179,000 1,123,340 - - - 1,302,340
NEERRERLE Premises revaluation reserve realised
TEMER on disposal of premises - - (37,513) 37,513 - -
ROENEMEBTEER Premises revaluation reserve transferred
FEERBEM to retained earnings for depreciation
of premises - - (12,105) 12,105 - -
BB A R R E R E SR R Dividend paid to non-controlling
R E interests of a subsidiary - - - - (3,799) (3,799)
ZEEAFTZAZT-HER Balance at 31 December 2009 1,111,759 3,351,776 337,763 5,972,342 17,495 10,791,135

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—BEAF

—BENF

2009 2008

BERRERNA
Z B R B B

Proposed final dividend

included in retained earnings

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

nE-T=

— ==

(AR T THIR)

F+-RA=+—RBILFE @

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ARARREGES
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
R
xR
BRE  ROEE HitREE RERA Non- XA
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings interests equity
“ZT\F-F-AEH Balance at 1 January 2008 931,416 2,209,149 665,339 5,423,522 19,045 9,248,471
FE2E(BR)  WanlE Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year - - (957,888 188642 1,548  (767,699)
TEEREERALE Premises revaluation reserve realised
TEMZER on disposal of premises - - (4,852) 4,852 - -
ROENEMBEBTEER Premises revaluation reserve transferred
HEERE AN to retained earnings for depreciation
of premises - - (12,491) 12,491 - -
BARK 5l Issue of ordinary shares pursuant to
mEfT EBRR D scrip dividend arrangement 1,343 19,306 = = = 20,649
NETRNDER Payment of share issue expenses - (19) - - - (19)
“ERLERERE 2007 final dividend - - - (139,712) - (139,712
ZEE\FEHHRE 2008 interim dividend - - - (167,897 - (167,897)
“EEN\E+-A=t+—RH&H Balance at 31 December 2008 932,759 2,228,436  (309,892) 5,321,898 20,593 8,193,794

H

okt
=

e

AFRTEMERAT —TTAEHF

B0R EF220H 2 ME I AGZEMBREKRZ —

financial statements.

&

4

The notes on pages 60 to 220 are an integral part of these consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_ZTNF+_A=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2009
(A ¥ F A3 ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

i —BAT —TINF

Note 2009 2008
RETH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
KRR AR S F5E Net cash from operating activities 48(a) 3,384,478 5,733,659
RETBZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
BETE REVER Purchase of premises, investment
HhEE & E properties and other fixed assets (177,668) (78,482)
METE - BEWHE Proceeds from disposal of premises,
X BB TE & 2 TS 5E investment properties and other
fixed assets 92,717 28,997
W B s i R Rl M 2w Acquisition of interest in an associate - (179,718)
BEESMARE F5E Net cash used in investing activities (84,951) (229,203)
METBZ2RERE Cash flows from financing activities
BT GE Certificates of deposit issued 487,891 1,491,822
B 0 17 R 3% Certificates of deposit redeemed (3,143,618)  (5,499,765)
EERBRERY Repayment of subordinated notes (403,000) =
BITIREE Issue of subordinated notes - 403,023
Bl R EER Repurchase of subordinated notes (371,056) -
BEBETEBES Repayment of issued debt securities (2,775,045) =
k3% LHxHx = Dividends paid on ordinary shares - (286,960)
HRIERARRTZ Proceeds of loan facility granted
B REEFT1S K by the holding company 48(c) 1,000,000 -
BATE R G Issue of ordinary shares 302,400 -
XNETRHER Payment of share issue expenses (60) (19)
Bt 188 & ] 1 L8 4 il A AR BR Dividend paid to non-controlling interests
NI s\ of a subsidiary (3,799) -
BB EETARESFE Net cash used in financing activities (4,906,287)  (3,891,899)
fﬁ.ﬁ FERBESLEH Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
WD) I EEE cash equivalents (1,606,760) 1,621,557
FYReRERRELIEE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 15,235,538 13,622,981
FRESREREL£IER Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 48(b) 13,628,778 15,235,538
F60E £ FE2208 2 M ARG E MBIwEK 2 — The notes on pages 60 to 220 are an integral part of these consolidated
o o financial statements.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009 m
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

1. iR

AFBITEBBERAE ([KARF]) BEME AR
(FehE [N E ) £RE - BPIRPBRIRHRTT -
& B e B b AR B AR o

AR —HEEREEMONREZRAR -
Wit AEBEFE LT E BT/ RAFE RS
D=F7RE o

ARRZERABRNAFERERERARRER
—MLEmAA -

BAAEZHAN - WM BRERBIABE T T
IR WER-Z—TF=A_FTNEEEES
HEER o

2. EHEHFBUORME

AT RREATBERRAIRN 2 EESETHOR
BRAEEAS - EREMBEEMRANE & -

21 AR

AEBZGEMBERRRRELESAMHAE ([F
BETEAE]) R 2 BBM RS ERL ([F
BUBHREEL]  ABREMEENERNER
MBHELR  FAGHE(TSFER) AR
HBzoH)  FETERMAZEHARAINE
B R EHEDIM RS -

IR A M BHRRTIBIBE LN AT RERE - AL
IR (BREENR)  AHEEZESREE -
ARHES 2 ERRERFR - FHEEERR
ZeRMEEREMAE UATEFEAES
SFARENEREERERAG (BEITETR)
ZEHEHERT °

| o0 EXTGEY EEPN

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. General information

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) provide banking, financial and other related

services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Dah Sing

Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, a listed

company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 24 March 2010.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of properties
(including investment properties), available-for-sale financial assets, fair
value-hedged loans and receivables, financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, financial assets and financial liabilities

(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

2. EEGFEURME @)
2.1 HmBEE ()

AN BBV BREEN M BHRRACASE
TERzEt A TRAEEEEERARES
AR ZBRETEHAE - RAZKRREAZE
AT EE ) A B S BB HAfE 2 SRR IER B R
2 -EEERGEARNBRFEBRERAKE
Z IR AT 2 EM AR R ELE - &5
R EHE D RBEM 2 B - RS MR
RYBERZBERMET - IR FAPEE -

(F) B=ZFFNF—H—HHHEELEEN
ZER - BT R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a
significant impact on the financial statements in the period the
assumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying
assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s financial statements
therefore present the financial position and results fairly. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2009

BRARNUTAEE
HERRBBREE
%R RE Applicable for BRAREEE
Standard/ AE financial years Relevant to
Interpretation Content beginning on/after the Group
BB HEERFE25% CCARR 0 A5 T8 80 32 AT — B3 JB8 {1 R w8 —EENF-A—H =
HKFRS 2 Share-based payments — Vesting 1 January 2009 Yes
Conditions and Cancellations
ERNBHRELNETR (BEEHEm I B 2 %5 —ZETNF—-—HA—H P
HKFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about 1 January 2009 Yes
Financial Instruments
BB EERFE8R (EEXEBHE) —EENF-A—H =
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments 1 January 2009 Yes
BB G ERER (Cup = E el —EENF-HA—H =
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2009 Yes
BB G ERE235% CEERAY —EENF-A—H A
HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs 1 January 2009 No
BB G ERE325% (AIOESrTARBRELEZEE) —EENF-A—H A
BB GTHEL B 5%
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and 1 January 2009 No
Obligations Arising on Liquidation
H5 (BRI B RS (REEFPED T N\F+EHA—H =
RELZE®)REE13%
HK (IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 July 2008 Yes
H5 (BRI B RS (B HERR =) —ZETNF—HA—H A
REZE®)REE15%
HK (IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of 1 January 2009 No
Real Estate
H5 (BB B RS CBINERIRE FREE ) T NFE+HA—H A
RRELZE®)REE165
HK (IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in 1 October 2008 No

a Foreign Operation

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

21

| o2 EXTGEL ELN

E BRI (20
A LB (18)

(F) B=-ZFFNF—H—HHHAELELEN
ZER - BFTREE (B)

BEM IS LERFE 25 ARG BEHER
A — BB R B RE )

BRGTMAGR ST NF=AEMHY
B IS R B 257 CLARR (7 R BB Y
XY ZMERT - ZIARE T RN RE R
ZEE - ARAKRRRAINE T iHET 8 2
HE - ZREBBERRBRTERERE
REBGRN - ARNMEFTBBIRF 2 EE -
BRREETR D Z B T A Z A FER
— Gt E BIER B IR o Lbsh - UL IHEERI TR
ST R IR MR R B IR R ER 2
BRTZARDE - BREEMHREE
RIE25R I M AL BN REHR 2 M ],
RERERTE - ZFEITEPER -

\:

BEMBRELERETRCGCERRSRT
EiE)

BEGHMASR _ZZNF=ARMGH
ERM WM EEYETIR ZERT o WIBER]
RAAFEAEERBESRAR ZKE
LERBAVFEFERREH 2 AFER
BAFHBEEZER - RRZREFTER
BIMEE - BYEEANKEZMBIRRK
PHEHKSERTE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2009 (Continued)

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payments — Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

The HKICPA published an amendment to HKFRS 2 — Share-based
Payments in March 2008. The changes pertain mainly to the
definition of vesting conditions and the regulations for the
cancellation of a plan by a party other than the company. These
changes clarify that vesting conditions are solely service and
performance conditions. As a result of the amended definition of
vesting conditions, non-vesting conditions are now to be
considered when estimating the fair value of the equity instrument
granted. Furthermore, the Standard describes the posting type,
if the vesting conditions and non-vesting conditions are not
fulfilled. There is no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements by applying the amendment of HKFRS 2 at the end of

the reporting period. These amendments are applied retrospectively.

Amendment to HKFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Financial

Instruments

The HKICPA published amendments to the HKFRS 7 in March
2009. The amendments require enhanced disclosures about fair
value measurements and liquidity risk. In particular, the
amendment requires disclosure of fair value measurements by
level of a fair value measurement hierarchy. The adoption of the
amendment results in additional disclosures but does not have
an impact on the financial position or the comprehensive income

of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

21

FEHEF R BORME (8
A B (48)

(F) B=-ZFFNF—H—HHHAELELEN
ZER - BFTREE (B)

BEMBRELEREH(LEEXEDR)

BEAVBHRELNESFNR - LF=H
B AERERZRBRPERALLIAER
MARAR-_ZETNF A —BEz&5
Bl o IWIRERIMAE B G ERIE 145D
BRE)EEEEARREREDHZE
Ko RBFEUZRE - REBESI 2D
BEREGBRBERITHEHRITREZE K
B AEERTEEEREKE 2R 2]
MIEBRDRERFFEERDOBERELZ
N EBEE RS EHE - AT BN B E &R
FERW BUALBERNEMEATE - B
HPBZBEBERNBREZABEEBHRY
o DEFECHMELESR -

ER G ERE 1R BRKR 25

RIEFTZMAR T LF+ - AHEM -
WEIRERT T ERFIRA RS HIR B (BN T FE 5k
BEZERED]) 2IINEZESHRE -
BEXRDEFEAEZREEH | N2 NKE
BRPEBREECEREHOREZS -
It AEERGEREEBRERDP 2R
BHREE 2 RGRE  MAANFEREZ
BEZ2PHANGAEZEBRRED - LR
BEREEEIINATERERTLEN - RBE
BETEAFIRZER] - SRR (B
HipzEbaE 2 & ERE) ARSI RIR
ZREEDETHR - AR EFTBR2E
BEFE27 5 BEFREENL EE

> By 48R
REE o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2009 (Continued)

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 was issued in March 2007 and excluding early adoption
would first be required to be applied to the Group’s accounting
period beginning on 1 January 2009. The Standard replaces
HKAS 14 Segment Reporting with its requirement to determine
primary and secondary reporting segments. Under the
requirements of the new Standard, the Group’s external
segmental reporting will be based on the internal reporting to the
Chief Executive and members of the Executive Committee (in its
function as the chief operating decision maker), which make
decisions on the allocation of resources and assess the
performance of the reportable segments. The application of
HKFRS 8 does not have any material effects for the Group but
has an impact on segment disclosure and on the measurement
bases within segments. The segment results have been changed

accordingly.
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

A revised version was issued in December 2007. It prohibits the
presentation of items of income and expenses (that is, “non-
owner changes in equity”) in the statement of changes in equity,
requiring “non-owner changes in equity” to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity in a statement of
comprehensive income. As a result, the Group presents in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity all owner changes
in equity, whereas all non-owner changes in equity are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Comparative information has been re-presented so that it also
conforms with the revised Standard. According to the amendment
of HKAS 1, each component of equity, including each item of
other comprehensive income, should be reconciled between
carrying amount at the beginning and the end of the period. Since
the change in accounting policy only impacts presentation

aspects, there is no impact on retained earnings.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)
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| o EXTHGET EEPN

FEHEF R BORME (8

A LB (1)

(F) B=-ZFFNF—H—HHHAELELEN
ZER - BFTREE (B)

BRE G ERFE23RABEXE)

BIERT ZRAR Z 2L FRARM o Uk
IE\{ DTHX/%JT—JEDHTEEWU; %;F‘E EXEEﬁ
FEGIEERERGZEEZEERAR

X 2BE - ERAEBGTEAF23HE
ERTU BB ANEE 2 R A REHNEA M
BARRBRIBR ERTE

BB DT ERIEI2 BB SRS
(ATREemMIT AN EREEZEMT

15%

RZZZENERA  BEGHAGESR
FRE G ER 325 %EE%%T%/,\Hf%qi

NEeTMARTRCERIASERE
& EARBEEFENGES 2 EE
ERMTARSEAESD  BATERER
o RNBRE ZREAUBRFEAZTEZK
BEEFEZDGLLE ‘JE’\JAEEIE : DTZZD
ERBREREBBEER 2 PISMER o £
MRET2BEE quE‘EE‘J%32ﬁ§E?%%¥¢$
%IZEM%#&%ZE&%%“ g

B (BRTBH
F(RER P ED

TRELZE®) RESF13

2R (BRVBREREZES) 2BFH13

B ANEmARBCHENTHERRE
BEP R (WEIRREER  ABR

SHRBEE L BREPZHIBBERR
FESEZEBLTHZEEKD - ARA
EEXUNBRARAKTETIERP#ER
itE - BER (AR BHRE2ERZRE)
REFIREANAEELE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2009 (Continued)

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

A revised version was issued in June 2007. This eliminates the
option of immediate recognition of borrowing costs as an expense
regarding assets that require a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use. The application of HKAS 23
Amendment does not have an impact on the consolidated results
or items in the statement of consolidated financial position of the
Group.

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

In June 2008, the HKICPA amended HKAS 32 by requiring some
financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability
to be classified as equity. Puttable financial instruments that
represent a residual interest in the net assets of the entity are
now classified as equity provided that specified conditions are
met. Similar to those requirements is the exception to the
definition of a financial liability for instruments that entitle the
holder to a pro rata share of the net assets of an entity only on
liquidation. The adoption of the amended HKAS 32 does not have
an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HK (IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK (IFRIC) —
together with a customer loyalty incentive (for example, loyalty

Int 13 clarifies that where goods or services are sold

points or free products), the arrangement is a multiple element
arrangement, and the consideration receivable from the customer
is allocated between the components of the arrangement using
fair values. HK (IFRIC) -
as certain subsidiaries of the Group operate some of the loyalty

Int 13 is relevant to the Group’s operation

programmes.
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FEEFBORME (&)
B L A (48)

(F) B=-ZFFNF—H—HHHAELELEN
ZER - BFTREE (B)

2R (BRVBREREZES)2EBF15
B EE R Z %)

IIEZRES AT ES L E18HUNA)
BB EHERFEIRCERSR) AR
RBEXRS  LEHEBSTELF18HE
AREEANREZBEZRS - ILAREY
BHAKE M BRFENTE

72 (AR BHREREZES)2EFR16
OB RIS E FREE )

HWRREHAERFREY T 2GR
2 BESAAFRES NE)EEETIF
2HER 2 EZRERE  AREMP T AR S
AEEEFR—FHKERARE  WHRE
WERREE 2 PERRERTE -

(Z) ERMEIREMZEAR 2R

ATERRZ2EEBMIEAEAREEERR
BE-ZEZNFtA—BxEEHERZER
HAfE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2009 (Continued)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

The Interpretation clarifies whether HKAS 18 “Revenue” or HKAS
11 “Construction contracts” should be applied to particular
transactions. It is likely to result in HKAS 18 being applied to a
wider range of transactions. This Interpretation does not have an

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HK (IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign

Operation

This Interpretation clarifies the accounting treatment in respect
of net investment hedging. This includes the fact that net
investment hedging relates to differences in functional currency
not presentation currency, and hedging instruments may be held
anywhere in the Group. This Interpretation does not have an

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

(b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

The following Standards and Interpretations have been issued
and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning

on or after 1 July 2009 or later periods:

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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K <snozmaran —senss

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FEEGFBORME (@) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
A LB (1) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(Z2) EBEMAAIRENZ EL R FE (B) (b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(Continued)
BERRUTBER/
HERBZHRFE
R/ RE Applicable for BRARKEE AEBREHEN
Standard/ AR financial years Relevant to Early adopted
Interpretation Content beginning on/after the Group by the Group
BREBBREEAE1H (RIEEAR - HFRZEHEER —ZETNFELA—H & i
REB G ERIE27H FH R R A 2 REKAK)
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, 1 July 2009 No No
Jointly-Controlled Entity or Associate
BEPBREEREIN (EBadh) —ZETNFELA-H b= P
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations 1 July 2009 Yes Yes
BB EIE27R (FRERBLHMBERER) —ZETNFELA—H = =
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate 1 July 2009 Yes Yes
Financial Statements
BB T ERE 395 (PRIE  BRARHE-GARYHEE) ZTTAF+HA-H = &
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 1 July 2009 Yes No
and Measurements - Eligible Hedged ltems
& (BRI BRS (MEBEEH IR CEE) —ZETNFLA—H A i
RBEE®)RERITH
HK (IFRIC) - Int 17 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners 1 July 2009 No No
B (BEEFERS (BERRP2BE) —ZETAFELA—H & &
RBEE®)REF18%
HK (IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers 1 July 2009 No No
BEBBREERE25H (EEUREINZURDBEERS) —T-ZF-f—H I~ A
HKFRS 2 Group Cash-settled Share-based 1 January 2010 Yes No
Payment Transaction
BB G T ERE 325 (2 258 —Z-ZF_F-H I~ i
HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issue 1 February 2010 Yes No
& (BRI BRS (FHMSRATA 2 2RAE) —T-ZF+A-H b= o
RBLZE®)REF19%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities 1 July 2010 Yes No
with Equity Instruments
BE g ERIFE 245 (BHEALZHE) —T—%-H—H = i
HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011 Yes No
B (BRI BRS (BERNERAIE, BE 2R —T—%—-H—H & i
RBEEE)RER145% RERE 2T RMERZBE
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, 1 January 2011 No No
Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction
BEBBREERER (ERIAS1HH - K E) —Z-=f-H—H = i
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Part 1: 1 January 2013 Yes No

Classification and Measurement

&

4
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(Z) ERMEIARENZ ERIRZE (B
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WIREERTEREERBUBEREBS
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BYEMNFRBARKERBRATE
AR SRANKRAUBE/ER  YRER
EFFTEREZSHF AWSRA - EE
RFTAW B LR T E ORI HIER R
PRI IE T 2 BEFEZLLHIRIAGTE
RIRUREE T 2 R IR IR B R et - PRA H
WEERBEZKAESH - AEEREP K
ME BT IRE LRI EI5% (IBF]) RBER S
ARG EFE27R (RT3 - AR
FHERIE28E R BB G EAFEIR 2 E
7 U EERIBRER —_TFNFELA—
BEZMAB e HRLEN - BRERMA
TERHAEE W BHRRERTE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,

Jointly-Controlled Entity or Associate

The amended Standard allows first-time adopters to use a
deemed cost of either fair value or the carrying amount under
previous accounting practice to measure the initial cost of
investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and
associates in the separate financial statements. The amendment
also removes the definition of the cost method from HKAS 27
and replaces it with a requirement to present dividends as income

in the separate financial statements of the investor.
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

The revised Standard continues to apply the acquisition method
to business combinations, with some significant changes. For
example, all payments to purchase a business are to be recorded
at fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent payments
classified as debt subsequently re-measured through the income
statement. There is a choice on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets. All acquisition-related costs should
be expensed. The Group has early adopted HKFRS 3 (Revised)
and the consequential amendments to HKAS 27 (as discussed
below), HKAS 28 and HKAS 31 which are originally effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009. The early
adoption does not have an impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The revised Standard requires the effects of all transactions with
non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is no
change in control and these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The Standard also specifies the
accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest in the
entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss. The revised Standard will tend to produce higher
volatility in equity and/or earnings in connection with the sale or

acquisition of interests by the Group.

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement —

Eligible Hedged Items

The amendment was issued in November 2008. It provides
guidance in two situations: On the designation of a one-sided
risk in a hedged item HKAS 39 concludes that a purchased option
designated in its entirety as the hedging instrument of a one-
sided risk will not be perfectly effective. The designation of
inflation as a hedged risk or portion is not permitted unless in
particular situations. This is not expected to give rise to any

changes to the Group’s financial statements.

HK (IFRIC) — Int 17 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners

HK (IFRIC) — Int 17 was issued in December 2008. It addresses how
the non-cash dividends distributed to the shareholders should be
measured. A dividend obligation is recognised when dividend was
authorised by the appropriate entity and is no longer at the discretion
of the entity. This dividend obligation should be recognised at the
fair value of the net assets to be distributed. The difference between
the dividend paid and the amount carried forward of the net assets

distributed should be recognised in profit and loss.

Additional disclosures are to be made if the net assets being held
for distribution to owners meet the definition of a discontinued
operation. The application of HK (IFRIC) 17 is not expected to

have any impact on the financial statements of the Group.



$A 255 Ak Mt

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

2.

2.1

TR BURMEE (&)

AR (1)

(Z) ERMEARENZ ERLZE (B)
e (AR BHREREZES) 2EF18
F(ERETPZEE)

ﬁz’é(l&i‘r\ﬁﬂ&#& REZE®)REE18T
R-ZBTNF_ ARG SARBEERP
%H&FEL’“Z%% R Bs K & 7R B e an{al
AR - WIRREBTEANEBERESE
T MEERSENAREEIMBEYE
W MR EIE R - BB E IR M/AEZIA B
ARBEATPRHEM N LR
& ERAE ERVMHHREREZES) 2
BEISR U AR TS U AREENTE

BEMBREEE2F(RBUR SN
ZUABRMD RERZ Z)

I IBAHERT LRI R E — R B AR < fE
B/ EEAZMBARZERARKMRER

B MABRREZNBARMBEERET
FAEMRE 2 BN T AEARE 980T - ORI/
RAVBYMEHR 2 GFTRIETTE - BT
(M 2ERZHB) B EES N IRE o WWIRERTR
EAMB AR R ER, BE XA
SR ARBR D ST - A HE e e SR AR 2 48
e ERBRRIZER - MEAREERA
SMEMEIFTIS BB IR MAEL 2 BEEH
AFERHZMA - IR FERRYTEY
REBZHBEHRREXEATE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.1

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

(Continued)
HK (IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers

HK (IFRIC) -

account for transfer of items of property, plant and equipment by

Int 18 was issued in February 2009. It clarifies how to

entities that receive such transfers from their customers. The
Interpretation also applies to agreements in which an entity receives
cash from a customer when that amount of cash must be used only
to construct or acquire an item of property, plant and equipment
and the entity must then use that item to provide the customer with
ongoing access to supply of goods and/or services. The Group is
not expected to be impacted by applying HK (IFRIC) — Int 18.

HKFRS 2 Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transaction

The amended Standard addresses the accounting in the separate
financial statements of a subsidiary when its suppliers/employees
will receive cash payments from the parent that are linked to the
price of the equity instruments of an entity in the group. The
parent, and not the entity, has the obligation to deliver cash. The
amendments state that the entity shall account for the transaction
with its suppliers/employees as equity-settled, and recognise a
corresponding increase in equity as a contribution from its parent.
The subsidiary shall remeasure the cost of the transaction
subsequently for any changes resulting from non-market vesting
conditions. The adoption of these amendments is not expected

to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issue

The amendment requires rights issues to be classified as equity
if they are issued for a fixed amount of cash regardless of the
currency in which the exercise price is denominated, provided
they are offered on a pro rata basis to all owners of the same
class of equity. The adoption of this amendment is not expected

to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity

Instruments

The interpretation clarifies the accounting by the debtor when
the debtor renegotiates the terms of its debt with the result that
the liability is extinguished through issuing its own equity
instruments to the creditor (i.e. a “debt for equity swap”). A gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the
fair value of the equity instruments issued and the carrying
amount of the financial liability. The adoption of this interpretation
is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s

financial statements.
HKAS 24 Related party disclosures

The revised Standard introduces an exemption from all of the
disclosure requirements of IAS/HKAS 24 for transactions among
government-related entities and the government. The Standard
also clarifies and simplifies the definition of a related party. The
adoption of the revised Standard results in revised disclosures
but does not have an impact on the financial position or the

comprehensive income of the Group.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their Interaction

The interpretation clarifies when refunds or reductions in future
contributions for defined benefit type of employee benefits should
be regarded as available and how a minimum funding requirement
might affect the availability of reductions in future contributions
or might give rise to a liability. The Group does not operate any
defined benefit type of employee benefits. This interpretation is

not relevant to the Group.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Part 1: Classification and

Measurement

HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and replaces those parts
of HKAS 39 relating to the classification and measurement of

financial assets. Key features are as follows:

Financial assets are required to be classified into two
measurement categories: those to be measured subsequently at
fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at amortised
cost. The decision is to be made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow

characteristics of the instruments.

An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only
if it is a debt instrument and both the objective of the entity’s
business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual
cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent only
payments of principal and interest (that is, it has only “basic loan
features”). All other debt instruments are to be measured at fair

value through profit or loss.

All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at fair
value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will be
measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other equity
instruments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial
recognition, to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains
and losses through other comprehensive income rather than profit
and loss. There is to be no recycling of fair value gains and losses
to profit and loss. This election may be made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. Dividends are to be presented in profit and

loss, as long as they represent a return on investment.

While adoption of HKFRS 9 is mandatory from 1 January 2013,

earlier adoption is permitted.

The Group is considering the implications of the Standard, the

impact on the Group and the timing of its adoption by the Group.
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2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
(¢) Improvements to HKFRS

“Improvements to HKFRS” contains numerous amendments to
HKFRS which the HKICPA consider non-urgent but necessary.
“Improvements to HKFRS” comprise amendments that result in
accounting changes for presentation, recognition or
measurement purposes as well as terminology or editorial
amendments related to a variety of individual HKFRS. Most of
the amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009 or 1 January 2010 respectively, with earlier
adoption permitted. No material changes to the Group’s
accounting policies are expected as a result of these

amendments.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements

of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(@)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group

controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the

date that control ceases.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)  Subsidiaries (Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate

share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the

statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowances for impairment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity holders of the company. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also

recorded in equity.

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investment in an associate includes goodwill (net of any

accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the

income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investments
in associate are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted by the Company

on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is subject
to joint control and none of the participating parties has unilateral

control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the
results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s

share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair value

through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction

costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash

flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained a
part at the same effective interest rate as the other participants. Wealth
management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised

rateably over the period the service is provided.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s

right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets
2.6.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition, except for subsequent reclassification

meeting specified definition of relevant asset reclassification.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss

at inception.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as

held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

The Group designates a financial asset upon initial recognition as
designated at fair value through profit or loss (fair value option) if

the following criteria are met:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on

them on different bases;
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(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

(i) A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
this is the basis on which information about the assets is
provided internally to the key management personnel such

as the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(iii)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are

not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial assets for which the fair value option is applied are
recognised in the statement of financial position as “Financial

assets designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held for
trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-for-
sale; or (c) those for which the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of

credit deterioration.

(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates,

exchange rates or equity prices.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s

management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held for trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial assets
are permitted to be reclassified out of the held for trading category only
in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and
highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition, the Group may
choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet the definition of
loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading or available-for-sale
categories if the Group has the intention and ability to hold these
financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of

reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases in
estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require adjustment

to the effective interest rates prospectively.

On reclassification of a financial asset out of the “at fair value through
profit or loss” category, all embedded derivatives are re-assessed and,

if necessary, separately accounted for.

2.6.3 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the

asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The bases for the determination of fair value of financial assets are set
out in Note 3.5(a).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

2.6.3 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair
value at inception are included directly in the income statement
and are reported as part of “Net trading income”. Interest income
and expense and dividend income and expenses derived from
and incurred on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are included under “Net trading (loss)/income” in the consolidated

income statement.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any
impairment loss. For loans and receivables that are subject to
fair value hedge arrangements, the hedged elements of the loans

and receivables hedged are carried at fair value.

(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at fair
value which is the cash given including any transaction costs.
They are measured subsequently at fair value with gains and
losses (except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses) recognised in equity and reported in the reconciliation
from results of the year to total comprehensive income until the

financial assets are derecognised.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity and reported in the reconciliation from results of the year
to total comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Foreign
currency gains and losses on monetary assets classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement under “Other

operating income”.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

2.6.3 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

2.7

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised at fair value
including direct and incremental transaction costs and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to receive

cash flows have expired.

Interest is included in the consolidated income statement and is
reported as “Net interest income”. If a held-to-maturity investment
is determined to be impaired, the impairment is reported as a
deduction from the carrying value of the investment and
recognised in the separate income statement as impairment

charge on held-to-maturity investments.

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of

financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is

objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal and

interest;

° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for
example, high debt-to-equity ratio, low net income as a

percentage of sales);
° Breach of loan covenants or conditions;
° Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
° Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

° Downgrading below investment grade level.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.7

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
that asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s

fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and

selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according

to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.7

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis
of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted
on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of

conditions in the historical period that do not currently exist.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment status,
or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses
in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss

estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off after
all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the

allowances for loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in

the income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in
determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement, is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income

statement.

(c)  Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment
or individually significant and whose terms have been
renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but are
treated as new loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if past

due again is considered to be and disclosed as past due loans.

2.8 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All
financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value. The bases for the determination of fair value of financial

liabilities are set out in Note 3.5(a).

(@  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss

at inception.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.8

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is
carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair

value are recognised in the income statement.

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through profit

or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on

them on different bases; or

(i) A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to the
key management personnel such as the Board of Directors

and Chief Executive Officer; or

(ili)  Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are

not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
include the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised under “Net trading

(loss)/income” in the consolidated income statement.

(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of
transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the other

financial liabilities using the effective interest method.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.8 Financial liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Other financial liabilities (Continued)

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the
statement of financial position, and the difference between the
carrying amount of a liability and the consideration paid is
accounted for as a gain or loss in the consolidated income

statement.

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at their fair value. The bases for the determination of fair value of
derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 3.5(a). All derivatives
are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when

fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such as
the conversion option in a convertible bond where it is not settled by
exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of own equity instrument, are treated as separate derivatives
when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement unless the Group chooses to designate the hybrid contracts

at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities.
Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way

provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting

changes in fair values of hedged items.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

(@)  Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement
under “Net trading income — Net gains/(losses) arising from
financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together with
any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are
attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss
over the period to maturity and remains in retained earnings until

the disposal of the hedged item.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income statement under “Net trading income”.
For derivatives that are managed in conjunction with designated
financial assets or financial liabilities, the gains and losses arising
from changes in their fair value are included under “Net trading
income — Net gains/(losses) from financial instruments designated
at fair value through profit or loss”.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle

on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject to
repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to other
banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals, as
appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“reverse
repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks or
customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the
agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to

counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements (Continued)

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income. The

obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading liability.

2.12 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position with

appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made.

2.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee as its chief operating

decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs being
eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment

performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury, Overseas

Banking and Others.

2.14 Foreign currency translation
(@  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation currency and the

functional currency of the Company and major part of the Group.
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2.14

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised

in the income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within the
corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses on other
comprehensive income items are presented in the statement of

comprehensive income within the corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as available-for-sale, a
distinction is made between translation differences resulting from
changes in amortised cost of the assets and other changes in the
carrying amount of the assets. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the income
statement, and those related to changes in the carrying amount,

except for impairment, are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are

included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation

currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of

that statement of financial position;
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies (Continued)

(i)  income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of

the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are

reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as

part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign

entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets

Leasehold properties comprising land and buildings held on which a
reliable estimate is not available on the split of the carrying value
attributable to each of the land and building elements are accounted
for as finance leases and shown at fair value, based on periodic, and at
least triennial, valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All
other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.15 Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to premises revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged
against fair value reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are

expensed in the income statement.

Depreciation of premises and other fixed assets is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

= Premises Over the remaining period of
lease

- Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives

and motor vehicles generally between 5 and 10

years

The difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of premises charged to the income statement and depreciation
based on the premises’ original cost is transferred from premises

revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted

if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.18).

2.16 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the

consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating lease and

buildings held under finance lease.

Land held under operating lease is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a

finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related

transaction costs.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.16 Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external valuers.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as
investment property, or for which the market has become less active,

continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental
income from current leases and assumptions about rental income from

future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the

income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises and other fixed
assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous

impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement.

2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually
for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit

from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or other
legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They include core
deposits, contracts and customer relationships intangible assets, and
trade names. Intangible assets are stated at cost less amortisation
based on estimated useful lives, and/or accumulated impairment

losses.

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-

financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use
are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity. In this case, the tax is

recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset

is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these

losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity, is
also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant

investments.

2.20 Employee benefits
(@)  Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by

the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to

vesting fully in the contributions.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group operates a cash settled, share-based compensation
plan, which requires the Group to pay the intrinsic value of the
share option to a grantee at the date of exercise. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted. At each end of the
reporting period, the Group will re-measure the fair value of the
share options and any change is recognised in the income

statement.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the

end of the reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation

can be made.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when:
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.22 Leases
(@  Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income

statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets leased
out are included in fixed assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position. They are depreciated over their expected useful
lives on a basis consistent with similar owned fixed assets. Rental
income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included as liabilities. The investment properties acquired under

finance leases are carried at their fair value.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment

outstanding for each accounting period.

2.23 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the

Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the financial

statements in the period in which they are approved by shareholders.

2.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date
of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to cash and are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import

duties.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements
at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured
at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised.
Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantees are taken to

the income statement.

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of

obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Continued)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a

provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the control

of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3.  Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the
financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable consequence
of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-
to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,

products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee
under the authority delegated by the Board oversees and guides the
management of different risks which are more particularly managed
and dealt with by the Group Risk Division and different functional
committees. In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the

independent review of risk management and the control environment.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest

rate and other price risk.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing these funds in high-quality assets. The Group
seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term funds and
lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining sufficient

liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its lending
to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance and other

bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter instruments, including
derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market movements in
equities and bonds and in currency, interest rate and commodity prices.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposure that can be
taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the use of
derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts

required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate term liabilities. Certain of these
financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms
of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of each
fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on a
prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that do
not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting are
discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair value
hedge.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties may
default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,

and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee and for each business
division a credit committee made up of certain Executive Directors and
senior credit officers and chaired by the Chief Executive. Each credit
committee has the responsibility for formulating and revising credit
policies and procedures for that division within the parameters of the
Group Risk Policy and regulatory framework. Credit policies and
procedures define the credit assessment and approval criteria and
guidelines, use of scoring, review and monitoring process and the

systems of loan classification and impairment.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis, in
accordance with the credit approval and review policies, by evaluating
the credit-worthiness of different types of customers and counterparties
based on assessment of business, financial, market and industry risks
applicable to the types of loans, collateral and counterparty dealings
including dealing in or use of derivative financial instruments. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies and
are approved by different levels of management based upon established
guidelines. Credit exposures, limits and asset quality are regularly
monitored and controlled by management, credit committees and
Group Risk Division. The Group’s internal auditors conduct regular
reviews and audits to ensure compliance with credit policies and

procedures and regulatory guidelines.

The individual business’ credit policies also establish policies and
processes for the approval and review of new products and activities,
together with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes

and impairment policies.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement

(@) Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and
to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,
the Group reflects three components (i) the differentiation of credit
risk of the client or counterparty on its contractual obligations; (ii)
current exposures to the counterparty and its likely future
development, from which the Group derive the “exposure at
default”; and (iii) the likely loss on the defaulted obligations after

considering recovery and collateral realisation.

These credit risk measurements, which operate to control and
monitor credit performance of individual and pools of borrowers
through on-going credit review, loan classification, collection,
credit risk mitigation including realisation of collateral, and
provision of impairment on problem loans as required by the
Group’s credit policies and procedures, and regulatory guidelines,
are embedded in the Group’s daily operational management.
Based on the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance, the Group is also required to assess expected loss of
individual and portfolios of credits, and to set aside sufficient loan
loss reserve against any expected loss. The operational
measurements to also cover expected losses can be contrasted
with impairment allowances required under HKAS 39, which are
based on losses that have been incurred at the end of the
reporting period (the “incurred loss model”) rather than expected
loss (Note 3.2.3).

(i) The Group assesses the credit quality of individual
counterparties using internal rating tools tailored to the
various categories of counterparty. They have been
developed internally and combine general analysis and
judgements of credit officers, and are reviewed, where
appropriate, by comparison with externally available data.
Clients of the Group are segmented into three broad rating
classes. The Group’s rating scale, which is shown in Note
3.2.3, differentiates credit quality for each rating class. This
means that, in principle, exposures migrate between
classes as the assessment of credit quality and business
environment changes. The rating tools are kept under
review and upgraded as necessary. The Group regularly
reviews the performance of the rating and their predictive

power with regard to default events.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(@ Loans and advances (Continued)

(i) (Continued)
The Group uses both internal data and market information
(e.g. credit rating migration, credit scoring) for internal credit
risk assessment. Observed migration data per rating
category vary year on year, especially over an economic

cycle.

(i)  Exposure at default is based on the amounts the Group
expects to be owed at the time of default. For example, for
a loan, exposure at default is the face value. For a
commitment, the Group includes any amount already drawn
plus the further amount that may have been drawn by the

time of default, should it occur.

(i)  Estimated credit loss or loss severity represents the Group’s
expectation of the event of loss on a claim should default
occur. It is based on actual loss experience and typically
varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim

and availability of collateral or other credit risk mitigation.

(b)  Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds
are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and standby
letters of credit — which represent irrevocable assurances that
the Group will make payments in the event that a customer cannot
meet its obligations to third parties — carry the same credit risk as
loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit — which are
written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer
authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Group up to a
stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions — are
normally collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to
which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct
lending.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(b)  Credit-related commitments (Continued)

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees
or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to
extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the
likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments,
as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon
customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Group
monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because
longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of

credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

(c) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external rating such as
Standard & Poor’s rating or their equivalents are used by Group
Risk Division for managing the credit risk exposures. The
investments in these securities and bills are made to gain a better
credit quality, to diversify risk exposures and income streams,
and to maintain a readily available source of funds to meet the

funding and liquidity requirement of the Group from time to time.

(d) Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety
of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps and
options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange and
equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for both
trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in using
derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by acting
as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to risks and
to generate revenues through trading activities within acceptable

limits.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(@
(i)

(i)

Derivatives (Continued)

Derivatives held or issued for trading purposes

The Group transacts derivative contracts on behalf of
customers or to address customer demands in structuring
tailored derivatives. The Group also takes proprietary
positions for its own accounts. Trading derivative products
used by the Group are primarily over-the-counter
derivatives transacted based on interest rates, foreign

exchange rates, credit spread and equity prices.

Derivatives held or issued for hedging purposes

Derivatives held for hedging purposes primarily consist of
derivative instruments or contracts used to manage interest
rate risk and foreign exchange risk. All of these are over-

the-counter derivatives.

The Group uses the following derivative instruments:

@)

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase
foreign and domestic currency, including undelivered spot
transactions. Foreign currency and interest rate futures are
contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount
based on changes in currency rates or interest rates or to
buy or sell foreign currency or a financial instrument on a
future date at a specified price, established in an organised
financial market. The credit risk is negligible, as futures
contracts are collateralised by cash or marketable
securities, and changes in the futures contract value are

settled daily with the exchange.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(@
(ii)

(i)

Derivatives (Continued)

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result
in an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates
(for example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination
of all these (i.e., cross-currency interest rate swaps). No
exchange of principal takes place, except for certain
currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk represents the
potential cost to replace the swap contracts if
counterparties fail to perform their obligation. This risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current
fair value, a proportion of the notional amount of the
contracts and the liquidity of the market. To control the level
of credit risk taken, the Group assesses counterparties

using the same techniques as for its lending activities.

Foreign currency and interest rate options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the
purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to
buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or
during a set period, a specific amount of a foreign currency
or a financial instrument at a predetermined price. The seller
receives a premium from the purchaser in consideration for
the assumption of foreign exchange or interest rate risk.
Options may be either exchange-traded or negotiated
between the Group and a customer. The Group is exposed
to credit risk on purchased options only, and only to the

extent of their carrying amount, which is their fair value.

The Group may be exposed to counterparty risk arising from its

positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either

“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market

gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled

settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not receiving

the expected cash value of a derivative transaction or upon the

expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on
the statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate
the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value
of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s
exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments
become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result
of fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices and credit market conditions. The aggregate
contractual or notional amount of derivative financial instruments
on hand, the extent to which instruments are favourable or
unfavourable, and thus the aggregate fair values of derivative
financial assets and liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time

to time.

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the amount
subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract or notional values used to

express the volume of instruments outstanding.

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages, controls and limits concentrations of credit risk
wherever they are identified — in particular, to individual counterparties

and groups, and to industries and countries.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing
limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or
groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such
risks are monitored on a revolving basis and are subject to an annual or
more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level
of credit risk by product, industry sector and by country are approved

by relevant credit committees and Group Risk Division.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

The exposure to any one borrower or counterparty including banks and

brokers is further restricted by sub-limits covering on— and off— balance

sheet exposures, and daily delivery risk limits in relation to trading items

such as forward foreign exchange contracts. Actual exposures against

limits are monitored daily.

Exposures to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of

the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and

capital repayment obligations and by regular review and revision of

these limits where appropriate.

To avoid concentration of risk, large exposures to individual customers

or related groups are limited to a percentage of the capital base, and

exposures to industry sectors and countries/regions are managed

within approved limits to achieve a balanced portfolio.

(@ Loans and advances

In order to mitigate the credit risk and where appropriate, the
Group will obtain collateral to support the credit facility. To control
credit risk exposure to counterparty arising from derivative
positions, the Group limits its derivative dealings with approved
financial institutions, and uses established market practices on
credit support and collateral settlement to reduce credit risk
exposure to derivative counterparties. Overall credit risk limit for
each financial institution counterparty, including valuation limit
for derivatives, is approved by the Group Credit Committee with
reference to the financial strength and credit rating of each
counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral and their
characteristics are established within the credit policies, as are

the respective margins of finance.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile,

cashflow position and ability to repay.

The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate
credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of security
for funds advanced, which is a common practice. The Group
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types

for loans and advances are:
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

(@ Loans and advances (Continued)

o Mortgages over residential properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory

and accounts receivable; and

o Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities

and equities.

Longer-term finance and lending to corporate entities are
generally secured; revolving individual credit facilities are
generally unsecured. In addition, in order to minimise credit loss,
the Group will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual

loans and advances.

(b)  Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,

which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments.

(c) Derivatives

Since all counterparties for derivatives trading are financial
institutions, the risk is managed as part of the credit risk control
and monitoring process in respect of financial institutions
including credit controls such as setting individual limit for
valuation risk, daily settlement limits and performing periodic
credit assessment for each counterparty. Moreover, the Group
requires all derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association (“ISDA”)
Agreement in order to follow the standardised market practice of
close-out arrangement in the event of default, settlement

procedure, valuation/pricing methods.

Collateral or other security is not usually obtained for credit risk
exposures on these instruments, except where the Group requires

margin deposits from counterparties.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c) Derivatives (Continued)

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by
entering into master netting arrangements with counterparties
with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions.
Master netting arrangements do not generally result in an offset
of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position, as
transactions are usually settled on a gross basis. However, the
credit risk associated with favourable contracts is reduced by a
master netting arrangement to the extent that if an event of default
occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated and

settled on a net basis.

The Group’s overall exposure to credit risk on derivative
instruments subject to master netting arrangements can change
substantially within a short period, as it is affected by each

transaction subject to the arrangement.

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies

The internal rating system described in Note 3.2.1 focuses more on
credit-quality assessment from the inception of the lending and
investment activities. In contrast, impairment allowances are recognised
for financial reporting purposes only for losses that have been incurred
at the end of the reporting period based on objective evidence of
impairment (see Note 2.7). Due to the different approaches applied, the
amount of incurred credit losses provided for in the financial statements
may be different from the amount determined from other loss estimation
approach that is used for internal operational management and banking

regulation purposes.

The impairment allowance shown in the statement of financial position
at year-end is derived from each of the three broad internal rating
grades. However, the majority of the impairment allowance comes from
the bottom two gradings. The table below shows the percentage of the
Group’s on-balance sheet items relating to loans and advances and
the associated impairment allowance covering on— and off-balance

sheet amounts for each of these broad internal rating categories.
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

—EEZhE —TENE
2009 2008

AEERE B

HE T HE ST

Bak ERasd

Impairment Impairment

ERREBR allowance  EFRR#X allowance

Loans and as a % of Loans and as a % of

advances loan balance advances loan balance

58 Group % % % %
E& Grades

1-1FE% 1 - pass 97.9 0.5 97.1 0.3

2 - FRlEE 2 - special mention 0.5 11.3 1.0 8.1

3 - RABHAT 3 - sub-standard or below 1.6 42.2 1.9 54.0

100.0 100.0

BRAAREBZEBERTER < EEF D ERME
WwoEMT

E—SRIER BEARERBRIGFRERT
ZE-BENR - REBRARS DBEARY
HA 2B BHENERAS 2N L TEE -

F_ERFRET B ARERNLERFRR
P 2B TR KRERALBREE » R
REBHEERRERL  AIAESAKERRE
B8k -

FE=FRREFIAT | B2 R EBANFLE KRR
ERRZBET—EFT=F KKRERALERSE
REER RN EZ N - XA E2ERE AR
SELEZRHKHERRZERB A FER B
HAARAE R/ SFBBRZER » XEFFZ
ERERBMABE T REWERSEERD -

As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,

the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Grade 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal loan
grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current in
meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest and

principal is not in doubt.

Grade 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the

Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Grade 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13 of the
Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in which
borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely to
jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the Group
expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account
the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that are considered

uncollectible after all collection options have been exhausted.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

The internal rating tool assists management to determine whether
objective evidence of impairment exists under HKAS 39, which is based

on the following criteria generally considered by the Group:

° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to

debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

o Breach of loan covenants or conditions;
° Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;
° Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and

° Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above materiality thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances warrant. Impairment allowances on
individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the
incurred loss at the end of the reporting period on a case-by-case basis,
and are applied to all individually significant accounts. The assessment
normally encompasses collateral held (including re-confirmation of its
enforceability) and the anticipated receipts and liquidating collaterals

for that individual account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for: (i)
portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below materiality
thresholds; and (ii) losses that have been incurred but have not yet
been identified, by using the available historical experience,

experienced judgement and statistical techniques.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other

credit enhancements

“BERF —TIN\H
Group 2009 2008

FREEABRRANEEZERERRENT :

& RIERITH A 2R
FEERITH) 17 3K
FHIEEERENE
BENRAFEFAEEEEY
AFABRHNERIEE
MEEBMIA
BEFERREBR

B AE XK
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Credit risk exposures relating to
on-balance sheet assets are as follows:

Cash and balances with banks 10,453,366 12,665,167
Placements with banks 4,282,749 1,656,950
Trading securities 5,595,316 1,875,564
Financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss 11,232 565,290
Derivative financial instruments 588,778 1,066,439

Loans and advances to customers
Loans to individuals

— Credit cards 3,289,460 3,482,972

— Mortgages 18,972,569 18,526,215

— Others 3,283,575 3,802,967

Loans to corporate entities

— Term loans 11,317,643 10,205,960

— Mortgages 8,088,435 8,496,416

— Trade finance 3,281,532 4,638,482

— Others 8,931,945 11,846,061
Loans and advances to banks 150,000 179,226
Other assets 1,544,674 2,281,945
Investments in securities included in

the loans and receivables category 8,799,348 6,896,646
Available-for-sale securities

— debt securities 11,911,320 14,084,911
Held-to-maturity securities 8,598,408 6,159,264

109,100,350 108,430,475

Credit risk exposures relating to
off-balance sheet items are as follows:

Financial guarantees and other credit

related contingent liabilities 1,179,965 1,075,576
Loan commitments and other credit
related commitments 36,885,225 36,608,944

38,065,190 37,684,520

At 31 December 147,165,540 146,114,995

ERINFAAEER=ZZETNERZZEZENFE+=
A=+—BE—REBREBEN TR - %A
RRAFTAFAZ BRI EMEERARZE into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements
EEb attached.

The above table represents a worse case scenario of credit risk

exposure to the Group at 31 December 2009 and 2008, without taking

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Fi & 45 1 1 B0 B A (4

AEBEZEERAALETIIFMMIEE
i :

o EXRRBIEATI%WDIBERNIBITHRE
GRAREZ=ESHRN (=T NE
3%)

o MHERZEANEZEBERIIBEM®
B

o ENRRBFMBETRIT%AES K E(ER
WE(ZEZENE  95%)

e (AR AREZEFERRBRLEP
EREBFAEN1.0%(ZTZT)\F
1.7%)  KIBTERR=_ZZNE+=A
E+*EIIEﬁ1I)D:|J>JWE(:§§}\¢ :
/) R

o BEEBEHREMESFEEPEIB0% (=
ZN\F : 60%) ZDEA-EERT -

3.2.5 Bk R #k
ERKBFRBMT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

n

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other

credit enhancements (Continued)

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed

with reference to the following:

° 3% of the loans and advances portfolio were categorised in the

top three grades of the internal rating system (2008: 3%);

° Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

° 97% of the loans and advances portfolio were considered to be
neither past due nor individually impaired (2008: 95%);

° Loans and advances to customers that were either individually or
collectively impaired constituted 1.0% (2008: 1.7%) of the total
loans and advances to customers. No advances to banks were
individually impaired as at 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil); and

° More than 60% (2008: 60%) of the investments in debt securities

and other bills have at least A- credit rating.

3.2.5 Loans and advances

Loans and advances are summarised as follows:

ZBENF —ETNFE
2009 2008
BEFER RITENK ERER RITER
RBRK RERK K ER R EF
Loans and Loans and Loans and Loans and

advances to advancesto advancesto  advances to

£8 Group customers banks customers banks
g B N B BRI E Neither past due nor individually

impaired 55,383,407 150,000 57,882,997 179,226
wE AR ERRE Past due but not individually impaired 1,252,353 - 2,102,897 =
& BB E Individually impaired 529,399 - 1,013,179 -
B Gross 57,165,159 150,000 60,999,073 179,226
o OREER Less: allowance for impairment (674,435) (155) (849,554) =
F R Net 56,490,724 149,845 60,149,519 179,226

WPl KHRTEBEERLR —ZEENFFR
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. B R R A B ()

32 [ SRR ()

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Bk R #Hk () 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
—EEAF —EEN\F
EFEXR REER
&ﬂ%’ﬂ &@m}\
2009 2008
Loans and Loans and
advances to advances to
£8 Group customers customers
HEERRBR Impaired loans and advances

— AR E (GEH)
REREGEL)

REER
— AR GER)
- RAFHE (FE2)
FHEMRDQFE

RMEERARBREEFER
RBFBBEZEDL

* ERRATEDRBERDHERERREE
7% MERREEEE -

B, ERREERDZEEMRERREERELET
— MR RRENTEREERER (18
REMDWER - MRBEREHEZERZ AT
AR\ REEXNTE - WA SEHEE -

L. HFEREERRBIIEZENGSEEERER
ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁfﬁﬁﬂ&% HEEARREESBEAN X
ZERRBR - ZEN LM ES 2 BEERES
REEET BB S MEERN —&D

A. NUEERREEFEEZEEERERRN T A=+
—RAEZEMAMEE -

- Individually impaired (Note (a)) 529,399 1,013,179

— Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 17,767 23,571
547,166 1,036,750

Impairment allowances made

- Individually assessed (Note (c)) (316,378) (5650,909)

- Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (16,941) (22,367)
(333,319) (573,276)
213,847 463,474

Fair value of collaterals held* 215,514 463,556

Impaired loans and advances as a % of

total loans and advances to customers 0.96% 1.70%

*

Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market value of
collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Note:

(@) Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be reliably
estimated.

(b) Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date. The
collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a part
of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

(c) The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into

account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. R\ BEAE EL ()
3.2 fEEmEbE @)
3.2.5 Bk R #Hk ()

BRI 2GR 2 R (B 2 1 42 58 /2674,590,000/% 7T
(ZZZ)\£ : 849,554,000/87C) * & LHE B
HE R 2 %£1%316,378,000/8 T (Z T T )\ £ -
550,909,000/ 7T) & #iizhr & EEFEH ER 2
47 A ¥ {5 358,212,000 T (Z T T )\ F
298,645,000/ 7T) ° MfizF25REEZ REFPEXK
REF - RITERRBRKREALR B (EL 2 RE
EHEER o

HE_ZTNF+-_A=1+—HILFE ~A5E
ZERRBSRETETIR6.3% © BEARKEEAFT
SRBREMBEBRDETNRAERDIRE - A8
BEEBRMEFARNTARBENEEN G - BH
MMt EERE - RETRAFEEENRER
E®zHBEREERH - RBDEBEEEINEER
REBREAIEEN AEEREBERTEEERR
IHEERRZARAEESLIRT - BARELE
EERERRR BRI 2 EifmEEAt R K
RHEETZRitzd/ I dEs RRETER
FE2ZWA - BE - FEFD - BHZEFRMT
REFERAFZEERE  ROEERAMER
REETEERR -

NN KR TEERR D A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

n

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances is
HK$674,590,000 (2008: HK$849,554,000), comprising an allowance of
HK$316,378,000 (2008: HK$550,909,000) for the individually impaired
loans and a collective allowance of HK$358,212,000 (2008:
HK$298,645,000) provided on loans assessed on a collective basis.
Further information on the impairment allowances maintained for each
of loans and advances to customers, loans and advances to banks,

and other accounts is provided in Note 25.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group’s total loans and
advances decreased by 6.3%. When entering into new markets or
expanding business focus or allocation to different loan segments, the
Group undertakes proper risk assessment in accordance with credit
policies and procedures, review and approval of new risk limits, financial
and credit reviews with an emphasis on proper risk and return balance.
In order to minimise the potential increase of credit risk exposure, the
Group focused more on the business with large corporate enterprises
or banks with good credit rating, extending credit to a diversified pool
of small-and-medium sized enterprises approved with proper
consideration of their risk profiles and collateral pledged to the Group,
and granting secured and unsecured credit to retail customers based
on customers’ income, occupation, credit scoring, collateral to be

pledged, and credit limit allowed for different loan types.
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. B R R A B ()

32 [ SRR ()

3.2.5 Bk R #Hk ()

(FF) B R R A2 (] 5 Bl (e < B Ak R B 50 (@)

EREBFEEHEERERERRRE
ERIRET — 2 EAREBRA 2 AEDTF

MAGAEH A -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

impaired

Loans and advances neither past due nor individually

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were

neither past due nor individually impaired is normally assessed

with reference to the internal rating system adopted by the Group.

EFEHR
BREE ROER
BABERF) it Total loans R BHEHE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities and Loans
BRF ESRE advances and
Group Credit #EER Hih REER Trade i to  advances
At 31 December 2009 cards Mortgages Others Mortgages finance Others customers  to banks
F& Grades:
1-F% 1 - pass 3,241,443 18,686,537 3,197,348 7,884,547 3,196,359 7,830,666 55,262,054 150,000
2-5RIBE 2 - special mention - - - 18,410 4,897 26,218 55,829 -
3-RBIAT 3 - sub-standard or below 14 2,971 - 19,123 3,084 34,332 65,524 -
CE Total 3241457 18,689,508 3,197,348 7,922,080 3204340 7,891,216 55,383,407 150,000
ERERR
BRAE  ROER
HAEERP) o Total loans R #7148
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities and Loans
&5 HiRS 2502 advances and
“EE\E Group Credit  RIBEH £t RIBER Trade £t to  advances
T-A=t+-H At 31 December 2008 cards  Mortgages Others Mortgages finance Others  customers  to banks
F& Grades:
1-F% 1 -pass 3,414,885 18,184,314 3,681,508 8,213,246 4247311 9,864,507 57,717,347 179,226
2-FHl@ET 2 - special mention - - - 21,265 14,206 96,897 145,965 -
3- RRHMUT 3 - sub-standard or below 130 3,899 = 5735 1,700 8,221 19,685 =
ait Total 3,415,015 18,188,213 3,681,508 8,246,246 4263217 9,969,625 57,882,997 179,226

ERESIATER 2 ZBERLCEEBER

#on 2 B BB R KRR E R ARE °

Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were

assessed as not impaired after taking into consideration the

values and recovery of collaterals.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HRE R RE A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
32 fERmEBE &) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Bk R Hak (4) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(Z) BEHERREZ BEHREBHL (b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
RFERR
BRAE
BABEEF) it Total loans
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities and
BRF ESRE advances
&8 Group Credit ~ RBEX Hth  HHER  BBER Trade Hth to
ZEEAETZA=1—-H At31December 2009 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
BH-EARUT Past due up to 1 month 22,571 221,957 58,847 - 100,275 19,349 481,780 904,779
BH-EANEZE=A  Pastduemorethan 1 month
and up to 3 months 15,149 41,300 17,925 27,000 330 459 123,928 226,091
BE=EANLZAMEA  Pastdue more than 3 months
and up to 6 months 7,110 1,119 4,586 - 13,732 - 33,756 60,903
BHAEANE Past due more than 6 months 3,173 450 1,039 - 16,026 - 39,802 60,580
=X Total 48,003 265,426 82,397 27,000 130,363 19,808 679,356 1,252,353
BERARIATE Fair value of collaterals* - 265,165 3,04 27,000 128,438 12,849 640,441 1,076,934
ZPENR
BHEE
BAEEZF) % Total loans
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities and
BR® EU L advances
3] Group Credit  RBE £ BHER RBEX Trade Eih to
“EE\ETZF=1—H At31 December 2008 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
BH-EARUT Past due up to 1 month 39,412 267,641 84,567 - 173,333 89,694 943,790 1,698,437
BH-EANEZE=A  Pastduemore than 1 month
and up to 3 months 17,012 49,631 22,464 - 19,489 17,125 332,676 458,397
BE=EANLZAMEA  Pastdue more than 3 months
and up to 6 months 9,226 1,305 7,571 - 2,257 5,059 9,874 35,292
BHAEANE Past due more than 6 months 2,307 - 1,085 - - - 7,379 10,771
=X Total 67,957 318,577 115,687 - 195,079 111,878 1,293,719 2,102,897
REEARZ ATE" Fair value of collaterals* - 379 3,919 - 193,049 6,983 1,081,955 1,603,878
* B2 ATFEDBEEERRTHERER * Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market
REBERR  MEFBRIEEME ° value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
TEERER KRB - HiF @2 A FE Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of
DB EN G EREEELRIKAZMER collateral is based on valuation techniques commonly used for
EME o BEREE c HATENZEmMS the corresponding assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value
BA& 3k [F$A & B 45 B B AT o is updated by reference to market price or indexes of similar

assets.

BN KB TEBERAT T NLFFIHF
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. B B B (8D
3.2 fE&EFE ()
3.2.5 Bk R Bk ()
() EFIFEZ &P B #%

REERFTAREFHFEHER Z RS RATZ
E R ERF B 5K & #5104 529,399,0007%5
T (ZZZ)\4F : 1,013,179,000/ 7T) °

B BIR(E B 3R e B3R 2 4858 I AN 58 B P o
TEYE MR 2 #E R 4R fn X FEHZ IR B 3 47 48

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(c) Loans and advances to customers individually impaired

The individually impaired loans and advances to customers of
the Group before taking into consideration the cash flows from
collateral held is HK$529,399,000 (2008: HK$1,013,179,000).

The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans

and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related

T collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:
BEER
BAEBERF) ¥ — BRI
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
E58E allowances
8 Group REBER it  EHER  RBER Trade Hih A% -individual
ZEEAEFTZA=1—-H At31December 2009 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total assessment

{ERIREER Individually impaired loans 17,635 3,830 53,185 35,992 57,384 361,373 529,399 316,378
BEERRZATE Fair value of collaterals* 16,558 700 10,307 33,672 11,851 142,426 215,514

HEER

BAEERF) % — (&R

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment

B50E allowances

£8 Group BRER it BEEN  &BER Trade £ Aif -individual

“TF)\ETZF=1—H At31 December 2008 Mortgages Others ~ Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment

@S REER Individually impaired loans 19,425

5172 86,787 55,001 263,387 582,717 1,013,179 550,909

FEEARATE" Fair value of collaterals* 15,463

762 16,178 35,888 63,210 332,055 463,556

* BBz A FEDREERRTELER
RNEBHES  MEDREEME °

*

Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market
value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HRE R RE A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
32 fERmEBE &) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Bk R #Hk () 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(T) #mAA=EAUEZERREK (d)  Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
() BEKRERERERE ()  Gross amount of overdue loans
—EThF —EEN\F
2009 2008
BEAEE BHAEER
BRAE BEXeE
Gross 1H# %8 Gross hBsE
amount of Batk amount of ABat
overdue % of overdue % of
56 Group loans total loans total
KEEEFER Gross advances to customers
BEE - | which have been overdue for:
=EANUEEREA - six months or less but
over three months 102,346 0.18 203,430 0.33
- ~NMEAAREE-F - one year or less but
over six months 185,079 0.32 143,438 0.23
— —FE - over one year 267,141 0.47 131,592 0.22
554,566 0.97 478,460 0.78
(iy BEAREEZRERRIBRZREERR (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances against
s mE overdue loans and advances
BRRBXK EfR HEER

REBHE B BER @ B HiEE — @R
Outstanding Current FIRENG RERERH BRHEEE Impairment

amount of market Covered  Uncovered Other allowances

£8 Group loans and valueof  portionby  portionby  creditrisk - individual

“EBAETZA=t-H At 31 December 2009 advances  collateral  collateral  collateral  mitigation assessment
BAREREPERREH Overdue loans and advances

to customers 554,566 350,867 256,960 297,606 - 282,455

BRRBH B @ REREE

RERHH i il Bfn  AEE  — EREHE

Outstanding Curent  FrAfEHH RetAEHH ERFEREE  Imparment

amount of market Covered  Uncovered Other  allowances

&H Group loans and valueof  portionby  portionby  creditrisk - individual

“EEN\F+-A=1-H At 31 December 2008 advances collateral collateral collateral  mitigation  assessment
BAREREPERREH Overdue loans and advances

to customers 478,460 202,978 141,593 336,867 - 305,217

FrIFEfRnEERE e  BHREFREYD Collateral held mainly represented cash, pledged deposits and

¥ o properties.

BER KHETEBERAT T NLFFIHF
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. HRE R RE A B ()
32 {58 R )
3.2.5 B KBk (4)

(k) BEMHEN (EHEESRBH=1F
AU EREEBENZ )

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

() Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in

advances overdue for more than 3 months

“EEhE (EEASL  —TTNF GHEFEASK

&M Group 2009 % of total 2008 % of total
REER Advances to customers 236,637 0.41 294,506 0.48
RIEERE Impairment allowances 24,242 18,504

3.2.6 W HEHE 4
RERZA ZWEHEFRHOT :

3.2.6 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

“BEBNE —EEN\FE

&8 Group 2009 2008

BENE Nature of assets
4Bk ES Repossessed properties 49,109 53,075
Hh Others 8,240 26,090
57,349 79,165

WEHERRZRATEARREE - BURKBEAN
WEBEZ ERAREEE -

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the

borrowers concerned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. R RE A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
32 fERmEBE &) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.7 B #F 3.2.7 Debt securities
(FF) eV REIEIEE 2 RS IT (a)  Analysis by rating agency designation
TRINFRZZBZNERZZEZNFEFT A=+ The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating agency
— IR E 2 BT 2 BEBFES ° designation at 31 December 2009 and 2008.
BEMN

BEEE AVEFE THEERE BZIHRE ERK

F#¥EE Designated Available- Held-to- EW g
] Group Trading at fair for-sale maturity  Loans and &t
ZZZRFE+ZH=1t—H At31December 2009 assets value investments investments receivables Total
AAA AAA - - 621,338 - - 621,338
AA-EAA+ AA-to AA+ 5,574,457 - 3,729,687 633,513 - 9,937,657
A-EA+ A-to A+ 11,717 - 5,217,334 3,510,087 1,953,883 10,693,021
AR RIBERA- Rated but lower than A- 5,788 11,175 2,091,779 3,128,830 6,472,644 11,710,216
RETR Unrated 3,354 57 251,182 1,325,978 372,821 1,953,392
=) Total 5,595,316 11,232 11,911,320 8,598,408 8,799,348 34,915,624

EEMN

FEEE  ATERE THEERE SEIEHERE ERR

% &E  Designated Available- Held-to- eI FRIE
& Group Trading at fair for-sale maturity Loans and B
“ZETEN\F+-A=1+—H At31December 2008 assets value  investments  investments  receivables Total
AAA AAA - - 410,039 77,499 - 487,538
AA-ZEAA+ AA-to AA+ 1,836,990 418,833 2,297,849 196,389 103,097 4,853,158
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 29,416 - 5,927,231 3,551,674 2,987,195 12,495,516
B RBERA- Rated but lower than A- 5,655 145,312 4,622,513 2,333,702 3,806,354 10,913,536
AEAR Unrated 3,503 1,145 827,279 - - 831,927
il Total 1,875,564 565,290 14,084,911 6,159,264 6,896,646 29,581,675

WO KR TEBERAT T NLFFIHF
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. T e A B ()
3.2 fE&EFE ()
3.2.7 HB#EF )

(2) ‘BB

REZZETNEVRERRE D EAER R EWFIE
ZHEFRE  RERERZTTZNFETA=1
—ARBHMIRMAT - RZEENET A=
+—B  WESBRERES

£

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.7 Debt securities (Continued)

(b)  Analysis by overdue period

Investments in securities classified as loans and receivables upon initial
recognition in 2009 were overdue at the time of recognition, and as at
31 December 2009 as shown below. There were no overdue debt

securities as at 31 December 2008.

—eBAE  —TINA
Group 2009 2008

RNRERE D ERERK
JEYRIE 2 B A

——FNE

RETERR DB RBBE R R EWRIEZ BEHFEE
HESRBEEIRERE LiuaSERE 2 EEEY
BRRERER ° ZEEFILERVIA R KR
—ETAF+-_A=t+—BZHEEEAH
302,236,000/ 7t (Fi7%26) °

RZZEZNF+ZA=+—8 ' @ARREZEY
B2 HEEE 102,758,000/ 7T o ALK E B EFE
HIESEEM SR - WE IR E17,941,00058 TR
BXH - BREFFBIISANIE26 ©

Investments in securities classified as
loans and receivables upon

initial recognition

Overdue for

— over one year 302,236 -

The entire portfolio of investments in securities classified as loans and
receivables upon initial recognition was recognised in the statement of
financial position at a value after taking into account the above overdue
status. The total carrying value at the time of initial recognition and as
at 31 December 2009 was HK$302,236,000 (Note 26).

The total gross amount of individually impaired debt securities as at 31
December 2009 was HK$102,758,000. No collateral is held by the
Group, and impairment charge amounting to HK$17,941,000 had been
provided against the impaired debt securities. Please refer to Note 26

for further details.
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. B R R A B ()

32 {58 R )

3.2.8 M A 15 B m b < & b & 7 2l gy 2
o B
(F) E1
EFERCRESWIBREEZERKE
BB XSHUFREMSE - — 8BS

EEFNERTEREAXZHF IR ZE
B ARERES -

TRAXFERERRRHEDN - —TF
NFEREN 2 AREEBIE LA ERLZ IR

REBITE o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(@ Geographical sectors

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the counterparties after taking into
account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when
an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area which is

different from that of the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area. The position presented for 2008 has been
restated to incorporate the effect of transfer of risk under

guarantee arrangements described above.

“EERE CTIT)\F
+=HA=+—-H t=—A=+—H
As at As at

31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008

EFEREE
~E%
il
P
—Hfh

RZBZNERZFTENFEF+_A=1+—
H EEZREBRERRIZEZAEER
BErRBEBAREEERRETBBED ZN
TESBEESTBET -

WP K RTEBERAT T NLFFIHR

Gross advances to customers

- Hong Kong 48,779,171 52,094,469
- China 1,479,379 1,229,503
- Macau 6,151,486 6,578,169
- Others 755,123 1,096,932

57,165,159 60,999,073

In relation to the Group’s impaired advances and overdue
advances, over 90% of the outstanding balance as at 31
December 2009 and 2008 were classified under Hong Kong after

taking into account the effect of transfer of risk.



A 265 W P i
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

3.

3.2

Fo 5 o A B ()

5 BB (80

3.2.8 Mi#F A 15 B i 2 < i P I B 5

PR (A1)
(FF) &1 (%)

TERRAEEERERRRR  FBHFRE
MRERITHERMER ZBEIREED

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
(Continued)

(@  Geographical sectors (Continued)

The following table analyses the cross-border claims of the Group
in relation to loans and advances, investments in securities, and

balances and placements with banks.

BITRHEM
SRS
Banks NERE
—EENF and other Public
+=B=+—-H As at 31 Dec 2009 financial sector Hit wet
BEAT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
TAR  AEEBEBERN  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 9,965 98 8,120 18,183
EERE*E North and South America 552 - 3,116 3,668
B Europe 13,870 - 2,910 16,780
24,387 98 14,146 38,631
RIT R EAM
RIS
Banks NEHE
—ETNF and other Public
+-A=+—H As at 31 Dec 2008 financial sector Hfh HBEr
BEBT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
DKE - TEESBERN  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 9,415 240 9,761 19,416
tEREE North and South America 602 = 3,051 3,653
B Europe 13,628 - 2,761 16,389
23,645 240 18,578 39,458

biESEREEMAEEREARNER
& - ARIEZ 5 BT 00 B A2 b 1 4% BE B2 %41
WXSHFHEEEEERR - —KRM =
ERXSGHFNEREHETRBERN S —
FHER RETEEEHERITHEIND
7 MEABEERTRMNER - 1 &
REBRA-—BEREBEES —BR - BRI
BEABRNEBRERBITR10%IIA LK
Mol BFE o

The above information of cross-border claims discloses
exposures to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk
lies, and is derived according to the location of the counterparties
after taking into account any transfer of risk. In general, transfer
of risk from one country to another is recognised if the claims
against a counterparty are guaranteed by another party in a
different country or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a
bank whose head office is located in a different country. Only
regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate cross-border

claims are disclosed.
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(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HRE R RE A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

32 fERmEBE &) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 M 15 Bl B 2 o i 5 2 B 3.2.8 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
R B () (Continued)
(Z) 173 (b)  Industry sectors
EEERBE— RTEXEREFAZS Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

—EEAF —EEN\E

£H Group 2009 2008
ERAFEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong

TEE Industrial, commercial and financial

- MEER - Property development 611,218 448,282
— MERE — Property investment 11,209,001 10,102,405
— 2Bt - Financial concerns 333,243 373,243
- REL&K - Stockbrokers 52,265 9,707
- BBEETEX - Wholesale and retail trade 1,001,216 1,187,833
— BEX - Manufacturing 657,570 885,724
— ERREBEHHRE - Transport and transport equipment 3,207,328 4,241,249
- R&EES - Recreational activities 157,565 23,507
— BB — Information technology 902 418
— Hfl - Others 1,847,970 2,140,815

19,078,278 19,413,183

& A Individuals
- BEIREFHEE - - Loans for the purchase of flats in
[LAZEEEE] & Home Ownership Scheme, Private
[HEBHEFEIBFER Sector Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,398,373 1,625,129
- BEEMEEMEER — Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 10,462,174 10,715,925
- ERREX - Credit card advances 3,173,620 3,371,802
— Hf - Others 6,510,864 6,513,226
21,545,031 22,226,082
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 40,623,309 41,639,265
B5RE Trade finance 3,136,776 4,457,618
EREBIMEARNER GE) Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note) 13,405,074 14,902,190
57,165,159 60,999,073
7 ERALIMERAMNERBEETEARR Note: Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
BEBEAIMER 2 ER - customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

LI KHRTEBEERLR —ZEENFFR
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BROEERETEFAKTEAR - SEERE
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PREE B8 I {18 ) T 355 ol e 1 PR fhII FE AT 2 27K S 1A o
ERAFEREBERGAEHERRZEGZE
BEREERTHREEEE MLE -

SERBRBRAREZNERBEREFEESE
MEmZEL - BRERABEBHMA - SEBAR
SERBRFATENBRORE - RRAELE
BRALHER - AEEZ AMEXE SEITED
BB NERZ - AERIHES - AREER
BE R DN K fth 7 B B L 3 A TR 05 R B ISR B A2
o

RITRITER DA (TRFRIT]) 2 M B R R)EPT
BRBITARAR (DRFIERRTT]) RAHIRT
(FE) BRAR ([RFRTT (FE) D REBEE—F
BERBEMBR RAEAFRITRE 2 AT HE
BRBAMITERNTZHERS - KFTRITZE
RETE M EEMER R EEREEFIHERTR
RF|IT(PE) MELEZMHER -

AEEREHEEERIRITR 2 mSRARERT
Flz B ERBBERKLERF °

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

n

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance

sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, Executive
Committee (“EXCO”), Asset and Liability Management Committee
(ALCO”), and Treasury Risk Committee (“TRC”). Risk limits are set by
products and by different risk types. Limits comprise a combination of
notional, stop loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls. All
trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation. Risk
Management and Control Department (‘RMCD?”) in Group Risk Division,
as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific action to ensure the overall and the individual
market risks are managed within an acceptable level. Any exceptions
have to be reviewed and sanctioned by the appropriate level of
management of TRC or by EXCO.

The launch of every new product is governed by the New Product
Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk Policy in which the
relevant business units, supporting functions and Group Risk Division
review the critical requirements, risk assessment and resources plan.
The Group’s Internal Audit function performs regular independent
review and testing to ensure compliance with the market risk policies

and procedures by Treasury, RMCD and other relevant units.

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”) which are subsidiaries of Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”), run their treasury functions locally under their own set of limits
and policies and within the overall market risk limits set by DSB. RMCD
of DSB oversees and controls the market risk arising from the treasury
operation of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures

in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking books.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

n

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and

derivatives.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

As part of the management of market risk, the Group undertakes
various hedging strategies. The Group enters into interest rate
swaps to match the interest rate risk associated with the fixed-
rate long-term debt securities. The major measurement
techniques used to measure and control market risk are outlined

below.
(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a “value at risk” methodology (“VaR”) to
its trading portfolio to estimate the market risk positions
held and the maximum losses expected, based on a
number of assumptions for various changes in market
conditions. The Board sets limits on the value at risk that
are acceptable for the Group which are monitored on a daily

basis by Group Risk Division.

VaR is a statistically based estimate of the potential loss on
the current portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses the “maximum” amount the Group might lose,
but only to a certain level of confidence which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. The VaR model assumes a
certain “holding period” until positions can be closed. It is
also based on the current mark-to-market value of the
positions, the historical correlation and volatilities of the
market risk factors over a period of 250 days (or over one
year). The Group applies these historical correlation and
volatilities in rates, prices, indices, etc. directly to its current
positions using a method known as parametric VaR
methodology. Actual outcomes are monitored regularly to
test the validity of the assumptions and parameters/factors

used in the VaR calculations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

n

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)
(@) Market risk measurement technique (Continued)

(i) Value at risk (Continued)

The use of this approach does not prevent losses outside

of these limits in the event of more significant market

movements.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and reviewed
by the Board annually for all trading portfolio operations
and allocated to business units. Actual exposures against
limits, together with DSB’s VaR, is reviewed daily by Group
Risk Division. Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading
activities during the year was HK$5,727,000 (2008:

HK$5,148,000).

The quality of the VaR model is continuously monitored by
back-testing the VaR results for trading books. All back-
testing exceptions are investigated, and all back-testing
results are reported to senior management. The results of
the back-testing stress tests are reviewed and considered

by senior management when validating and reviewing the

VaR model.

(i)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by Group Risk Division include: risk factor
stress testing, where stress movements are applied to each
risk category; and ad hoc stress testing, which includes

applying possible stress events to specific positions or

regions.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by senior
management in each business unit and by the Board of

Directors. The stress testing is tailored to the business and

typically uses scenario analysis.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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3.3.1

3.3.2

5 25 o e 7 B (380

T 453 J B ()

I H B AR 2 i 5w g ()
(Z) HTEmBREHE

BE-_ZENE+=-A=1—-HLT={EA
12 months to 31 Dec 2009

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

83}

Financial risk management (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(b)  VaR summary of trading portfolio

BE-FE)\F+-A=t+-AL+=fA
12 months to 31 Dec 2008

1 BE BIE 15 54! 54§
£8 Group Average High Low Average High Low
INE LB Foreign exchange risk 2,040 6,375 620 2,769 5,353 670
Gilpde Interest rate risk 3,687 7,325 1,715 3,858 7,714 1,727
EERRE Credit risk - - - 260 1,117 -
2 HER All risks 5,727 9,800 2,897 5,148 9,181 2,700
I E BRATIE 2 i 5w i 3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

REE Y RAET - TIEERTERE N ERE
LREREES TR o

128

77

(FF) TR a8 7%

EE=e THZEeRMERREZES
RIYZERERERRBRS  RETH
R EREETHEER  FHRTIEEE
HAKERITRTEBINERR - FXE
RERBHECRARSETIARE ZRAR - &
SEEMETHEERABRARIINMTES
ZHERBEMERBMRDEECRER —
BMSERBERTBS 2 BRE DT RE
DR HHERETHEERUAGER
BRAGFERAEBRITERP ZTHEAR

AN 5 [ 3R B 3 4B R R T 5 R e B EDA A ST
ERERBITRD ZTHERER

RFBOTEEERD A

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated

with positions in debt and equity securities.

@

Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board, EXCO and TRC, various management action
triggers (“MATs”) are established to provide early alert to
management on the different levels of exposures of the Group’s
banking book activities to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
and liquidity risk. Sensitivity analysis and stress testing covering
shocks and shifts in interest rates on the Group’s on- and off-
balance sheet positions, liquidity drift under institution-specific
and general market crisis scenarios are regularly performed to
gauge and forecast the market risk inherent in the Group’s
banking book portfolios against these MATs.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and
control the market risk of the banking book.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

n

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)
(b)  Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio

The following descriptions on sensitivity analysis relate to DSB
and BCM.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, MOP and RMB) as foreign exchange
positions and foreign currency balances arising from
customer transactions are normally matched against other
customer transactions or transactions with the market.
Foreign exchange exposure in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries in
Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions,
both by individual currency and in aggregate, are managed
by the Treasury of the Group on a daily basis within

established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, is normally
matched using foreign exchange forward contracts to

reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2009, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against US$ with all other variable held constant,
the profit after taxation for the year and equity would have
been HK$20,900,000 higher (2008: HK$9,193,000 higher),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gain on translation
of US$ denominated financial assets compensated by
foreign exchange losses on translation of US$ denominated

financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against US$ with all other variables held constant, profit
after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$20,900,000 lower (2008: HK$9,193,000 lower).

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

n

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(®)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate
risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair
value and cash flow risks. Interest margins and net interest
income may increase or decrease as a result of such
changes or in the event that unexpected movements arise.
The Board sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest
rate repricing that may be undertaken, which is monitored
daily by RMCD.

At 31 December 2009, if HK$ market interest rates had been
200 basis points higher and US$ market interest rates had
been 200 basis points higher with other variables held
constant, profit after tax over the next 12 months and
economic value would have been HK$35 million lower
(2008: HK$91 million lower) and HK$189 million lower
(2008: HK$159 million lower) respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity

analysis on foreign exchange and interest rate risk are on the
same basis for both 2008 and 2009.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the

Group’s investments in debt securities are also exposed to other

price risks. Consequently, the value of such investments could

change significantly depending on a variety of factors including

liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that might affect

individual or portfolios of exposures.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk

Financial risk management (Continued)

The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and liabilities

translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by currency.

58 Group BT En B 2t gt
“EZhE+ZA=1+-H As at 31 December 2009 HKD usD MOP Others Total
BE Assets
Re RERTMER Cash and balances with banks 4,667,351 2,629,055 245,565 2,911,395 10,453,366
ERT-ET-EARZSNES  Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 1,409,988 2,580,842 - 291,919 4,282,749

FIEEERANES Trading securities 5,574,457 - - 20,859 5,595,316
EEAATEFEREES Financial assets designated

TABRNEREE at fair value through profit or loss - 11,232 - - 11,232
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments 346,273 242,505 - - 588,778
XEEFREMEE Advances and other accounts 51,509,866 8,930,369 1,669,542 4,874,175 66,983,952
it EEH Available-for-sale securities 5,469,017 5,089,368 631 1,527,162 12,086,178
FEIHBESR Held-to-maturity securities - 5,546,048 1,100,627 1,951,733 8,598,408
SHEEAT Total financial assets 68,976,952 25,029,419 3,016,365 11,577,243 108,599,979
=L Liabilities
RITEN Deposits from banks 45,053 1,195,287 63,476 131,320 1,435,136
fTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 168,935 808,368 - 236,431 1,213,734
FEEERGENAR Trading liabilities 2,068,300 - - - 2,068,300
RENATETEAAES Deposits from customers designated

SABRNEPER at fair value through profit o loss - - = = =
RPER Deposits from customers 55,678,688 18,367,937 4,497,886 11,027,693 89,572,204
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,612,015 - 100,066 347,929 2,060,010
BEINELES Issued debt securities S - - - -
BEEB Subordinated notes - 4,602,235 - - 4,602,235
HiplR B kTR Other accounts and accruals 1,270,188 376,125 31,412 183,815 1,861,540
SRBEAT Total financial liabilities 60,843,179 25,349,952 4,692,840 11,927,188 102,813,159
BERBRLERTE Net on-balance sheet positions 8,133,773 (320,533) (1,676,475) (349,945) 5,786,820
BERBRINSRERTFE Off-balance sheet net notional positions*  (1,484,340) 841,816 - 702,229 59,705
EERE Credit commitments 36,265,552 719,456 829,480 250,702 38,065,190
* BAEAGBRIMNFEERFREEEZZERNBESEIN *  Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional amounts

EZgERBR2INECRITETAENBRFE - of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are principally used

to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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3.

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

£F Group BT e ik Hit A%
“EEN\E+-A=+—H As at 31 December 2008 HKD UsD MOP Others Total
BE Assets
Re REBTNERS Cash and balances with banks 3,817,013 5,490,460 249,477 3,108,217 12,665,167
EFT-E+-AARNEHHEH  Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 84,500 1,267,193 - 305,257 1,656,950

FIFEERENES Trading securities 1,837,076 117 - 38,371 1,875,564
BENATETEAAES Financial assets designated

TAERNEREE at fair value through profit or loss 418,833 146,457 - - 565,290
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments 412,773 652,633 - 1,033 1,066,439
REEXREMBEE Advances and other accounts 54,909,063 8,821,242 1,545,412 4231619 69,507,336
it EES Available-for-sale securities 1,780,015 10,560,217 631 1,906,436 14,247,299
BEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 385,000 2,958,187 1,135,177 1,680,900 6,159,264
SREEAR Total financial assets 63,644,273 29,896,506 2,930,697 11,271,833 107,743,309
B Liabilities
PITER Deposits from banks 102,864 2,165,574 65,620 109,536 2,443,594
fTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 458,596 1,649,208 - 159,836 2,267,640
RIEEERBNERE Trading liabilities 1,791,419 - - = 1,791,419
BENATEFEAEES Deposits from customers designated

FABRNEFER at fair value through profit or loss 462,618 8,447 = = 471,065
EYSES Deposits from customers 54,194,369 15,172,547 4,126,410 8,397,121 81,890,447
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 3,553,427 329,117 223,262 549,179 4,654,985
BRITNERES Issued debt securities 459,654 2,343,986 - - 2,803,640
REEH Subordinated notes - 5,671,716 - - 5,671,716
HiplR 8 R Other accounts and accruals 1,366,127 525,858 30,942 260,735 2,183,662
SREBREAH Total financial liabilities 62,389,074 27,866,453 4,446,234 9,476,407 104,178,168
BEEERLBRFE Net on-balance sheet positions 1,255,199 2,030,053 (1,515,537) 1,795,426 3,565,141
BEABRIMNSERRFE Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 4398489  (2,308,091) 676  (1,740,531) 350,543
EEAE Credit commitments 36,179,150 588,215 536,842 380,313 37,684,520
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.4 Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks.
Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at
carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or
maturity dates.

ZEANE —-EHE
=fiA B-fF Bnf%
HFUT Over Over AELNE T E
£8 Group 3months 3 months 1year Over Non-Interest EH
“EZRE+ZA=1-H As at 31 December 2009 or less tolyear to5years 5 years Bearing Total
EE Assets
BeRERTHER Cash and balances with banks 8,410,679 - - - 2,042,687 10,453,366
ERT-ETZEARI BTN Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 2,668,896 1,613,853 - - - 4,282,749

fi ME = E% BHES Trading securities 2,457,859 2,760,412 376,847 198 - 5595316
BENATEHEEHET Financial assets designated

EU\TE@E’J PHEE at fair value through profit or loss - - - 11,232 - 11,232
TESBTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 588,778 588,778
KBERREMEE Advances and other accounts 51,823474 2,538,895  5367,266  5219,124 2,035,193 66,983,952

ML EES Available-for-sale securities 4828586 2,396,649 1,763,257 2,881,919 215,767 12,086,178
REHHES Held-to-maturity securities 4,912,825 807,555 1,635,355 919,868 322,805 8,598,408
SREEAT Total financial assets 75,102,319 10,117,364 9,142,725 9,032,341 5205230 108,599,979
af Liabilities
ROFER Deposits from banks 1,104,802 81,366 - - 248,968 1,435,136
ITEEBIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,213734 1,213,734
KEEERENERE Trading liabilities 1,932,085 104,930 31,285 - - 2,068,300
EENATEFEAEES Deposits from customers designated

STABRNEPER at fair value through profit or loss - - - - - -
CYSVEE Deposits from customers 74,281,804 11,384,822 1,094,652 - 2,810,836 89,572,204
BEANETE Certificates of deposit issued 1,516,782 214,714 328,514 - - 2,060,010
BEINERES Issued debt securities - - - - - -
EEES Subordinated notes 2,326,470 - 1,145786 1,129,979 - 4,602,235
HifRE RER Other accounts and accruals 313,001 - - - 1548539 1,861,540
cRARAH Total financial liabilities 81,475,034 11,785,832 2,600,237 1,129,979 5,822,077 102,813,159
FISBBEERT (REHRB) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted) (6,372,715)  (1,668,468) 6,542,488 7,902,362
RETEIRAHZY Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 6,814,256 399,094 989,783  (8,168,501)
FISBBZEA T (KRR Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 441541  (1,269,374) 7,532,271 (266,139)

Y OREHERNE @iFY%EEETEiéTFE%i%WEE%DE

BEHRREE
1B 1) 5 [ e

o [ BN B GUREBE S AR
ﬁﬁ?&ﬁﬂ']ﬂ—'—ﬂil,\ S KR -

*

Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of on-
balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap takes
into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered into to
mitigate interest rate risk.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009



S 25 Ak M

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. HRE R RE A B ()

3.3 i EBE ()

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Fil 3 & g (%) 3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)
EARE —EHE
=R Ealis ESiks
HT Over Over  REME T &
1] Group 3months 3 months 1 year Over  Non-Interest RE
ZER\ETZA=t-H As at 31 December 2008 orless  tolyear  to5years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
e RERITHES Cash and balances with banks 10,617,948 - - - 2047219 12,665,167
ERT-E+ZEAREESAFST  Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 1,555,992 100,958 - - - 1,656,950

FEEERRNES Trading securities 645,756 860,185 369,537 86 - 1,875,564
RENATEFEEHEY Financial assets designated

STABRNEREE at fair value through profit or loss 418,832 = - 146,458 = 565,290
ITESBTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1066439 1,066,439
XEEFREMEE Advances and other accounts 583,029,291 3,825,480 5,248,373 4,940,166 2,464,026 69,507,336
AL EES Available-for-sale securities 1,844,418 4194637 2,744,427 5,260,541 203,276 14,247,099
BERIHHES Held-to-maturity securities 4,845,057 219,911 230,776 863,520 - 6,159,264
CRAEA Total financial assets 72,957,294 9,201,171 8,593,113 11,210,771 5,780,960 107,743,309
B Liabilities
ROFR Deposits from banks 848,030 1,522,167 - - 73397 2,443,594
TESBTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 2267640 2,267,640
BEEEREMAR Trading liabilities 944,493 802,038 44,714 174 - 1,791,419
RENATEHEEASZY Deposits from customers designated

STABRNEPER at fair value through profit or loss 428,767 42,298 - - - 471,065
CYSVEE Deposits from customers 72428070 5805222 1,684,273 - 1,972,882 81,890,447
BEANGRE Certificates of deposit issued 2,666,445 1,439,314 549,226 = - 4,654,985
BEINERES Issued debt securities 1,162,500 1,641,140 - - - 2,803,640
EEREK Subordinated notes 2,325,000 - 1443438 1,903,278 - 5671716
HEtfRA RER Other accounts and accruals 313,000 - - - 1870662 2,183,662
eRAEAT Total financial liabilities 81,116,305 11,252,179 3,721,651  1,903452 6,184,581 104,178,168
MEGBEES (REHE)* Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (8,159,011)  (2,051,008) 4,871,462 9,307,319
FEfAETEA N FE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 4,526,950 3,256,917 1,400,523  (9,222,477)
FlSBREEB A (BHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (3,632,061)  1,205909 6,271,985 84,842

134

ARFBITEEERAT —ZTNFFH




$A 255 Ak Mt

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. R\ BEAE EL ()
3.4 {EE 4R b

RBEECRBRIARERERI Az ERAEE
TNREEREERREREHAES ZER
BRATBERAEBITEENETRARBITARE

BB -

3.4.1 IRB &S B E PR

AEEFEHEERPESARRABDES L X
RERFEARDERFRSRNEAEREZRNREE
SHE  AEERNZRITMBARRFAZFH
MBESHLEREGRRITERIFEERD
25% -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

n

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due
and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may
be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil

commitments to lend.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis to ensure that a
sufficiently high liquidity ratio relative to the statutory minimum is
maintained throughout the year. The average liquidity ratio of the
banking subsidiaries within the Group during the period was well above

the 25% minimum ratio set by the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group’s Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”)
regularly reviews the Group’s current loan and deposit mix and changes,
funding requirements and projections, and monitors the liquidity ratio
and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. Appropriate limits on
liquidity ratio and maturity mismatch are set and sufficient liquid assets
are held to ensure that the Group can meet all short-term funding

requirements.

The Group’s funding comprises mainly deposits of customers,
certificates of deposit and medium term notes issued. The issuance of
certificates of deposit and medium term notes helps lengthen the
funding maturity and reduce the maturity mismatch. Short-term
interbank deposits are taken on a limited basis and the Group is a net

lender to the interbank market.

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and
projections for the next day, week and month respectively, as these are
key periods for liquidity management. The starting point for those
projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial

liabilities and the expected collection date of the financial assets.

ALCO also monitors unmatched medium-term assets, the level and
type of undrawn lending commitments, the usage of overdraft facilities
and the impact of contingent liabilities such as standby letters of credit

and guarantees.
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3. BAXSE R B (%) 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

34 WMBIE S m B () 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 FH H 447 3.4.2 Maturity analysis

TROMASERZRRERREGAS LI HAK The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant
XFPAEER WERA) IR I BCEER maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the
BE reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable,

the earliest callable date.

-fARE  ZEARE  -FRLE

DHEE B=@RHLNT 3 ZRE
Repayable —fBAZMT 3 months or Over Over RENE

&8 Group on Upto lesshutover  3months 1year Over EHHAEH &t
“EEAETZA=T-A As at 31 December 2009 demand 1 month 1 month tofyear  to5years 5years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
Re RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 2481942 7,971,424 - - - - - 10,453,366
ERT-Et=fEAR Placements with banks maturing

HBRER between one and twelve months - - 266889 1,613,853 - - - 4280749
RIEEERBNES Trading securities - 199,995 2,257,864 2,760,412 376,847 198 - 5595316
AEUATEEEEEE  Financial assets designated

TABRNEHAE at fair value through profit or loss - - - - - 11,232 - 11,232
TEEBTA Derivative financial instruments - 197,480 29,976 52,203 195,187 113,932 - 588,778
ZBEFRAMET Advances and other accounts 5,532,556 4,749,815 3,891,094 6,963,218 20,490,001 24,967,452 389,816 66,983,952
i EB% Available-for-sale securites - 6BR512 3219193 2650168 2370620 2881017 25768 12086178
REEHES Held-to-maturity securities - 499,982 3652371 1225006 4106328 2,414,721 - 8598408
BENTRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 1200257 1,200,257
AEEHEBRE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - - 60,791 60,791
S Goodwil - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
BYEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 110,432 110,432
NEREMEREE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 1,050,180 1,950,180
RENF Investment properties - - - - - - 657,235 657,235
HEREEE Current income tax assets - - - 61,916 = = = 61,916
BEREAE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 77,268 - - 77,268
BEAH Total assets 8014498 14,307,208 12479394 15326776 27,616,251 30,389,452 5495169 113,628,748
1 Liabilities
RIER Deposits from banks 109,127 349,816 9,561 733,985 232,647 - - 1,435,136
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments - 76,681 30,395 33,481 162,868 910,309 - 1213734
BIEEERRNEE Trading liabilities - 578,988 1,353,097 104,930 31,285 - - 2,068,300
AEUATEFEEEEE  Deposits from customers designated

HABERNEPE at fair value through profit or loss - - - - - - - -
ZFRER Deposits from customers 26,722,508 28,160,178 22154535 11440250 1,004,648 - - 89,572,204
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued - 184,619 442,213 366,734 1,066,444 - - 2,060,010
BEANERES Issued debt securities = = - = = - o =
REER Subordinated notes - - - 116325 2300022 1,120,078 - 4602235
2R RER Other accounts and accruals 19,995 311,952 281,223 473,698 337,935 - 436,737 1,861,540
HEHEEE Current income tax liabilities - - - 17,485 - - - 17,485
ERHBAR Deferred income tax liabilities - - - 311 6,658 - - 6,969
8EAH Total liabilities 26,851,715 29,662,234 24,271,024 14,334,109 5,241,507 2,040,287 436,737 102,837,613
FROMEE Net liquidity gap (18,837,217)  (15,355,026)  (11,791,630) 992,667 22,374,744 28,349,165 5,058,432 10,791,135
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

—EAME  ZEANE  —FNE

NHEE B=EAHNT E-F Lt
Repayable —fEAZT 3 months or Over Over RENE

£E Group on Upto lessbutover  3months 1 year Over E:iHAH At
ZEENETZA=T-H  Asat31December 2008 demand 1 month 1 month tolyear  to5years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
ReREBINESR Cash and balances with banks 2483016 10,182,151 - - - - - 12,665,167
ERT-ETZEAR Placements with banks maturing

HENER between one and twelve months - - 1555992 100,958 = = - 1656950
BEEERRNES Trading securities - - 645,757 860,183 369,538 86 - 1875564
BEUNATEFEAAZE  Financial assets designated

TABRNEHAE at fair value through profit or loss - 418,833 - - - 146,457 - 565,200
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 240,361 18,023 101,174 305,438 381,443 - 1,066,439
FEETREMEE Advances and other accounts 6,389,292 5887624 5173542 6838576 20020874 24871375 326,053 69,507,336
ARLEES Available-for-sale securities - 27,153 45011 4476954 3866509 5428106 203276 14,247,299
REHBES Held-to-maturity securities - 507,615 500,134 736,067 2118970 2206478 - 6,159,264
BENARE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 1132461 1,132,461
REEHEERE Investments in jointly controlled entties - - - - - - 59,073 59,073
g Goodwill - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
BREE Intangible assets - - - - - = 126,875 126,875
NERAMEREE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 1666499 1,666,499
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 546,172 546,172
NSHELE Current income tax assets - = = 139,860 - = - 139,860
BERBEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 159,380 - - 159,380
BERT Total assets 8672308 17263737 8138659 13253772 26860799 33123945 4,872,099 112,386,219
af Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 53,037 774,143 214007 1169417 232,500 - - 2443504
fTE2RIA Derivative financial instruments - 215,747 21,477 69,276 338,936 1,562,204 - 2,267,640
FEEERSENER Trading liabilities - 944,493 - 802,038 44,714 174 - 1,791,419
EEMATEFEEEZEE  Deposits from customers designated

TARERNZPEH at fair value through profit or loss - 418,831 9,035 42,299 - - - 471,085
EPEH Deposits from customers 18258008 32,740,368 24,072,122 5,864,973 954,886 - - 81,890,447
EEDEEE Certificates of deposit issued - 2,507 961,000 2444829 1,246,649 - - 4,654,985
EEINELES Issued debt securities - - - 2,803,640 - = - 2,803,640
BEER Subordinated notes - - - - 3768438  1,003278 - 5671716
HEbRE RER Other accounts and accruals 23,111 551,292 416,444 571,302 335,260 = 286,253 2,183,662
EHERE Current income tax labilties - - - 12,682 - - - 12,682
BEHEERE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - 836 739 = - 1575
BEAT Total liabilities 18,334,446 35707381 25695275 13781292 6922122 3465656 286,253 104,192,425
FrRatzE Net liquidity gap (0462,138)  (18443,644) (17556616)  (527520) 19,938,677 20,658,289 4586746 8,193,794
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of
the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as
businesses transacted are often of uncertain term and of different types.
An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but also
increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby
letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter (OTC) currency
options, currency futures, exchange traded currency options; and
° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate

agreements, OTC interest rate options, and other interest rate
contracts.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps;

° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency
interest rate swaps;

° Equity derivatives: equity options; and

° Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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3. AR A ) 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

34 WHEE LR (@)
3.4.3 HEHBH HZ KRB BB 27 (4)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

—-BAZUT -@ANE =@EANLE —ENE  EENE
£8 Group Upto E=fBA Z+=fEA Bnf% Over &it
“EZRFE+ZA=1-H As at 31 December 2009 1month 1-3months 3-12months  1-5 years 5years Total
FTETERER Non-derivative cash flow
B Liabilities
ROFER Deposits from banks 716,212 22,229 742,800 235,188 - 1,716,429
EENATEFEAEES Deposits from customers designated
STABRNEPEN at fair value through profit or loss - = = = = =
BFER Deposits from customers 55,357,277 22,373,496 11,514,872 1,122,343 - 90,367,988
KEEERENER Trading liabilities 579,000 1,358,358 105,165 31,355 - 2,073,878
BR{IMEHE Certificates of deposit issued 191,705 448,145 393,790 1,079,481 - 2,113,121
BRANEKES Issued debt securities = = = = = =
RIEER Subordinated notes - 87,238  1,255298 2,854,368 1,797,209  5994,113
EnafE Other liabilities 1,037,385 98,261 362,359 323,379 8211 1,829,505
BELE Total liabilities
(AHEIHA) (contractual maturity dates) 57,881,579 24,387,727 14,374,284  5646,114 1,805,420 104,095,124
TETARSR Derivative cash flow
BRRLEEZTESRTEA Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis 8,549 1,053 (5,462) 176,731 36,742 217,613
RABLEEVTESRTEA Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
i Total outflow 42,477,072| | 16,358,494 | | 16,695,729 | | 2,736,267 | | 1,294,473 | | 79,562,035
mARE Total inflow (42,586,706) |(16,336,126) |(16,423,678) | (1,394,125) | (572,498) |((77,313,139)
(109,634) 22,368 272,051 1,342,142 721,975 2,248,902
—@AZUT —EAME Z@EANE  —FENhE  EENME
1] Group Upto  E=fA ZTt=fRA RHE Qver CH
ZEEN\E+-A=1-H As at 31 December 2008 tmonth  1-3months 3-12months  1-5 years 5 years Total
FTETEREER Non-derivative cash flow
af Liabilities
ROER Deposits from banks 1,432,753 432,081 1,228,656 258,649 - 3352139
BENATETEARS Deposits from customers designated
STABRNEPER at fair value through profit or loss 425,412 - - - - 425412
RPEH Deposits from customers 51,217,044 24726897 5970309 1,018,779 - 82,933,029
KEEERENERE Trading liabilities 1,725,500 138 22,306 44,840 103 1,792,887
BETHENE Certificates of deposit issued 220,981 805,321 2,607,345 1,243,026 - 4876673
BREINERES Issued debt securities - 16,674 2,854,482 - - 2871156
BEER Subordinated notes - 100,742 179179 4719663  1,894340 6,893,924
ek Other liabilities 432,344 88,103 378,745 24,625 - 923,817
BEAE Total liabilities
(BHEIHA) (contractual maturity dates) 55454034 26,169,956 13,241,022 7,309,582 1,894,443 104,069,037
TETERSR Derivative cash flow
REFREEZTESRTIEA Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis 800 20,407 29,751 69,426 40,049 160,433
RABLEE 7 TESRTA Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
i Total outflow 35,107,146 | | 15,457,315| | 10,922,997 | | 4,044,704| | 1,973,837 | 67,505,999
AR Total inflow (35,086,194)| |(15,437,453) |(10,842,954) | (3,684,250)| | (1,605,545)| |(66,656,396)
20,952 19,862 80,043 360,454 368,292 849,603

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009




S 25 Ak M

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. B R R A B ()
34 WHEE LR (@)
3.4.3 HEHBH HZ KRB BB 27 (4)

AARENAEAEREAERENEEREZE
ERERE  AERRRITHESR  EREZIEA
kEEES  RITERRBR  MEFPERKE
Ko HAEEBT  BORAOERER —FR
MEZEPEFEEES - 1hs) - EBESKE
BEFDHEERAREREE - AEEL AR
HEFFMBBRINESRE (Pl : @ETS)
AN REEESF R

3.4.4 BEAFFRINEH
TEBEATIHEE :

s EBARERTEFPEEREMREZEFK
ERERAEBEERABRIEMTIAZ
BRARTHH)

s REHRBAABARGRNBN ZHBE
%

o  AKEA/AMAZTABUERKEHAARE
RARAXNZHERENRER &

e BEFERRBZERAE-

PO KR TEERR DA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding
loan commitments include cash, central bank balances, items in the
course of collection and treasury bills; loans and advances to banks;
and loans and advances to customers. In the normal course of
business, a proportion of customer loans contractually repayable within
one year will be extended. In addition, debt securities and treasury bills
have been pledged to secure liabilities. The Group would also be able
to meet unexpected net cash outflows by selling securities and

accessing additional funding sources such as asset-backed markets.

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

° Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

o Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

° The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

o Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and

equipment.



A 265 W P i

(ABEE T Thz37R)

3. B R R A B ()

3.4  WHE S EER (8)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 HERMFEINEH (#) 3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)
—F LR —F L% HFENE
£5 Group No later ERE Over B
“EZAE+=-A=1t—H At 31 December 2009 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRURSE Loan commitments 36,065,726 757,991 - 36,823,717
BiR - EELR Guarantees, acceptances and
H At 7 AR %S other financial facilities
— &5 - Acceptances 7,434 - - 7,434
— ERERERE R - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 507,094 58,200 83,572 648,866
- BRERBERERL - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 523,665 - - 523,665
EETFR Forward forward deposits placed 61,508 - - 61,508
R TRA A Operating lease commitments 88,794 113,410 33,392 235,596
B AR SE Capital commitments 92,920 - - 92,920
&&t Total 37,347,141 929,601 116,964 38,393,706
—E PR —E L% TEE
£H Group No later ERF Over =
T N\FF+ZA=+—8 At 31 December 2008 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
B R Loan commitments 35,615,524 919,873 - 36,535,397
BiR - EAELR Guarantees, acceptances and
H At & 7 AR 75 other financial facilities
— - Acceptances 9,970 - - 9,970
— ERERERE R - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 554,939 45,808 110,571 711,318
— REREERERT - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 354,288 - - 354,288
R R Forward forward deposits placed 73,547 - - 73,547
FEETRA RS Operating lease commitments 81,619 54,256 24,300 160,175
B AR Capital commitments 99,587 — = 99,587
&&t Total 36,789,474 1,019,937 134,871 37,944,282

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Financial risk management (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@)  Determination of fair value

For financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets, the
determination of fair value is based on quoted market prices,
dealer price quotations or broker quotes from Bloomberg and
Reuters. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price; the appropriate quoted

market price for financial liabilities is the current ask price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. If the
above criteria are not met, the market is regarded as being
inactive. Indications that a market is inactive are when there is a
wide bid-offer spread or significant increase in bid-offer spread

or there are few recent transactions.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. In
these techniques, fair values are estimated from observable data
in respect of similar financial instruments, using models to
estimate the present value of expected future cash flows or other
valuation techniques using inputs (for example LIBOR yield curve,
FX rates, volatilities, comparable credit spreads, and counterparty

spreads) existing at the end of the reporting period.

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models including
present value techniques and option pricing models for
determining the fair values of non-standardised financial
instruments of lower complexity such as options or interest rate
and currency swaps. For these financial instruments, inputs into
models are generally market-observable. The fair value of
interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows. The fair value of foreign exchange
forward contracts is generally based on current forward exchange
rates. Structured interest rate derivatives are measured using
appropriate option pricing models, for example, the Black-

Derman-Toy model.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(@)  Determination of fair value (Continued)

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit risk
spreads in determining the current value for its derivative liabilities
and other liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option.
When the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises a
gain on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
decreased. When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group
recognises a loss on these liabilities because the value of the

liabilities has increased.

The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of
a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation
techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to
the positions the Group holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted,
where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model
risks, liquidity risk and counterparty credit risk. Based on the
established fair value model governance policies of the Group,
and the related controls and procedures applied, management
believes that these valuation adjustments are necessary and
appropriate to fairly state the values of financial instruments
carried at fair value in the statement of financial position. Price
data and parameters used in the measurement procedures
applied are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary,

particularly in view of the current market developments.

During 2009 and 2008, there was no financial instrument
measured at fair value using a valuation technique which is based
on assumptions that are not supported by observable market
prices for the same or similar instrument or not based on available

observable market data.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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Financial risk management (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on
whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable
or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained
from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the
Group’s market assumptions. These two types of inputs have

created the following fair value hierarchy:
Level Descriptions

1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. This level includes listed equity
securities and debt instruments on exchange (for
example, Hong Kong Stock Exchange, London Stock
Exchange, Frankfurt Stock Exchange, New York Stock
Exchange) and exchanges traded derivatives like futures
(for example, Nasdaq, S&P 500).

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices). This level includes the majority of the over-the-
counter derivative contracts, and issued structured
debts. The sources of input parameters include LIBOR
yield curve, or Bloomberg and Reuters for counterparty

credit risk.

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This level
includes equity investments and debt instruments with

significant unobservable components.

The hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when
available. The Group considers relevant and observable market

prices in its valuations where possible.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

L E R A A FE () 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(Z) RFERBEE)

(b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

BAFEFECEEREE Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:
-3
—EEhF Group B $24% H34% A%
+=A=+—H At 31 Dec 2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
NATEFEAH Financial assets at fair value through
SEETABZNEMEE  profit or loss
RIEEE A% Held for trading
B 5 Debt securities - 5,595,316 - 5,595,316
PTETA Derivatives - 458,383 - 458,383
BEUATEFZE Designated at fair value through
& @ﬁ FTABZ profit or loss
BEREH Debt securities - 11,232 - 11,232
HAERAEHRNTETE  Derivatives held for hedging - 130,395 - 130,395
AHEEZERERE Available-for-sale financial assets
B 5 Debt securities - 11,911,320 - 11,911,320
Rt Equity securities 71,450 103,408 - 174,858
BATEFEZEERT  Total assets measured at fair value 71,450 18,210,054 - 18,281,504
NFEFEAEES Financial liabilities at fair value
uﬂ\?‘a TR EMAE through profit or loss
B f’F BEERE Held for trading - 2,068,300 - 2,068,300
a‘”b REEHER Designated at fair value through
'''''' .#Ma = profit or loss - 1,666,576 - 1,666,576
0l E TH Derivatives - 304,620 - 304,620
FHBELFMITETA  Derivatives held for hedging - 909,114 - 909,114
BAFEFEZAEART  Total liabilities measured at fair value - 4,948,610 - 4,948,610

R-ZZBENFET_A=1t—R8  AEEY
BEEARNAFEBRAEIRIIZEBREE
kAfE BEENEREERAEEEE

LHEBEE QN TEBRANEING Level 3 fair value hierarchy.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group did not have any financial
assets and liabilities in the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. There were

no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or out of the

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair values

of those financial assets and liabilities not presented in the

Group’s statement of financial position at their fair value. For

disclosure purposes, these fair values have been estimated by

discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current

s T o market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments, if applicable.
ARMEE ARE
Carrying value Fair value
“EZAE ZEZTN\FE CZEBLE ZTITN\F

£ Group 2009 2008 2009 2008
CREE Financial assets
e RERITHEER Cash and balances with banks 10,453,366 12,665,167 10,453,457 12,686,558
ERIT—ETZEAR Placements with banks maturing

F e FF R between one and twelve months 4,282,749 1,656,950 4,291,301 1,670,723
REER Advances to customers

HAER(ZEER) Loans to individuals (retail customers)

- ERAF - Credit cards 3,289,460 3,482,972 3,289,581 3,483,173

— RIBEXN - Mortgages 18,972,569 18,526,215 18,982,207 18,537,337

— Hfth - Others 3,283,575 3,802,967 3,286,840 3,780,619

TEER Loans to corporate entities

- BHER - Term loans 11,317,643 10,205,960 11,317,787 10,206,220

— RIBEX - Mortgages 8,088,435 8,496,416 8,095,166 8,511,550

- BHME - Trade finance 3,281,532 4,638,482 3,263,180 4,638,656

— Hfth - Others 8,931,945 11,846,061 8,919,961 11,810,914
RITER Advances to banks 150,000 179,226 150,120 179,245
BEEERKER Investments in securities included in

PR BHEE the loans and receivables category 8,799,348 6,896,646 7,771,125 5,905,929
FEEHES Held-to-maturity securities 8,598,408 6,159,264 8,090,515 5,582,702
TRIBE Financial liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 1,435,136 2,443,594 1,444,477 2,471,173
BEPER Deposits from customers 89,572,204 81,890,447 89,543,599 82,128,041
BETHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 1,539,220 3,049,263 1,535,369 3,058,637
BEITHERE 5 Issued debt securities - 1,622,154 - 1,622,409
BERES Subordinated notes 3,456,449 4,631,278 3,316,603 3,601,752

W KT RITEBAERA A TENFEFER
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

(i) Placements with and loans and advances to banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for
debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(i) Loans and advances to customers

The estimated fair value of loans and advances represents
the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows
expected to be received. Expected cash flows are
discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

(iii)  Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the loans and receivables, and held to maturity
categories. Fair value of held-to-maturity assets and loans
and receivables is based on market prices or broker/dealer
price quotations. Where this information is not available,
fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for
securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(ivy Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity,
which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings not quoted
in an active market is based on discounted cash flows using
interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity.

(v)  Debt securities in issue
For those notes where a quoted market prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on

current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to
maturity.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

° To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits to
other stakeholders; and

° To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of

its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Hong Kong banking subsidiaries, DSB and MEVAS Bank Limited
(“MEVAS?”), and another overseas banking subsidiary, D.A.H. Hambros
Bank (Channel Islands) Limited (“DAHCI”), are monitored regularly by
the Group’s management, employing techniques based on the
guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA?”), for supervisory purposes.

The required information is filed with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.

The HKMA requires DSB and MEVAS to maintain a ratio of total
regulatory capital to the risk-weighted amount (i.e. the capital adequacy
ratio) at or above the internationally agreed minimum of 8%. These
banking subsidiaries’ regulatory capital as managed by the Group’s

management is divided into two tiers:

° Core capital: share capital, profit and loss, and reserves created
by appropriations of retained earnings. The book value of goodwiill
and other intangible assets is deducted in arriving at core capital;
and

° Supplementary capital: qualifying perpetual and term
subordinated debts, collectively assessed impairment
allowances, regulatory reserve, and fair value gains arising on
revaluation of holdings of land and buildings and available-for-

sale equities and debt securities.

Investment in subsidiaries, significant investments in non-subsidiary
companies and shares, exposures to connected companies and
investments in other banks’ equity are deducted from core capital and

supplementary capital to arrive at the regulatory capital.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognised by
the HKMA or other principles as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation. Off-
balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent amounts
by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each exposure, before
being classified and risk-weighted as if they were on-balance sheet

exposures.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and China’s banking subsidiary, DSB
China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management, employing
techniques based on the guidelines provided by the Autoridade
Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM?”) and the China Banking Regulatory

Commission (“CBRC”) respectively for supervisory purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by DSB
China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires BCM
and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own funds or
capital base to total risk weighted exposures (i.e. the capital adequacy

ratio) at or above the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

Subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to statutory capital
requirements from other regulatory authorities, such as the Securities

and Futures Commission.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and advisory
services to third parties, which involve the Group making allocation
and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety of financial
instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity are not
included in the Group’s financial statements. These services could give

rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of mal-administration.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.  Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in estimates and assumptions may have a significant impact on the
results of the Group in the periods when changes are made. The
application and selection of different estimates and assumptions, and
their subsequent changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value in the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment of
the sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the Group
arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions adopted
are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results and positions
presented in the Group’s financial statements are fair and reasonable

in all material respects.

(@ Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This
evidence may include observable data indicating that there has
been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of recoverable
amounts. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and

actual loss experience.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.

4.1

4.2

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)
(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets, the
Group has witnessed observable declines in market liquidity and
the range of market quotations for certain securities have
widened. The Group applies judgment in selecting the most
appropriate quotation for valuation purposes based on its
assessment of the range of observable quotations, recent
observable transactions, the reliability and quality of the pricing

source, and the value of securities of a similar nature.

(c)  Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition of
goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits to be
generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates which
could be caused by major changes in market conditions and
outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values of such
assets. In the event that the expected recoverable amounts of
goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower than their
carrying values, impairment of such assets would have to be

recognised.

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies

(@ Distinction between investment properties and owner-

occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgment, the Group considers
whether the property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to property but

also to other assets used in the production or supply process.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-

occupied properties (Continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to supply
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can be
sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease),
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted for as
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property. The

Group considers each property separately in making its judgment.

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale, held-to-maturity and loans and

receivables categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale (“AFS”), held-to-maturity (‘HTM”) and loans
and receivables (“LNR”) categories as of the end of the year and
up to the date of the approval of the financial statements of the
Group. Assessment for any impairment, on individual and
collective basis, is made with reference to the financial strength
and credit rating of each issuer, industry development and market
conditions, and historical loss experience of a portfolio of similar
credits provided by rating agencies. Apart from investments in
structured investment vehicles (“SIV”), and those AFS equity
securities and HTM debt securities having been assessed as
impaired, the Group has concluded that there are no objective or
specific indications that any of its other AFS, HTM and LNR
securities is impaired. Except for the impairment losses
recognised on the SIV investments, those AFS equity securities,
and HTM debt securities (which had been written off as at 31
December 2009 and 2008), no impairment allowance is provided
on other AFS and HTM securities. Certain LNR securities are
assessed as impaired, and appropriate amount of impairment

allowances are provided as at 31 December 2009.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)
(c)  Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for the specific circumstances — for example, selling
an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be required to
reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale. The investments
would therefore be measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

(d)  Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgment is needed to determine if provision for compensation
to certain customers who had bought structured investments
distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the Group need to
be recorded in accordance with the requirements of HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. In
making this judgment, the Group evaluates the information
relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood and estimated
amount of outflow of resources which may be incurred to settle
the obligation after considering factors such as recent settlement
experiences and advice from legal counsel.

(e) Initial recognition of Lehman Brothers minibonds and
principal protected notes acquired pursuant to repurchase
scheme and settlement arrangements agreed with
customers

On 22 July and 23 December 2009, the Group agreed with the
Securities and Futures Commission, and the HKMA to make an
offer to eligible customers to repurchase, respectively, their
holdings in all outstanding Lehman Brothers minibonds
(“Minibonds”) and principal protected notes (“PPN”) subscribed
through the Group (“the Repurchase Schemes”).

In determining the charge to the income statement in respect of
the Minibonds and PPN, the Group took into account the
estimated aggregate amount paid and payable under the
Repurchase Schemes and the voluntary offer, the provision made
prior to the date of the Repurchase Schemes and the estimated
amount recoverable from the Minibonds and PPN.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.  Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)

42 Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)

(e) Initial recognition of Lehman Brothers minibonds and
principal protected notes acquired pursuant to repurchase
scheme and settlement arrangements agreed with

customers (Continued)

The amount recoverable from the Minibonds and PPN is uncertain
and dependent on a number of factors including resolution of
certain legal matters, which may result in a wide range of recovery
outcomes. The Group has made an assessment of the amount
recoverable under such uncertainties. The final amount of
recovery could be different from the assessment made by the
Group, and may result in future charge or credit to be recognised
in the income statement in the period when legal clarifications or

realisation of assets take place.

5.  Operating segment reporting

In prior years, the Group determined the segment information on the
basis of business segments, which are distinguishable business
divisions of the Group that provide products and services to customers
base or dealing with the market that are different to those of other
business segments (e.g. personal banking, commercial banking,
treasury and others). Business segments information was presented as
the primary reporting format while geographical segment information,
which was grouped by the location of the principal operations of the
Group as the secondary reporting format (e.g. Hong Kong and others,

and Macau).

In the 2009 financial year, segment reporting by the Group was prepared
for the first time in accordance with HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.
Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”),
which includes the Chief Executive and other Executive Committee
members, for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance, is determined on the basis of personal banking,
commercial banking, treasury and overseas banking business.
Operating performances are analyzed by business activities for local
banking business, and on business entity basis for overseas banking

business.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. Operating segment reporting (Continued)

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment, and regulations, we group the
operating segments of the Group into the following reportable
segments:

° Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft and credit card
services, the provision of insurance sales and investment
services.

° Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and
the provision of trade financing. Hire purchase finance and leasing
related to equipment, vehicle and transport financing are
included.

° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralized cash management for deposit taking and
lending, interest rate risk management, management of
investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.

° Overseas banking businesses includes personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

° Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from customers,
products and services directly identifiable with individual segments are
reported directly under respective segments, while revenue and funding
cost arising from inter-segment funding operation and funding
resources are allocated to segments by way of transfer pricing
mechanism with reference to market interest rates. Transactions within
segments are priced based on similar terms offered to or transacted
with external parties. Inter-segment income or expenses are eliminated
on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions are
grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5.

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Operating segment reporting (Continued)

B
BARST  EEST BTER
Personal Commercial BEX%  Overseas Hit @t
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others Total
FHERA/ (F ) Net interest income/(expenses)
—NAEP - external customers 548,671 862,120 741,014 244,845 (261,806) 2,134,754
-BEH - inter-segments 304,023 22,822 (344,351) (5,413) 22,919 -
FFEMA/ (F i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 217,516 88,333 59,085 61,092 (224,719) 201,307
BERA/ (TH) Total operating income/(expenses) 1,070,210 973,275 455,748 300,524 (463,696) 2,336,061
BEYH Operating expenses (1,152,377)  (243,345) (90,275)  (223,061) (17,067)  (1,726,125)
NRREEERZ Operating (loss)/profit before impairment
BE(BR) /&7 losses (82,167) 729,930 365,473 77,463 (480,763) 609,936
BEHREFEREMEE Loan impairment losses and other credit
BE provisions (121,425  (278,401) (17,941) (9,254) (639)  (427,660)
ETREREREENE Operating (loss)/profit before gains or
BB ZEE (BE) losses on certain investments and
Ve fixed assets (203,592) 451,529 347,532 68,209 (481,402) 182,276
LEREWE  TERE Net (loss)/gain on disposal of and fair value
tEEEEREATE adjustment on investment properties,
#E2F (BB s premises and other fixed assets 1) - - 1,193 79,885 81,057
LERSRET (BR) Net (loss)/gain on disposal of investment
V2! ¢ in securities (368) - (31,279) - 7,128 (24,519)
EhEBENR 7 %5 Share of results of an associate - - - 195,770 - 195,770
R LREGIER R Share of results of jointly controlled entities - - - - 5,103 5,103
EEEEERS 2 FhER Net gain on repurchase of subordinated
debts - - - - 243,983 243,983
BHA (B8) /27 (Loss)/profit before income tax (203,981) 451,529 316,253 265,172 (145,303) 683,670
HEEE/ (Zi) Income tax credit/(expense) 30,025 (74,946) (52,262) (6,754) 21,148 (82,789)
Bk (B8) /27 (Loss)/profit after income tax (173,956) 376,583 263,991 258,418 (124,155) 600,881
BHEZZZTNE+ZRA=T—HIEEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2009
WEREHER Depreciation and amortisation 35,518 16,040 7,525 40,564 14,467 114,114
RZEFNE+-A=1—H As at 31 December 2009
PREE Segment assets 23,774,530 27,743,861 46,356,147 14,782,608 971,593 113,628,748
PEEE Segment liabilities 53,914,872 14,216,278 18,416,822 11,452,134 4,837,507 102,837,613
N KHRTERAERA A TN FER
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5.  Operating segment reporting (Continued)

HEZZZENFET_A=+—RHILFE For the year ended 31 December 2008
B
AT  BERG RITER
Personal  Commercial ~ BIE%%  Overseas Hit gt
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others Total
FHEMA/ (ZE) Net interest income/(expenses)
-HREF - external customers (21,086) 1,191,927 1,314,110 201,031 (478,396) 2,207,586
S - inter-segments 884,739 (352,082) (993,537) 32,452 428,378 -
FEHERA Non-interest income 373,703 122,376 84,862 90,424 135,024 806,589
BEMA Total operating income 1,237,356 962,271 405,435 323,907 85206 3,014,175
HEIM Operating expenses (1,018,147) (196,505) (78,098) (214,457) (47,950) (1,555,157

NRREERN 28R
EXRERRRELE
ERR

ETRERETEEK
B BRI EERT
LEREWE  TERK
tETEEREATE
BRI/ (BB
LEEFRE 2 Fha

B ENR 2%

EiERRAZHER XA
BERECRBERER

BHAER/ (B8
B () /B

BERER/ (BR)

HE-ZZ\FT-A=T-HLFE

NERERER

R-_EE\E+-A=1-H
NEEE
NIBEE

Operating profit before impairment losses 219,209 765,766 327,337 109,450 37,256 1,459,018
Loan impairment losses and other credit
provisions (135,609) (477,229) - (45,364) (333) (658,535)

Operating profit before gains or losses on
certain investments and fixed assets 83,600 288,537 327,337 64,086 36,923 800,483
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of and fair value

adjustment on investment properties,

premises and other fixed assets 20 - - 617 (78,706) (78,089)
Net gain on disposal of investment in

securities 5,920 - 1,414 815 10,341 18,490
Share of results of an associate - - - 120,589 - 120,589
Share of results of jointly controlled entities = = = = 5,674 5,674
Impairment losses charged on investment

in securities - - (357,684) (39,098) (258,520) (655,302)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 89,540 288,537 (28,933) 147,009 (284,288) 211,865
Income tax (expense)/credit (14,030) (48,273) 4,841 (19,633) 55,807 (21,288)
Profit/(loss) after income tax 75,510 240,264 (24,092) 127,376 (228,481) 190,577

For the year ended 31 December 2008
Depreciation and amortisation 31,333 21,513 8,681 39,552 13,449 114,528

As at 31 December 2008

Segment assets 23,734,377 31,700,062 41,297,573 13,674,867 1,979,340 112,386,219
Segment liabilities 54,608,881 13,389,663 13,800,615 10,655,281 11,737,985 104,192,425
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. Operating segment reporting (Continued)

HINREP 2 WS T RBE MR ER  BFIRPEZ
RITHBRR - KEMRRZIZEREREE
EEIZER  FERE  AERE RUEPSE

FRERBE -

TREHZREBECZER - BEDREAEE
EERBRINAEPRERY - REREHER
5 MRS RR 2 FRPE T FERR

Revenues from external customers were contributed from banking
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and People’s Republic of China,

with major products and services including deposit taking, extension

of credit, asset-based finance, securities investment services offered

to customers.

The following tables provide information by geographical area, which

was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal entities within

the group with business dealing and relationship with, and services to

external customers.

B2 ER
TEREM Inter-
Hong Kong B segment #Et
and Others Macau elimination Total
BE-ZZNEF For the year ended
+tZB=t—HILEE 31 December 2009
EEIA Operating income 2,104,965 231,438 (342) 2,336,061
B 750 Al i A Profit before income tax 615,439 68,231 - 683,670
R-ZBEAE+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2009
BEA Total assets 104,659,088 11,548,778 (2,579,118) 113,628,748
BEAE Total liabilities 95,627,966 9,788,765 (2,579,118) 102,837,613
BREEREE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 603,455 = 922,122
kA B R REIE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 42,727,433 1,379,709 - 44,107,142
[ 15 5 T
HiH
BEENEM Inter-
Hong Kong A segment Bt
and Others Macau elimination Total
BHE_TTN\F For the year ended
+-—A=+—HLFE 31 December 2008
EEIA Operating income 2,758,069 256,381 (275) 3,014,175
PR 5% A1 5 Profit before income tax 194,594 17,271 = 211,865
R_TZENF+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2008
BEAR Total assets 103,304,945 11,253,411 (2,172,137) 112,386,219
Bfads Total liabilities 96,783,058 9,581,504 (2,172,137) 104,192,425
BREERGE Intangible assets and goodwill 321,223 617,342 - 938,565
kA B R R AEIE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 37,094,520 1,485,131 - 38,579,651

N KR TEEAR D A
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6. FABBA

6. Net interest income

—EZhE —ZTTN\EF
2009 2008
FE WA Interest income
H e R ERITH R Cash and balances with banks 131,632 375,003
BHRRE Investments in securities 683,506 1,290,235
EPRIBITER Advances to customers and banks 2,204,848 2,945,973
HAth Others 136 1,257
3,020,122 4,612,468
FEFZH Interest expense
RITFERBEFER Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 607,143 1,839,600
BERITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 42,663 200,175
BERITHELRE S Issued debt securities 90,611 89,399
BEE® Subordinated notes 102,216 209,819
Hh Others 42,735 65,889
885,368 2,404,882
FIEWABHE Included within interest income
EWREZFBWA Interest income on listed investments 422,892 1,108,681
JEETHIRE 2 F B A Interest income on unlisted investments 260,614 181,554
683,506 1,290,235
JERAFEAFEBHE Interest income on financial assets not
ML EEEZHBWMA at fair value through profit or loss 2,935,812 3,842,283
REEER S WA Interest income on impaired assets 15,429 16,069
FMEZHBEHE Included within interest expense
AR FEFZ A HEBT AR Interest expenses on financial liabilities
HEeraE s ExH not at fair value through profit or loss 712,851 2,075,646
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
7.  HWREE RSB 7. Net fee and commission income
—EEAF —ZTEN\F
2009 2008
BREERASKRA Fee and commission income
FEAAFEAFEBHE Fee and commission income from
SFAERHNEREERAEZ financial assets and liabilities not
AR & &R e A at fair value through profit or loss
-~ EEEMZREERAS — Credit related fees and commissions 73,394 65,262
- B5mE — Trade finance 38,066 57,520
— A+ — Credit card 209,743 198,634
HiR&EERASKA Other fee and commission income
— BARLERIKRE RS - Securities brokerage and investment
services 46,569 149,772
— IRERSHE R EAM — Insurance distribution and others 33,003 46,367
— ZEREES REFARS - Retail investment funds and fiduciary
services 9,337 44,490
— Hib R & - Other fees 66,731 74,955
476,843 637,000
BREERASIH Fee and commission expense
FEEERAR Handling fees and commission 115,672 92,947
BT EMER Other fees paid 12,890 11,789
128,562 104,736
AEBRE=FREBTE It CESERK The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
BEERY - ZFEUZEAFHR/EZEELT investment management services to third parties. Those assets that
BEELEMBHEHREA - are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial
statements.
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8.  Net trading (loss)/income

—EEhE —TTN\F
2009 2008
INVE B B F W= Net gain arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 159,615 258,603
RHIEBERBMERZF (FB18) e Net (loss)/gain from trading securities (2,369) 12,449
BIEEERARMITET A 2 F s/ (Bi8) Net gain/(loss) from derivatives entered
into for trading purpose 2,065 (137,357)
BATFEHERHNEESR T A Z FER Net loss arising from financial instruments
subject to fair value hedge (60,476) (15,511)
EENLNAFEFEBEE Net (loss)/gain arising from financial
d‘)\?g SWERMITAZE (BB Ik instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss (273,761) 92,876
(174,926) 211,060
9. HAbEEU A 9.  Other operating income
—EEBhE —TTN\F
2009 2008
AHEEFHFRE 2REKA Dividend income from investments in
available-for-sale securities
- tHiRE - Listed investments 970 1,720
— EEMERE — Unlisted investments 4,803 4,174
WEYHE 2SR A B Gross rental income from investment
properties 8,424 11,720
HapfAe kA Other rental income 5,752 5,462
HAh Others 8,003 40,189
27,952 63,265
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

10. BETH

I

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

10. Operating expenses

—EEhE Z—ZINF
2009 2008
EE HREF =T Employee compensation and benefit
(BREEEZH) (FF:E11) expenses (including directors’
remuneration) (Note 11) 753,549 677,835
TERAMEEEESH - Premises and other fixed assets
TEEFE expenses, excluding depreciation
—1TEZEE® — Rental of premises 81,768 79,679
— HAth — Others 81,389 78,766
e (FizE34) Depreciation (Note 34) 97,671 95,492
EEXH Advertising costs 60,632 76,110
mRAEEHER (FI:E33) Amortisation expenses of intangible
assets (Note 33) 16,443 19,036
=N £ Auditors’ remuneration 5,780 5,780
Hh (F1) Others (Note) 628,893 522,459
1,726,125 1,555,157
EEE Note:

BRE_ZEN\GFR_ZFENFE[EMIB N ZEMBE
EXH R BEAROATHEASER T \F+=
A=+ HpHEE ThHESHARBERTZITERE
R85 RiAKERGQEEKEREREBRRmR]
(FHaE4.2(R)) P Rzt - MERRE-ZTNF
T ARz BFEEEER S CERE M+ MEEBRT)
NEPEBE SR FEFZEN  UARAKER_ZFT
NE+—ARETHESBTLRARENAML S —
HERUEDEAR 2 EN  YH_FTTAF+ A=+
—BZERE - FRHEMAER 2 BE

FEBRIRESEM S - ANEBE 2EE & 2022,000,0007
THERASEERS SRIRESD I ATRELZ A
SREBAESRIFEF ZETA - BRI E K&
BEMKFMEER2EA -

11. 18 B 37 48 A 32

A substantial portion of other operating expenses included in “Others” in 2009
and 2008 was expenses incurred on Lehman Brothers related products in relation
to the Repurchase Schemes (Note 4.2 (e)) and the voluntary offers based on the
Group’s judgment as at 31 December 2008, and subsequently settlements with
customers pursuant to a voluntary repurchase scheme announced in July 2009
(together with another 14 banks in Hong Kong) on the repurchase of Lehman
Brothers minibonds, followed by another voluntary repurchase scheme
announced by the Group in December 2009 on certain principal protected notes
issued by Lehman Brothers, and further assessment for position as at 31
December 2009.

With respect to the repurchase of Minibonds, the Group has made available an
amount equivalent to the total commission income received as a Lehman
Brothers Minibonds distributor of approximately HK$22 million to the trustee of
the Lehman Brothers Minibonds to fund the trustee’s expenses in recovering
and realising the value of the underlying collateral.

11. Employee compensation and benefit expenses

—RBAE —TINE

2009 2008
FMREMASEZER Salaries and other staff costs 697,689 674,447
VAR B B R SR BN E (4R B (B ) Provision for share-based compensation
(B 5E51) charged/(reversed) (Note 51) 22,836 (42,540)
RReXH Pension costs
— REHREE - defined contribution plans 33,024 45,928
753,549 677,835
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

11. 18 B 3 XE A 2 )

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

11. Employee compensation and benefit expenses
(Continued)
BaMez Al AL The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals:
0 B ()  The aggregate emoluments
—E2hE Z—ZTITNF
2009 2008
e BE - BEYMmREMER Salaries, housing, benefits in kind and
other allowances 51,660 23,159
RRe R Pensions 1,065 1,588
52,725 24,747

(i) DURSBAALHBMSAERINAT

(i)  The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were within

the following bands:

A
Number of individuals

—EEAF —TTN\F
2009 2008

7T HK$
3,500,001 — 4,000,000 - 2
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 - 2
7,000,001 - 7,500,000 1 -
8,000,001 — 8,500,000 1 -
8,500,001 — 9,000,000 - 1
11,000,000 - 11,500,000 2 -
14,000,000 - 14,500,000 1 -
5 5]

ERAfiiZesHeRAZALTA B0 (ZFF
NE: Of) REEES - HAENEZEHEC
BREERERZKIE12A -

AERN - AEBEVEREALUCZSHRAA LI
NS - (ERINASINBEARRE 2 RE N

f& -

g

bBRRUSRREAALOMEBREEREEZF
JZ PR AR TS AN AN S (8] 2 ZE AR HO TR IR BRI TEAT ©

Included in the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were
the emoluments of 4 (2008: 4) Directors. Their respective Directors’

emoluments have been included in Note 12 below.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office during the year.
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals shown above

included incentive bonuses accrued in respect of the services rendered

and the Group’s performance for the financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

12. =HHEWMWE 12. Directors’ emoluments

BEFEZHFMOT M The remuneration of each Director is set out below:

BEBEARM

Rz R

REBEA

(1)

Incentive

bonuses

HER accrued
ENAE  inrespectof LIRGHAER

Salary, services  M%fF (:9)

E3he allowances rendered  Share-based
HEZ_ZZNF Year ended Directors’  and benefits in the year payment BARSHI &it
TZA=1t—HLEE 31 December 2009 Fee in kind (Note 1) (Note 3) Pensions Total
£ Chairman
TFERE David Shou-Yeh Wong 500 3,960 7,000 - - 11,460
HTES Executive directors
BEEEEE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 6,000 - 400 14,400
FRELE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 3,900 4,000 - 240 8,140
BEXEE Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu) - 2,644 1,500 - 128 4,272
FHERE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong - 3,250 4,000 - 200 7,450
AEERE Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau - 2,600 600 = 160 3,360
FUTES Non-executive directors
MR- A Kazutake Kobayashi 2 - - = = 2
BRRERE Keisuke Tahara 178 - - - - 178
BUFATES Independent non-executive directors
SEERE John W. Simpson 180 - - - - 180
BINEEE David R. Hinde 180 - - - - 180
LERBEE Robert Tsai-To Sze 300 - - - - 300
PEERAE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 180 - - - - 180
RIHIEE Seng-Lee Chan 180 - - - - 180
At Total 1,700 24,354 23,100 - 1,128 50,282

WGV KB TEBERAT T NLFFIHR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
12. EHHME @D 12. Directors” emoluments (Continued)
BEFARE
sz BiR
RETA
(i%2)
Incentive
bonuses
FER accrued
EWFE  inrespectof AR AER
Salary, services  MIAY (39)
ESHE allowances rendered  Share-based

HEZTTN\E Year ended Directors’  and benefits in the year payment BB B

+=A=1+—HLFE 31 December 2008 Fee in kind (Note 2) (Note 3) Pensions Total

B3 Chairman

TTFEEE David Shou-Yeh Wong 500 3,960 - - - 4,460

HES Executive directors

FEELE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 - - 600 8,600

FlELE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 3,900 - - 360 4,260

BEXEE Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu) - 2,644 - - 192 2,836

THRERE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong - 3,250 - - 300 3,550

HEREL Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau - 2,600 - - 240 2,840

FHTES Non-executive directors

AR & Keisuke Tahara 180 - - - - 180

BUEHTES Independent non-executive directors

ERERE John W. Simpson 180 - - - - 180

EEEE David R. Hinde 180 - - - - 180

REREE Robert Tsai-To Sze 300 - - - - 300

REERE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 180 - - - - 180

BRBE 5% Seng-Lee Chan 67 - - - - 67

A% Total 1,587 24,354 - - 1,692 27,633

(2 Note:

1. RZZEZNF+ZA=T—HBRBHEAE=ZZN (1) Incentive bonuses in respect of 2009 performance and service accrued
FREZRBRZFEZEEMBRRE-ST at 31 December 2009 for distribution to relevant Directors subsequent to
NE+ZA=+T—HBRERTEBES 2 RET 31 December 2009 have been stated, as applicable, to individual Directors
A BER2IIREREEREEESNEA-STTA and included as their 2009 emoluments.

FHE -

2. AEEEBRATENESREREE_SZ/\F (2)  The Group had resolved that no incentive bonuses as at 31 December
R 2R REFE 2 EELEREEAL - R 2008 were payable to Directors in respect of 2008 for performance and
ZEENET A=+ B ETEREEIEAL - services rendered. No accrual for incentive bonuses was made as at 31

December 2008.
3. AR D BER 2 TARIERSIMN - ITRESTT (3)  Share-based payment represents the cash payment, being the difference

EERBRERRR TS RTEETEELE
Ho

between the closing market price and exercise price of the share options
on the date when a Director exercised the options granted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

13, Bk e 48 S I i 15 B 1t

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

13. Loan impairment losses and other credit provisions

—EBAE —TTNF
2009 2008
BERURERE Loan impairment losses
EFER Advances to customers 408,925 658,535
RITER Advances to banks 155 -
FEETFI B K E b B8R B Accrued interest and other accounts 639 =
409,719 658,535
BRI E M RIE R E RSB X Net charge of impairment losses on
advances and other accounts
— {ERIFT S — Individually assessed 176,416 476,335
— tREFHE - Collectively assessed 233,303 182,200
409,719 658,535
EheE Of which
— FIEEE (BERFANEEMIE 2 £58) — new allowances (including amounts
directly written off in the year) 681,034 784,634
— =8 - releases (207,391) (46,678)
— = — recoveries (63,924) (79,421)
409,719 658,535
HMEERE Other credit provisions
& BB (B E 1B Individual impairment losses on
— BREEERKEWRIELER — Investments in securities included in
2 EHKRAE (Mizk26) the loans and receivables category
(Note 26) 17,941 -
17,941 -
WS BRI Net charge to income statement 427,660 658,535
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

14, HVEATEE A I 2 2 AT A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

14. Net gain on disposal and revaluation of premises and

Z F WA other fixed assets
—EBEEhE —TTN\F
2009 2008
TEEGHRERE (GRE) Deficit recovered/(charged) on

revaluation of premises 1,453 (819)
HEITE 2 F e Net gain from disposal of premises 1,463 1,857

& B E & E 2 FER Net loss from disposal of other
fixed assets (165) (184)
2,751 854

15. S BE YR I PR B F i
it/ (& iR)

15. Net gain/(loss) on disposal of and fair value adjustment

on investment properties

—RENE —TINF

2009 2008
HEYMEANFEREZFRES (E18) Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustment
on investment properties 75,016 (78,923)
SR E Y 2 F Net gain from disposal of investment
properties 3,290 -
78,306 (78,923)

16. o] Ji 4% £ 0 5 2 8 WL 2

RZZEZNGFFE  AEEERGEEEERE
ERAER UFTBEELBEEREAREEAR
70,000,000 T AFRITR ST LF A+
NBEITZKATBREGR ([EH]) (KaF
42) - REAREREBHERZZEHFSEH 2
%3 A #)4EFE70,000,0003 7T 2 48 B A1 &= 48 HA 7R
REBEMAL - REB TSI 2 FHKET 8%
BT B 8 f 4% | 4R B Sk b HA 1 34 3R 2 75 s o
ZE BB RERFERER/RIRITZ = RHM 0
B B E ST & B HI AR IE R AR
IRITZ BEXMINER o

16. Net gain on repurchase of subordinated debts

During 2009, the Group, after receiving the prior consent of the HKMA,
repurchased a total of US$70 million notional principal value of the
Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes issued by DSB on 16
February 2007 (the “Notes”) at a discount (Note 42). Notional contract
amount of the associated interest rate swap totalling US$70 million
originally taken to swap the interest rate of the Notes to a floating rate
basis was also terminated upon the repurchase. The net gain recorded
is the net realised gain arising from the repurchase of the Notes and the
termination of the related interest rate swap. The repurchased Notes,
previously qualified as upper supplementary capital of DSB, were
cancelled and de-recognised as DSB’s liability or supplementary capital

after the completion of the purchase.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

17. BiIEZH

H B NGB T0 32 BB A N At FE AR B 0 I DA B =R
16.5% (ZZTZ)\4F : 16.5%) IR B EME - BN
1B H TR F N IME s IR B F R A 5 B A
EEBHE ZRITHETHE o

REEHBERAABEARNEREE  UHE
16.5% (T )\ : 16.5%) (E 2 R -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

17. Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on

overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit

for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is a calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using a taxation rate of 16.5% (2008:16.5%)

—EEhE Z—ZINF
2009 2008
NEEHIE : Current income tax:
BEBEMEH Hong Kong profits tax 80,945 3,844
INEEIR Overseas taxation 11,422 19,803
RBAEFE (B TRZEE (Oven/underprovision in prior years (2,304) 7,533
EFERIE (F15E43) Deferred income tax (Note 43)
—BRABEEH 2% — Impact of change of Hong Kong
tax rate - (2,143)
—BREREENEERED — Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (7,274) (7,749)
RIS W Income tax expense 82,789 21,288

AEBERBANG N 2 HIBBRIRERA &R RIINE

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the

B RFAHE 2 IBRBEEOT ¢ theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:
—EBhE ZTINF
2009 2008
B B2 BT Vg A Profit before income tax 683,670 211,865
258 R & R s A 2 AN 3 Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
HEFTHE 2 HHIE applicable to profits in the respective
countries 112,806 34,958
HIBAERR Tax effects of:
H B R 2 AR # Different taxation rates in other countries (3,134) (1,535)
BB 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (50,194) (21,846)
TR A Expenses not deductible 58,759 24,614
ARG 18 E R 23 2 BE & AR & Results of associates and jointly
HEEFIERE 2 HEE controlled entities reported net of tax (33,144) (20,293)
B@iﬂ&ﬁr (WB%E) TRz (Oven/underprovision in prior years (2,304) 7,533
B FTERLEFIE Remeasurement of deferred tax
—HERER - change of tax rate - (2,143)
FHIES H Income tax expense 82,789 21,288

Gl AHRTEBERLR —ZEZENFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

18. R MEA EH

IIRMARAIABHREAZBREEERRS
19,638,000/ 7T (= FF /\ 4 : )i 7338,698,000
AL

19. KB

ARBlBEZTENF+A=1+—HILFER
WA RS (ZE2F)\F : #£%17307,609,000
YETT (BRR0.338 L) K E) - EF S TERRE =
ST NFERARE -

A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

18. Loss attributable to shareholders

The loss attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of HK$19,638,000 (2008: profit
of HK$338,698,000).

19. Dividends

No dividend was paid during the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008:
dividend of HK$0.33 per share totalling HK$307,609,000 was paid).
The Directors do not propose the payment of a final dividend in respect
of 2009.

—EEAF —ZTZN\F
Company 2009 2008

ST ERR B ¢
(ZZEZ)N\F : FRERR018ETT)
BRAHRS &
(ZZEZ)NF : &)

20. HBREA

AR E A 2 F T 1% B8 22 71600,826,000/5 7T (=
T\ : 188,642,000/ 7T) & F A E TG hN
7 F 5 #1,004,520,513 (=T T )\ £F :
932,193,954/%) 5t & o

TR #EE 2 51 T5 1% B8 22 71600,826,000/5 7T (=
T\ : 188,642,000/ 7T) & F AL TR 1N
7 #9 801,004,520,513 (=TT N\ &F
932,193,954 %) W i P ¥ MR B S =
EFAFESH -

—EENFER_TENFZEREMNL B EEE
2

Interim dividend paid, of HK$Nil

(2008: HK$0.18) per ordinary share - 167,897
Proposed final dividend of HK$Nil

(2008: HK$NIl) per ordinary share - -

- 167,897

20. Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on earnings of
HK$600,826,000 (2008: HK$188,642,000) and the weighted average
number of 1,004,520,513 (2008: 932,193,954) shares in issue during

the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on earnings of
HK$600,826,000 (2008: HK$188,642,000) and the weighted average
number of 1,004,520,513 (2008: 932,193,954) shares in issue during
the year after adjusting for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares.

There has been no dilutive effect to the earnings per share in 2009 and
2008.

—RBAE —TINE
2009 2008

T-A=+—BEnEREIERN
Z B N 15 21

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares as at 31 December 1,004,520,513 932,193,954
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

21, Bl& RAERAT AR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21. Cash and balances with banks

£8 AF
Group Company
“EEAE —TTNF —EENE ZTENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
e RIERITOE Cash and balances with banks 2,453,928 2,434,158 10,727 4,029
RS SRR Money at call and short notice 7,999,438 10,231,009 7,062 15,047
10,453,366 12,665,167 17,789 19,076
22, TESRATHIAERK 22. Placements with banks
£8 RF
Group Company
“EThE ZTENE —ZENE —ZTT)N\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
ERIT—ZET=@AR Placements with banks maturing
B EfF R between one and twelve months 4,282,749 1,656,950 - -

WO KR TEBEFRAD T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

23. FEEFERENRE R e A FE
Al i H LA W)t AR 25 B0 4 il

&M

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss

—EZTAE _—ZETNF
Group 2009 2008

HIFE TR RN E
BEBES
- iﬁ\;‘%iﬁﬁ
— BB ET
— JFET

FIEEBERENESFER

*El SF@Q+EEH; """"" Ebu+A
j‘%ﬁﬁfﬂ’]érﬁﬂﬁﬁ

BBES
— BB ET
— LT

WAT B S A EB B AN
mERmAERS

FERBEREME %&LA?EEQ?@?%
BEEHFAEBRNEREER

BREEEFESANEA :

- BIEERSEESREES BT ES

— M EEES
RZBENEFER_FTZEN\F+_A=+—H ' £t
MEBEHFREEBAT EBRERFEFERE
RZZEZTAFE+-_A=+—0  BIEE Lii#HE
EERBRNE SN HEEA4,689,792,0007 T

/\ y

ZTN\F  8B) ZINEESEBHREHFEERT
\/%/i\%? AMRAEEEINERE S B EFH
RHSEFRED -

D

BB

RIFEEMENES RIEENA R FEFEERS
B ABTMEREERBITRBERR S0
T

Trading securities:
Debt securities:

— Listed in Hong Kong 1,051,938 923,292
— Listed outside Hong Kong - 17,034
— Unlisted 4,543,378 935,238
Total trading securities 5,595,316 1,875,564
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss:
Debt securities:
— Listed outside Hong Kong 11,232 135,364
— Unlisted - 429,926
Total financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss 11,232 565,290
Total trading securities and financial
assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss 5,606,548 2,440,854
Included within debt securities are:
— Government bonds included in
trading securities 5,570,751 1,812,779
— Other debt securities 35,797 628,075
5,606,548 2,440,854

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, there were no certificates of deposit

held included in the above balances of investments in debts securities.

As at 31 December 2009, Exchange Fund debt securities included in
trading securities above with a market value of HK$4,689,792,000
(2008: HK$NIl) were pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s
trading and market-making activities in Exchange Fund debts.

Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair value through

profit or loss are analysed by categories of issuers as follows:

—EEAE —ZTTN\EF

= Group 2009 2008
— PFRBEFFIF RELT — Central governments and central banks 5,570,751 1,812,779
— NEWE — Public sector entities 3,706 24,414
— RITNREMEEIEE — Banks and other financial institutions 20,859 38,371
— % — Corporate entities 11,232 565,290
5,606,548 2,440,854
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

24, 4@ T H

R-FFAF+-_A=1t—BRIHPITETASL

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. Derivative financial instruments

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and

HBEAENEATFERT : their fair values as of 31 December 2009 were as follows:
=5 4
EESHE AFE
Contract/ Fair values
notional EE =L
£8 Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) BIEEEABRZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) JMELTAETAR a) Foreign exchange derivatives
EHEBEEHD Forward and future contracts 72,533,088 231,805 (105,511)
Bk Currency swaps 464,225 3,525 (47,588)
B A Ko H ANE H i Currency options purchased and written 1,378,430 1,660 (1,639)
b) FIEPTETA b) Interest rate derivatives
7 = 42 1 Interest rate swaps 8,764,261 62,674 (149,351)
B\ RO H A o HR A Interest rate options purchased and written = = =
c) ERMITETA c) Equity derivatives
B A Roh R 1 E AR Equity options purchased and written 66,449 531 (531)
RIEEER®ZTETIA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (A& held for trading 83,206,453 300,195 (304,620)
2) FHEEHARZITAETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) IEHEULTFEH a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
ZITHETA
| &4 2 Interest rate swaps 11,688,807 130,395 (909,114)
RIEEHRBZITHETA Total derivative assets/((iabilities)
BE /(A% &t held for hedging 11,688,807 130,395 (909,114)
3) mEE 'JT\ﬁé\f’F”’ﬁfﬂP 3) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
R#% - BREEENATE purposes but which are managed in conjunction
af? BHE aﬂkiﬂﬁﬁ & with the financial instruments designated at
CRITAE—REE fair value through profit or loss
ZOTETA
EkER Currency swaps 448,815 66,392 -
|3 4= 48 Interest rate swaps 1,233,235 91,796 -
IEEEE AR ZITETR Total derivative assets not
BEAR qualified as hedges 1,682,050 158,188 =
BERRZITESRIA Total recognised derivative financial
&/ (A% a5t assets/(liabilities) 96,577,310 588,778 (1,213,734)

el RHRITEERR D F

—ZETNEFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

TAEA

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and

N2 BEASREAFERT : their fair values as of 31 December 2008 were as follows:
&8/
EELH ATLHE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE g8&
- Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) HFIEEERSZITETR 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) JMEPTAETR a) Foreign exchange derivatives
EHREEEH Forward and future contracts 61,684,583 263,311 (297,452)
i Currency swaps 1,045,229 8,362 (39,759)
BB\ R AN HR 4 Currency options purchased and written 23,321,550 40,001 (38,141)
b) FIEITAETA b) Interest rate derivatives
F & 4= 2 Interest rate swaps 16,493,221 176,103 (284,236)
B A Koh ) & HR Interest rate options purchased and written 1,489,445 20,447 (20,447)
o) BmlMtii4TA c) Equity derivatives
B\ RO H i 2 1 R Equity options purchased and written 79,323 4,944 (4,936)
FIEEER®ZITELAR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/ (AR &t trading 104,113,351 513,168 (684,971)
2) FHEEHRABRZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) EEURFEH T a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
ZITHETA
A 4 2 Interest rate swaps 13,402,453 397,443 (1,568,246)
FHEEMAGRZITET R Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
L&/ (BB & held for hedging 13,402,453 397,443 (1,568,246)
3) BEFAEAR ?/\T’E”‘HP 3) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
R#% - BEEFENAATE purposes but which are managed in conjunction
:ﬁriﬁﬁf Eaﬂ\?ﬁﬁ?’iﬁ’\] with the financial instruments designated
CRITAE—REE at fair value through profit or loss
ZITETA
=i Currency swaps 368,499 491 (14,423)
F == A1 Interest rate swaps 3,658,750 155,337 =
IEEEH AR ZTETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) not qualified
BE/ (AR &5 as hedges 4,027,249 155,828 (14,423)
ERRZITEERIA Total recognised derivative financial
BE/ (AR A&t assets/(liabilities) 121,543,053 1,066,439 (2,267,640)
BENMETAEZATEREZRE A2 EEFH The effect of valid bilateral netting agreements has been taken into
HEELZHNTE o account in disclosing the fair value of derivatives.
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FRBEEERERGE MR ARKBETL
Eﬁi%i%%ﬁﬁi”ﬁﬁﬁz%%z BEEAERIINAAN
BRAntERER - 25T ¢

l:l,\

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures calculated under Basel Il basis and without taking into
account the effect of bilateral netting arrangement that the Group

entered into, are as follows:

—EEAE —ZTZTN\F

£H Group 2009 2008
PTETE Derivatives

EXGH Exchange rate contracts 460,239 530,361

FEEH Interest rate contracts 200,384 401,681

Hiha# Other contracts 1,979 5,023

662,602 937,065

HNETAEZENHBELRERBKEHRNR S The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of

B W ARRERBREE -

EERRMEHBEI2EFESERFEH Z(R
TERERN)RADMAE ZBE - FAEMAE 28
BARFRZHEFRBBECHOEHFIEME

Bm AR G ERIE T AR K 2.9 B -

N & B R A LA g B =X 2 A T E 4 R

BREEER R BRI 2 FFRE - Al
EEBEAFAREEITEABEZHOHRETERR -
5% T B~ Y25 4331,400,00058 7T (= Z =)\
F : E51E/51,049,171,000/8 7T) ° HHHIE B B
5 &L B 2 &5 18 & 391,876,000/8 T (=2 E N

2 @ If257/41,033,660,000/7T) © HHRFED 2

SURH RS2 [ A FEE T IIBES BT AZF
R
N AHBTEBERATD —EEAFEH

transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period, they do

not represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the

counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in Note
2.9.

The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
investments in securities included in the loans and receivables category,
available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities by fair value
hedges in the form of interest rate swap. The gains on the hedging
instruments were HK$331,400,000 (2008: a loss of HK$1,049,171,000).
The losses on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk were
HK$391,876,000 (2008: a gain of HK$1,033,660,000). The net impact
is disclosed in “Net loss arising from financial instruments subject to

fair value hedge” in Note 8.
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25. A IEE KA H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. Advances and other accounts

—RBAE —TINE

= Group 2009 2008
AR KRB Loans and advances to individuals
— ERAF — Credit cards 3,289,460 3,482,972
— BBER — Mortgages 18,972,569 18,526,215
— Hfth — Others 3,283,575 3,802,967
TEERRBK Loans and advances to corporate entities
— BHEXR — Term loans 11,317,643 10,205,960
— BBER — Mortgages 8,088,435 8,496,416
-~ ZE5mE — Trade finance 3,281,532 4,638,482
— Hith - Others 8,931,945 11,846,061
XEERBAE Gross advances to customers 57,165,159 60,999,073
RITERBAE Gross advances to banks 150,000 179,226
57,315,159 61,178,299
H fth & 2= (Fi3E36) Other assets (Note 36) 1,544,674 2,281,945

M R
— AR
— A

BIEEER N ERFIERR

2 BHEE (Mizx26)

BEERKREAMERA

LR FEFEEDEE 5 E5348,026,000745 7T
—ET )\ : 449,373,000/ 7T) ©

Less: Impairment allowances
— Individually assessed (317,017) (550,909)
— Collectively assessed (358,212) (298,645)

(675,229) (849,554)
Investments in securities included
in the loans and receivables category
(Note 26) 8,799,348 6,896,646

Advances and other accounts 66,983,952 69,507,336

Included in gross advances to customers above are trade bills of
HK$348,026,000 (2008: HK$449,373,000).
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25. HEEHRREMEEH
(H) % P 83k S 8k 2 s 18 v 15 1% 0 SR (a)

#*

(%) 25.

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Advances and other accounts (Continued)

advances to customers

B R — 18 BTtk
Impairment allowances
- Individual assessment

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans and

RBEN Hity &%

58 Group Mortgages Others Total
BAEREBRRHEEE2EE  Movement in impairment allowances on loans

and advances to individuals
—EZE)N\F—-A—HBHOEH Balance at 1 January 2008 3,238 2,627 5,865
BB B R Impairment losses charged 910 1,304 2,214
RELEBEFMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (1,837) (1,161) (2,998)
W Bl B A MsE 2 B Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 1,810 468 2,278
Rl (B 2 45 T R ([0 3% Unwind of discount on allowance (194) = (194)
2T N\F+-_A=1+—H At 31 December 2008 3,927 3,238 7,165
ZZTNFE-A—HMNEH Balance at 1 January 2009 3,927 3,238 7,165
VEREYEAEEe Impairment losses reversed (1,793) (284) (2,077)
RELEBE M S Loans written off as uncollectible (1,983) (1,500) (3,483)
W Bl B A s 2 B Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 1,594 823 2,417
LB 2 1 1 R (B o0 3% Unwind of discount on allowance 91) = 91)
ZBEAF+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2009 1,654 2,277 3,931

HEERE-RETG
Impairment allowances
- Collective assessment
ER+ RBEN Hity &5t

£8 Group Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAEREBRFHELEE 22T  Movement in impairment allowances

on loans and advances to

individuals
“EENF-H-HmEH Balance at 1 January 2008 55,655 6,336 33,767 95,758
BEBRRE (2#) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 63,691 (3,351) 59,576 119,916
RELEREFMIER Loans written off as uncollectible (103,212) - (60,918) (164,130
WEBREEMIE 2 ER Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 23,330 - 48,313 71,643
HhFz Other adjustments - - 56 56
—EENF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2008 39,464 2,985 80,794 123,243
“ETNFE-A—BHEHR Balance at 1 January 2009 39,464 2,985 80,794 123,243
HEEBERE Impairment losses charged 117,446 192 268 117,906
ReLEEE M EE Loans written off as uncollectible (135,833) - (76,612) (212,445)
WEBREEMIEZER Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 13,968 - 40,115 54,083
BEE 5, 8 B Exchange adjustments - - ©) ©)
—EZAF+=HA=t—-H At 31 December 2009 35,045 3,177 44,564 82,786

176

RFBOTEEERD A

—ZETNEFR
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(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. HEEHRRELMIEE &) 25. Advances and other accounts (Continued)

(H) &5 83k B Bk 2 Jies 1 4 A e JE SBHHR (@) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans and
7= () advances to customers (Continued)

BB — @B

Impairment allowances - Individual assessment

BHEN EZME
Term BEEN Trade Hith =Ei
£E5 Group loans Mortgages finance Others Total
TEERRBR Movement in impairment
HEEEZ22S allowances on loans and
advances to corporate entities
—TENF-A-BHEH Balance at 1 January 2008 1,092 5,748 49,489 80,395 136,724
R IE R BT & Impairment losses charged 86,950 21,988 195,395 169,788 474,121
REEEEEHMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (921) (2,120 (44,777) (18,643) (66,461)
W Bl E R EEME 2 &R Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 93 253 2,966 2,180 5,492
BT (B B 5 Unwind of discount on allowance (14) (45) (656) (5,417) (6,132)
—EENF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2008 87,200 25,824 202,417 228,303 543,744
—“ZENF—F—HH%#H  Balance at 1 January 2009 87,200 25,824 202,417 228,303 543,744
REEBERE (2#) Impairment losses charged/

} (reversed) 6,009 (10,159) 23,725 158,279 177,854
RELEBE M HE Loans written off as uncollectible (42,019) (12,055) (181,997) (165,164) (401,235)
W el B R E s 2 B Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 1,513 470 3,452 1,989 7,424
B 2 4T 3 (8 B 5 Unwind of discount on allowance (760) (236) (1,735) (12,607) (15,338)
BE KGR Exchange adjustments @ - - - )
“ZEZAF+=-HA=+—H  At31December 2009 51,941 3,844 45,862 210,800 312,447

AEEE - GETH
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
BHEX EZME
Term BBEN Trade Hih =i
£8 Group loans Mortgages finance Others Total
TEERRBR Movement in impairment
HEEEZ2S allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
—EENF-H-HNOEH Balance at 1 January 2008 12,380 20,681 17,356 70,793 121,210
REBERE (25) Impairment losses charged/

(reversed) 4,231 (552) (2,964) 61,569 62,284
REEEEEHMEE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (8,043) (8,043)
WEBREEMIE 2 ER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 8 8
BEE 5, R L fth 5 B Exchange and other adjustments 583 12 94 (746) (57)
—ZEN\FF+ZRA=+—H At 31 December 2008 17,194 20,141 14,486 123,581 175,402
“ETNFE-A-BHEHR Balance at 1 January 2009 17,194 20,141 14,486 123,581 175,402
B 18 Impairment losses charged 16,484 46,229 14,724 37,805 115,242
REEEEERM T Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (15,373) (15,373)
—ZEEAFE+=-A=1—H At 31 December 2009 33,678 66,370 29,210 146,013 275,271
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25. HHEEHMAEMEEE @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. Advances and other accounts (Continued)

(&) SAT 3K B Bk > T JRE st ) B A 3 At (b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans and

W T = ) 48 1 5 HR T S AR 3R advances to banks, and accrued interest and other accounts

B EE- WEEE-

HEsTh 18 B FF 1

Impairment Impairment

allowances - allowances -

Collective Individual

assessment assessment

FESTRIEF

RITER H{h BRI\

& EN Accrued

Loans and interest and

advances to other

b3 Group banks accounts
RTERRER  REGFANEMNEMIRE Movement in impairment allowances

BEEEZ2EH on loans and advances to banks, and
accrued interest and other accounts

—TENFE-—A BN Balance at 1 January 2008 - -

VEREY SR Impairment losses charged - =

—EENEF+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2008 = =

ZETNF-—A—BHER Balance at 1 January 2009 - -

VEREY R Impairment losses charged 155 639

—EENF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2009 155 639

— & &=
EE
— ==

WER KR TEBEERAD T

NEFF o
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25. HHEEHMAEMEEE @)

(W) BAG7EF P Bk Je Bk 2 b L 15 HE
R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. Advances and other accounts (Continued)

(¢) Loans and advances to customers include finance lease

receivables as follows:

—EENAE —ZZT)N\F
3 Group 2009 2008
BREEMERE 2 EIWARES Gross investment in finance lease
receivable:
—F AR Not later than 1 year 2,611,281 3,667,280
—FUAEERF Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 2,173,340 3,628,393
= Later than 5 years 2,492,189 3,110,168
7,276,810 10,405,841
BEMREZ KRR Z @& WA Unearned future finance income on
finance leases (986,264) (1,363,390)
BMEREREFE Net investment in finance leases 6,290,546 9,042,451
MEMREREFHEAR 2HTWAT ¢ The net investment in finance leases is
analysed as follows:
—F AR Not later than 1 year 2,378,059 3,293,847
—FUEERF Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 1,873,643 3,216,505
FF E Later than 5 years 2,038,844 2,532,099
6,290,546 9,042,451

R-ZZETNF+_A=+—8 Liwmg&EHE
BEBBENRIEERERFGER(CTEENE
) -

—EEANFT A=+t BZAEEETREE
HEEFERTIURE 2 5 EH S E AR IE L 6 2R
& & /203,069,000 T (= T T )\ F
152,666,000/57T) °

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross

investment in finance lease above as at 31 December 2009 (2008:Nil).

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included in

the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2009 of the Group

amounted to HK$203,069,000 (2008: HK$152,666,000).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. Investments in securities included in the loans and

< receivables category
—EEAE —TTN\F
£H Group 2009 2008
BEEERMERFTIERRCEHFEE Investments in securities reclassified
from the available-for-sale category
- AR R E R A AV R — At fair value under
fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 6,509,995 5,113,559
— RE AT AR — At amortised cost 1,989,010 1,783,087
8,499,005 6,896,646
& B s (B ZE 1 Individual impairment allowances (1,893) =
8,497,112 6,896,646
RYRERF D EAER Investments in securities classified
FEWIER Z2EHFIEE as loan and receivables
upon initial recognition 302,236 -
8,799,348 6,896,646

AEERN AEBEHFHEREHEAMS
& &4 51 1,640,590,000/8 T (=TT )\ & -
6,519,483,000/57T) 2 Al EBHFEE R KR IE
WkIE R - BRSNS B 2 BN M

=11

- BRE B
102,758,000/ 7T 2 & %‘&ﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁ;ﬂiﬁm“?ﬂﬁ
8 - REBEFTHEA 17,941,000 7T 2 5 (B &5
B ZEBRNERLREREEAREERERER
IR —% 4 116,048,000/ 7T 2 FE - BNVER
ZIZEGRAHE R ERREN D AR ERERZ
EERE - A& 311,893,000 7T {E AR E IR
%’é o

N KR ITEBERR DA

During the year, available-for-sale securities with a market value at the
time of reclassification of HK$1,640,590,000 (2008: HK$6,519,483,000)
were reclassified into the loans and receivables category. Details

relating to these reclassifications are set out in Note 29.

An investment in security with a carrying value of HK$102,758,000 at
31 December 2009 was assessed as individually impaired. A total
impairment charge of HK$17,941,000 was made and this was effected
by first transferring a sum amounting to HK$16,048,000 from the
investment revaluation reserve to the income statement, being the
unamortised revaluation deficit relating to this investment since its last
reclassification from the available-for-sale category, and an impairment

charge for the remaining amount of HK$1,893,000.
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N

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. Investments in securities included in the loans and

receivables category (Continued)

Investments in securities included in the loans and receivables category

are analysed as follows:

—EZThE —ZTTN\EFE
= Group 2009 2008
BIEES Debt securities:
-BELM - Listed in Hong Kong 945,484 187,820
- BB LT - Listed outside Hong Kong 6,319,540 5,496,534
-3t — Unlisted 1,536,217 1,212,292
8,801,241 6,896,646
kR - ERRELERE Less: individual
impairment allowances (1,893) -
8,799,348 6,896,646
rTmESzmE Market value of listed securities 6,415,120 4,828,680
REZBZNFR_FZENF+_A=+—H " k As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, there were no certificates of deposit
MEREFREERANTEREREERE ° held included in the above balances of investments in debts securities.

BREERMERFKIARRN ZESFRE
BRBETRBEASTWT

- RITRE M S BEE
-bx

RZBZAFE+-_A=+—8 REAE
93,603,000/ 7T (= F %\ : 57,429,000/ 7T)
ZIEBURESE B R o I T IERE & Ak
e

Investments in securities included
in the loans and receivables
category are analysed
by categories of
issuers as follows:

— Banks and other financial institutions 4,729,417 4,763,102
— Corporate entities 4,071,824 2,133,544
8,801,241 6,896,646

As at 31 December 2009, non-government bond with a total carrying
value of HK$93,603,000 (2008: HK$57,429,000) was pledged with

unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements.
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27. Wt ERESR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. Available-for-sale securities

—EEAF —TTN\F
£H Group 2009 2008
BIEES Debt securities:

-BELE™M - Listed in Hong Kong 381,931 1,408,161
- BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 4,298,062 7,620,884
-3E kT - Unlisted 7,231,327 5,055,866
11,911,320 14,084,911

BmERS Equity securities:
-BELE™M - Listed in Hong Kong 646 4,119
- HBLASN ETR - Listed outside Hong Kong 70,804 80,960
-JELEm - Unlisted 103,408 77,309
174,858 162,388
AHEEEFELFRRE Total available-for-sale securities 12,086,178 14,247,299

R-BEFANER_FENF+-_A=+—H ' Lt
MEBHBFREBHRALEER ?Ehﬁﬁ%a’éo

A HERE S
RETHRBRMNOTAOT
- PREUFM A RIRTT

- REWE

- RIT R E M S BERE
-

- Hit

R-ZFFAF+-A=1t—0  8RELALAEH
B % N5 (8 (8 5684,429,000/%8 7T (=& )\
¢ ) ZINEESBEHESFCERTELES
)%L‘M?IJE’S$%lE@\\E%i%%Eﬂ%E’\JEE&m
BRZEE

gEAN - 42({597,547,000/8 70 (ZZZ N\ F
399,022,000;%75) 2 IEBNE S B IR R &R
AT IERI B S RS o

P KR ITEEAR D F

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, there were no certificates of deposit

held included in the above balances of investments in debt securities.

Available-for-sale securities are
analysed by categories of issuers
as follows:

— Central governments and central

banks 2,841,211 1,037,592

— Public sector entities 426,487 91,063
— Banks and other financial institutions 4,585,024 5,506,728
— Corporate entities 4,231,928 7,610,388
— Others 1,528 1,528
12,086,178 14,247,299

As at 31 December 2009, Exchange Fund debt securities included in
debt securities above with a market value of HK$684,429,000 (2008:
HK$NIl) were pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s trading

and market-making activities in Exchange Fund debts.

In addition, non-government bonds with a total carrying value of
HK$97,547,000 (2008: HK$399,022,000) were pledged with unrelated

financial institutions under repurchase agreements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. Pl ess 28. Held-to-maturity securities
—ETAFE —ZTTNF
£ Group 2009 2008
BISFE Debt securities
-BELE™M - Listed in Hong Kong 193,414 -
- BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 6,114,930 4,094,474
-3E kT - Unlisted 2,290,064 2,064,790
8,598,408 6,159,264
rtmEARzTmE Market value of listed securities 5,846,622 3,572,127
BREEERE Included within debt securities are:
- BB NFRE — Certificates of deposit held - 265,000
- EMEBKES — Other debt securities 8,598,408 5,894,264
8,598,408 6,159,264
FE I EE Held-to-maturity securities are
RETHBENSTAT analysed by issuer as follows:
- PR R RIRIT — Central governments and central
banks 1,100,627 1,135,177
- N - Public sector entities 193,414 =
- IRIT R EME BiE — Banks and other financial institutions 5,178,356 4,404,317
-1 — Corporate entities 2,126,011 619,770
8,598,408 6,159,264

REEAN AEEBEHFHERESEATS
{8 1 & 51 8,259,762,000/8 T (Z T T )\ £ -
1,201,087,000/70) 2 Al B EEHEF RBIHFE
FEES  RMASEAREZEESFNERE
BRAEEEE -

RZFEZFNF+ZA=1T—0B REHRME
148,065,000/ 7T (= F T /\ 4 : 178,918,000/8
T0) ZHRBRESFEREBEHEER TIFMES
B o

During the year, the Group reclassified available-for-sale debt securities
with a total market value at the time of reclassification of
HK$3,259,762,000 (2008: HK$1,201,087,000) as held-to-maturity
securities, reflecting a change in the Group’s intention on holding these

securities to maturity.

As at 31 December 2009, non-government bonds with a total carrying
value of HK$148,065,000 (2008: HK$178,918,000) were pledged with

unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements.
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. ARhE A Z EH 29. Reclassification of financial assets

RNEERN @ AEERAIHEHEEFENTEH S During the year, the Group reclassified financial assets out of the
HemBEERERRERFIAER - REBRE available-for-sale category into the loans and receivables category. The
HEABERBEREANENRARRKIEZEHA Group had the intention and ability to hold these reclassified loans and
REZFENH B2 ERREWRIE - receivables for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of

reclassification.

ENOBEZeRMEERNSENPEHZA
RUAE

FAET

The fair values of reclassified financial assets as of the respective dates

of reclassification are disclosed below:

BE-ZZhE+=-A=+—8H
LFERAEH 2 ECEREE
Financial assets reclassified in the
year ended 31 December 2009

REFA2ERBZLAFE
Fair values on date of

reclassification

HAfEEE SN D EAERREWIE
Reclassified from available-for-sale

to loans and receivables

RZZENF+_A=1T—0  BEEAEFHH
iﬁiZ@%ﬂ’éﬁEE@@i@&EEﬁ@%%Uﬁ
1,684,970,0007% 7t }2.1,603,012,000/5 7T » 2=
FENHEZEREENATERERED A
5,783,929,0007% 7t }26,895,993,000/5 7T, °

AEBERRAFERNEF D BB EERN W
FRFER Tz et - BB - WARSH -

BEBEFRE

Investments in debt securities 1,640,590

As at 31 December 2009, the fair values and carrying values of financial
assets reclassified in the current are HK$1,684,970,000 and
HK$1,603,012,000 respectively. The fair values and carrying values of
financial assets reclassified in the previous year are HK$5,783,929,000
and HK$6,895,993,000.

The Group has recognised the following gains, losses, income and
expenses in the income statement in respect of the financial assets

reclassified in the current year.

BE-EENF+ZA=+-BLEE BE_ZT)N\F
For the year ended 31 December2009 +—-A=+—H
ENSEE EXDEA EEE

After Before For the year ended

reclassification reclassification 31 December 2008

ME WA

RUERARFERNETHD Bz EHEECEATE
;Mﬂ;z%#?tﬁrwmilﬁxw o WEEERA

EREE S| Br BEET D AEWRSERR I
AﬁﬁZﬂ¥M$IﬂW’$ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%°Tm

Interest income

62,814 30,445 95,463
Certain of the financial assets reclassified in the current year have been
hedged by interest rate derivatives under fair value hedge
arrangements. The changes in the value of these assets attributable to

changes in interest rate risk has been recognised in the income

2R EIRAEEBEENESAZ [AAFEE statement and have been offset by the fair value changes in the hedging
WIHESR T 2 FEE] - interest rate derivatives. The total net loss shown below has been
included in the “Net loss arising from financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge” in Note 8.
BV KR TEE AR A F TENFEFER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

29. LA REZERNSE @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. Reclassification of financial assets (Continued)

HE-ZTRAFE+-A=Z+-ALEE HE-TT/\F

For the year ended 31 December 2009  +=A=+—H
ENSEE EXNDEA EEE
After Before For the year ended
reclassification reclassification 31 December 2008
B2 EN I EEREEL Fair value (loss)/gain on the hedged
ATE(BR) s reclassified financial assets (73,556) (59,670) 230,667
FRCAS 2 FIRATHET A Fair value gain/(loss) on the hedging
AFENRE (BEB) interest rate derivatives 65,971 53,878 (231,044)
ATEEFER Net fair value loss (7,585) (5,792) 377)

RFEARENOERN  AEBEEEREREANZE
HREERZERATHEEESBRRENHER
ERRERGIEERN . mMEERRQ T EEE
301,394,000/87C - RZZENF+-HA=+—H
ABZEEN DR EERRERSRAZ B
&R 8 1) A T {E 518 /5286,934,000/% 7T ©

WAEEFRAFEBEAIREERIET SRS
RMEERERREYGIERER @ EHBERANZE
HRERESEE_FSTAFT_A=+—HHD
949,482,000/ 7T ©

BN EAERNERZIBEZ CRHEENBRE
FE 19 55.43% °

TARES AR ARBESTRUEEHHA
e BARRE 2 B AMRRSRHE -

In the current year before reclassification, the Group recognised in the
revaluation reserve in equity a fair value loss of HK$301,394,000 on
financial assets reclassified out of the available-for-sale category into
the loans and receivables category. As at 31 December 2008, the fair
value loss recognised in the revaluation reserve in respect of these
reclassified financial assets was HK$286,934,000.

If reclassification of financial assets from the available-for-sale category
into the loans and receivables category in the previous year and the
current year had not taken place, the revaluation reserve in equity would
have decreased by HK$949,482,000 as at 31 December 2009.

Effective interest rates on financial assets reclassified during the year

into loans and receivables averaged to 5.43% p.a.

Presented below are the estimated amounts of undiscounted cash flows
the Group expected to recover for these reclassified financial assets as

at the date of reclassification:

—FE MELLE
—FHUT EWMEF pig: 3
1 year or Between 1 Between 2 RENE

less and2years and5years Overb5 years

BEBEFRE Investments in debt securities 92,714 92,713 278,392

1,874,697

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

30. BEARERE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

30. Investment in an associate

—BEEAE —ZEZN\F
£ Group 2009 2008
[EIEEEFE Share of net assets 954,634 787,838
Bk Goodwill 344,623 344,623
&t Total 1,299,257 1,132,461
—EEBAE —ZTZTN\F
& Group 2009 2008
—H—H At 1 January 1,132,461 800,989
FRILHE Additions during the year - 179,718
JE(EBRTR 18 45 Share of results, net of tax 195,770 120,589
JEERRT B IR E EHFHE Share of investment revaluation reserve,
net of tax (6,784) -
2R 8 Dividend received (22,950) -
EHER Exchange differences 760 31,165
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 1,299,257 1,132,461

RIZEENFER -_TTENF+_A=+—H 28
BARZEBERMT :

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31

December 2009 and 2008:

iR E D
Percentage of interest in
o % i it B FEEK ownership
£ Place of incorporation Principal —EEAE —ZTZTN\F
Name and operation activities 2009 2008
BERTT I AR HFE 1T 20% 20%
Bank of Chongqging People’s Republic of China Banking

EEERITZIRARAARBZMEBRTARIR
8RB - ARTR -_ZZNF+TA-+—H=E
PRIBFS RSN 2 3% 1L - A BB RITHGDER
BE0% - R-_ETLFERBE_ZTT/N\FTH
—t+—HZA ERAKEREBRSEBERTT
EEg  ARAUEREHERLRBNBRRMEE
BRTABRENTEN  AEEREERITAE

4l okt =
F/NITIC

N KR TEEAR D F

The investment in Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ?”) is held by DSB, a
subsidiary of the Company. On 21 October 2008, following the

completion of a further acquisition of 3% equity interest, DSB’s total
interest in BOCQ was increased to 20%. In 2007 and prior to 21 October
2008, BOCQ was treated as an associate on the ground that the Group,

through its participation in BOCQ’s board meetings, review and

approval of strategies and policies, could exercise significant influence

on BOCQ.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

31. FEEHEEREE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

31. Investments in jointly controlled entities

—EBhE —TITN\F

&= Group 2009 2008

JEETARRD » IRAKAS Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
$—HEIEHIE 2 &R WER Loans receivable from a jointly

controlled entity 33,286 37,571

53,286 57,571

FE(R U IR 12 (1 Share of post-acquisition reserves 7,505 2,402

60,791 59,973

REBEAET= A= T—AMARZHERN
B

The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2009:

LEEREZADL

& 1 3t 2 FEERRCE B Percentage of

£ Place of Principal activities and effective interest

Name incorporation place of operation in ownership

REEZERER A A B8 REER - &E 13.333%
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong

REEEERA A B RREAKRARESEF 13.333%
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong ZRE AR - BB

AEBERBIERARAR 2EmAMBARTK
FIRTTIEA - MIBEEFRAR AR JDRBHER A
RABz2EMBRA -

H-HARZEGER 2 ERBURAFER - W%
—RIEFAXGFEREH

32. MEARZE

al

n

Trustee and custodian services
for retirement fund schemes,
Hong Kong

The Group’s interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is held by
DSB, a subsidiary of the Company. Bank Consortium Trust Company
Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank Consortium Holding
Limited.

The loan receivable from a jointly controlled entity is secured and is

extended on normal commercial terms.

32. Investments in subsidiaries

—BEAE T F

LR - A
JRE Wi Y /BB =] 3RIR

FEYH BB A R 2 FUR R EEE - 2B RIEEK

yem &
B o

Company 2009 2008
Unlisted shares, at cost 4,450,282 3,150,282
Amounts due from subsidiaries 100,411 115,452

4,550,693 3,265,734

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

32. MBAFRERE &)

REZZENFT-_A=1+—H AARZETEMN

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

EFNCIE N 31 December 2009:
FiERBE AL
Percentage of shares held
2t 1 s 2 BRTEBRRA
AT ER TEEH Place of HiE i  Particulars of issued
Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly  ordinary share capital
AHFRITERDA ®’17 0
Dah Sing Bank, Limited Banking Hong Kong 100% - HK$3,600,000,000
LRRITERLDA 17 BB
MEVAS Bank Limited Banking Hong Kong 100% - HK$400,000,000
NERE REBRUHS
Channel Winner Limited Property Investment British Virgin Islands 100% = US$1
AFHBERAA TEaex BE
Dah Sing Finance Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$25,000,000
NERE EBELES
South Development Limited Property Investment British Virgin Islands 100% — US$1
EEe¥ REBRUES
Yield Rich Group Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands 100% = US$1
REZK BRE
D.A.H. Holdings Limited Investment holding Bermuda 75.5% - US$1,000,000
AHHT (PE) ERADA ]17 AR AAE
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China - 100% RMB1,000,000,000
BFBERTERAA ®17 BP
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau - 100% MOP225,000,000
AHERZGERAR TEaex BE
Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 100% HK$20
KRB ERERAA rgR 0
Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong - 100% HK$200,000
EEe® REBRIHS
DSLI (1) Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
BE EBRAHES
Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited Financing British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
A EFERLDA REARY 0
Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 100% HK$100,000
REZK B
Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 100% HK$9,998
TEe%k EEBRUHS
Dah Sing SAR Financing Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
REZK BB
DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong — 100% HK$1
REZK B
DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong = 100% HK$1
AFEFERDA EHEE BE
Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong - 100% HK$10,000,000

N KR ITEEAR D F
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. MHEARIHE @) 32. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)
FiERBBE AL
Percentage of shares held
2t 1 s 2 BERTEBRRA
AT ER TEXH Place of HiE i  Particulars of issued
Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly  ordinary share capital
RIE AR B
MEVAS Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 100% HK$50,000
R (BE) ERAH EBEZX B
Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 100% HK$450,000,000
EEe® REBRUHS
Shinning Bloom Investments Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
HEREERAA NERE BE
Vanishing Border Investment Services Property investment Hong Kong - 100% HK$20
Limited
]17 RERS
D.A.H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) ~ Banking Guernsey - 75.5% US$8,000,000
Limited
HNBEEERAR NERE BE
Modern World Holdings Limited Property investment Hong Kong 100% - HK$1
MNBEEEERAH NERE BB
Modern Bright Hong Kong Limited Property investment Hong Kong 100% — HK$1
NERE EBELES
Well Idea Enterprises Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% = US$1
AREBERAA TEaex BE
Ever Silver Holdings Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% = HK$2

BRARFIRITERAREARBRARSIN » EHlpr
BRRHBFARB SR EE A7 MK
o HERBEFBEMAKILZIARRERE
e

¥ D. A. H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands)
Limited - AFrER7T (FE) AR QA - RFIEER
TERA R R 5| RETEAINEMKIZE 2
SN - EMARHEBRBLE °

Except for Dah Sing Bank, Limited which is a public limited company,
all the above companies are private companies, or, if incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as a

Hong Kong incorporated private company.

Except for D.A.H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) Limited, Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., and companies
incorporated outside Hong Kong specified above, all other companies

operate in Hong Kong.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. HIERIERE A 33. Goodwill and intangible assets
BOER EFEf
&4 BREE BREE
BREE Core  Customer Bk

&%  Contract deposit  relationship Trade Bt
W Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles name Total
% Cost

ZEENE-R-HR At 1 January 2009 and
“EENE+-A=1-H at 31 December 2009 811,690 26,499 80,583 40,777 58,252 1,017,801
ZRRE/ Accumulated impairment/Amortisation
“ZZNE-F—H At 1 January 2009 - 23,943 45,293 10,000 - 79,236
FRXH (FE10) Charge for the year (Note 10) - 2,556 8,936 4,951 - 16,443
“ZENE+-A=1-H At 31 December 2009 - 26,499 54,229 14,951 - 95,679
REE Carrying value
“EENE+-A=1-H At 31 December 2009 811,690 - 26,354 25,826 58,252 922,122
BOER EPBE
= BREE BREE
BREE Core  Customer 7%

e Contract deposit  relationship Trade Rt
£E Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles name Total
KA Cost

“EEN\F-A-Bk At 1 January 2008 and

“Z2Z\F+-R=t-H at 31 December 2008 811,690 26,499 80,583 40,777 58,252 1,017,801

2HRRE/ B Accumulated impairment/Amortisation

“ZZ\E-F—H At 1 January 2008 - 19,661 35,005 5,534 - 60,200

ERXH (FiE10) Charge for the year (Note 10) - 4,282 10,288 4,466 - 19,036

“EE\E+-A=1-H At 31 December 2008 - 23,943 45,293 10,000 - 79,236
REE Carrying value

“2EN\E+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2008 811,690 2,556 35,290 30,777 58,252 938,565

N KHERTEBERAT T NLFFIHR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

33. TR REIEEE @)

ERAHRZEBEVEERRALN  RUEREE
FRREVEESARBERERENTRE T
TEZARFHEE ARARERAEREEF
AR R EE R RARA MR RIEREE RS
o

BESEER RS EE N EBHEERALZ
ReEABM (TREELBEM]) UERMERE -
TREE AR Z D

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets with finite life including contract intangibles, core
deposit intangible and customer relationship intangibles are amortised
over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing
balance method. Trade name is with indefinite life and is tested annually
for impairment losses. It is carried at cost less accumulated impairment

loss.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to geographical area of operation and business
segment for impairment losses assessment. A summary of goodwill

allocation is presented below.

“ZEEN\E+-A=+-HEkK
“2BAEt=A=1-R
As at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2009

R T 8 AR 1T
Commercial Personal B & #5% &5t
£8 Group Banking Banking Treasury Total
B Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - 318,667
R Macau 199,140 260,408 33,475 493,023
395,618 382,597 33,475 811,690

EFEYEEABERARZIBEER (CTT
NEF - ) o

HEESFERENR  HHEBRBRFTE 2ERAE
EMEEZHRSCELEEMNILBIRDEE - ZaT S E
FAEREEEAEMGHRESSIEZEBES
=F2BABEER - KRBT HAE 2 BES
THORAZEERE - BUEEFERE2%HERAER
FUBREKENRER - IERAZBREEE
RAREE 2 & ARK AN TF92011.04% ©

RS EET 2R ERFE T ERA2RREESER
H23% A BT EREMZNEBESE =FT&
H2FRRA - KRB AR EIET 82 TERIIR & 7
RZEERF - BUAEREFIGRIE2%HERE A F A
BENERRIBEN o IEAZAIRER11.04% )
BEENARNEER 2 BARKANMNEF I

No impairment losses on goodwill and trade names are identified in the
year (2008: Nil).

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on value
in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections prepared
by the senior management and approved by the Board covering a three-
year period and extrapolated into five years using cash flow projections
in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2% constant growth
rate after the fifth year. The discount rate used is based on the Group’s

weighted average cost of capital at 11.04%.

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rates of 3% with reference to similar business services
transactions, and projected revenue in the approved budget covering a
three-year period and extrapolated into five years using cash flow
projections in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2%
constant growth. The discount rate of 11.04% used is based on the

Group’s weighted average cost of capital.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
34, f7E R H AR e G E 34. Premises and other fixed assets
R
BRERAE
Furniture
equipment,

TE and motor &%
£E Group Premises vehicles Total
BE_ZZ\F+-A=1+—-HLEE Year ended 31 December 2008
FHREFE Opening net book amount 1,655,738 129,295 1,785,033
i Additions 952 77,530 78,482
BiRE Revaluation deficit (107,693) - (107,693)
HE Disposals (11,463) (4,698) (16,161)
ENHHE Reclassification 22,330 - 22,330
wEZH (fEE10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (47,780) (47,712) (95,492)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 1,512,084 154,415 1,666,499
—EZEN\F+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2008
A/ (5B Cost/valuation 1,512,084 378,510 1,890,594
ZEME Accumulated depreciation - (224,095) (224,095)
IRERE Net book amount 1,512,084 154,415 1,666,499
BE-_ZZENFT-R=+—HLEFE Year ended 31 December 2009
FHREFE Opening net book amount 1,512,084 154,415 1,666,499
g Additions - 59,662 59,662
HEHEE Revaluation surplus 326,407 - 326,407
AETESE[HRERR Recovery of previous

revaluation deficits 1,453 - 1,453
HE Disposals (3,968) (2,202) (6,170)
wEZH (fEE10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (45,424) (52,247) (97,671)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 1,790,552 159,628 1,950,180
“EZEAF+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2009
A/ E Cost/valuation 1,790,743 416,118 2,206,861
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation (191) (256,490) (256,681)
BRERE Net book amount 1,790,552 159,628 1,950,180

CPl KHRTEBEERLR —ZEZENFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

34, Fy A e Al [ R ()

AEBTERN<HMER-_ZENF T A=+
— BT o WM RB L EXREIAEMME —K
FERES (HEREXER) BRAR GRURE
BRFEBEAZME) kE— KPR &S ORF)
BRAR GUMIRPIZ ) B ARmSEEE
AT o

WITEZRERRAELEIR - RSB

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

The Group’s premises were last revalued at 31 December 2009.
Valuations were made on the basis of open market value by
independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and
Professional Services) Limited for premises in Hong Kong and Mainland

China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for premises in Macau.

If premises were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would

be as follows:
—2FRFE —TTN\F
= Group 2009 2008
BN Cost 1,016,360 1,018,030
2EFE Accumulated depreciation (166,898) (192,472)
BREFE Net book amount 849,462 825,558

NEBER-_ZFFNAF+_A=+—H2ZRAH
fEEDHTAT

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2009 of the above
assets is as follows:

R

BRERRE

Furniture,

equipment
TE and motor B
5B Group Premises vehicles Total
DN At cost 422 416,118 416,540
REE-ZTENE At valuation — 2009 1,790,321 - 1,790,321
1,790,743 416,118 2,206,861

NEEER_ZBNF T+ _A=+—B2HAK
fEEDHTAT

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2008 of the above
assets is as follows:

R

RERSE

Furniture,

equipment
TE and motor =
£H Group Premises vehicles Total
24D RN At cost - 378,510 378,510
BitE - —EENE At valuation — 2008 1,512,084 = 1,512,084
1,512,084 378,510 1,890,594

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

34, Fy A e Al [ R ()

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

TEZEREDFERE The net book value of premises comprises:
—EZTAE _—ZETNF
= Group 2009 2008
Gisk g Leaseholds
EBEBRFA 2T ALY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E+ZER+F2H) lease (between 10-50 years) 1,425,782 1,193,337
TEB B AINEE 2 HAIE A Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(E+ERT+F2[) term lease (between 10-50 years) 364,770 318,747
1,790,552 1,512,084
35. REWH 35. Investment properties
—BBRE —TINF
£E Group 2009 2008
—H—H At 1 January 546,172 658,588
#ig Additions 118,006 -
e Disposals (81,959) (11,163)
E¥ Reclassification - (22,330)
BEATERE (BR) Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation 75,016 (78,923)
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 657,235 546,172
AEEREMESHN ZEER_SZNF+=A The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
=+—H#1T - AR B BT AEAE 2009. Valuations were made on the basis of open market value by
—AKFEH 4 (FERFERM) BRA R (AL independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and
REBRH W2 %) RE—KFE#EHT (R Professional Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong
F9) BBRA A (BRAIFRFI 2 ¥ 2) R AR TS E and Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment

EREEET -

properties in Macau.

WEYHE 2 REFERE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
—EEAE —ZTT)N\F
5 Group 2009 2008
Giski=g:i Leaseholds
EBEBFAEZH ALY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E+ER+F2M) lease (between 10-50 years) 630,404 534,230
EBBAIINGE 2R HAHEL Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(E+ZERT+F2M) term lease (between 10-50 years) 26,831 11,942
657,235 546,172

Y K RTEBEERAD T

—ZETNEFR
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

36. HbEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

36. Other assets

—RBAE —TINE

= Group 2009 2008
FEUY FRIE R TEAS IR B Accounts receivable and prepayments 845,832 1,260,112
e FILE Accrued income 494,588 803,449
H A, Others 204,254 218,384
1,544,674 2,281,945
37. FHEHE MM AE 37. Trading liabilities

—BBRE -—TINF
&= Group 2009 2008

HEBERERBEES Short sales of treasury bills and treasury
bonds 2,068,300 1,791,419

38. R DA-PAEEN R BB E AHR
i % P A7 K

38. Deposits from customers designated at fair value

through profit or loss

—ETAFE —ZTTN\F
&= Group 2009 2008
ERETR Structured deposits = 471,065

R-BFNER_ZFZTNFA  AKERERT]
RREAREEENEPERRAAFEFEAE
)t AR °

REZZENFT-_A=1+—B AEEELER
FEREMRRE RN SBEIALRF 28R
[ {& 10,000,000/ 7T °

During 2009 and 2008, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any deposits from customers at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2008, the amount that the Group would be
contractually required to pay at maturity to the holders of these deposits

is HK$10 million higher than the above carrying amount.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

39. BFfE#R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

39. Deposits from customers

—ETAFE —ZTTNF
% Group 2009 2008
E BT R R A R TF R Demand deposits and current accounts 12,582,064 8,328,274
BT Savings deposits 14,043,086 9,858,550
EH - BAREBER Time, call and notice deposits 62,947,054 63,703,623
89,572,204 81,890,447

KPP O&BRBEWFIEAD SR E A BEE#A
YEI I T 2 17 7767,439,000/8 7T (—TEZ )\ £ ¢
10,862,000/ 7T) ©

B E BT RO

Ko

MEEMEPERERTEIET

40. CBITHGFERE

Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$67,439,000 (2008:
HK$10,862,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments under

import letters of credit.

Other than fixed deposits, all other customer deposits carry variable

rates.

40. Certificates of deposit issued

—EEhE —TIENEF
58 Group 2009 2008
BEENAFEFEBEEZEHT AEE Designated at fair value through

profit or loss 520,790 1,605,722

RER R E R AT EY R At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 686,513 629,096
R RN AP R At amortised cost 852,707 2,420,167
2,060,010 4,654,985

R-BRAER-FTN\ER - AEERERT
R T DR TEREAAATE 8
ARSBH AN -

EENAFEFEAEETT ABRZERTRE
KA 5 AN TISEAE (Bl : =K« HNE) &
HEBERREE 2 AFTEEZH SR Al
17,390,000/8 7T (Z =T N\ : Yz /34,619,000
#7r) K E5186,626,0008 T (ZEZ)\F : BER
2,013,000/ 1) °

AEEE S EE BT EE MR IR S Q8
S RE A _EFTYI 2 BRE{E1£18,000,000/5 T (==
= )\ 4 : {£36,000,000/% ) °

LN K HTIRTEEAR D F

During 2009 and 2008, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through profit or loss.

The change in the fair value of certificates of deposit issued and
designated at fair value through profit or loss attributable to changes in
external market prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a gain of
HK$17,390,000 (2008: a gain of HK$4,619,000) and that attributable to
own credit standing is a loss of HK$6,626,000 (2008: a loss of
HK$2,013,000) respectively.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$18 million

lower (2008: HK$36 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

41. OBITMEEESR

EL]

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41. Issued debt securities

—EFhEFE ZTTN\F
Group 2009 2008

BENARFEFEBEEBFTARR

REDR R E R T QT ES R

RPN AR

REZZENFER_ZTN\FA  AEEREGRY
ﬁAEE?\ BrEE AR B ITEFRE S RARFER
BHEF) A8 -

R-BBNE+=A=+—R  BRTELSE
BIE TS :

AFiRTT 2 2= & KB A AlDah Sing MTN
Financing Limitedi 8 AT #R17 2 BUMN T 5
REIZERTE - RN FE+=—A—H%
1T fE B AR R R 5 F7_ETh 2 150,000,000% 7T
€8 % 150,000,000 0% BB ERE L EE
([ZEEREERR]) - ZAEERELE
BHRAMBITER  AEER &3
BR-ZZTNF+=-A—H " Eﬁk$5_
RIBATHETH N R R R 8

* o

o  KRHIRTBBEBUNTIS T HZEE
RZTT+F+— A BBTWEIIMNE
R 5 Fff £ 2 450,000,0005% 7T iR 4 2 5E 2
ER(ZEEEE] - ZTEEBZER
FEREE413% - ZEFNPRAE=ZZTEN
F+—A=ZH ERXABBRIRITHET
A g B B R B E%E o

\ZZEEN\F+ZA=+—8 ' EEARFE:

H/ﬁ@b;ﬁr)\?a zaﬁfmﬁ%; ﬁ:lﬁéfyl\
MiHERE (Flan : FZX - HNE) R HESE MR E

?iz NEEE) D 5l A E51821,398,0007% 7T K Ui

#2,218,000/8 7T ° AL E M FE FHITEBE

B ERF RS A RN B S FEEUA A2 2 BREER

29,000,0007& 7T °

DH’ H.m|m %

Designated at fair value through

profit or loss - 1,181,486

At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) - 459,654
At amortised cost - 1,162,500
- 2,803,640

During 2009 and 2008, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any issued debt securities at fair value through profit or loss.
Issued debt securities as at 31 December 2008 comprised the following:

o The US$150 million fixed rate and the US$150 million floating
rate Senior Guaranteed Notes (the “Senior Guaranteed Notes”)
issued by Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of DSB, on 1 December 2004 under DSB’s Euro
Medium Term Note Programme which are listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Senior Guaranteed Notes were
guaranteed by DSB, unsecured, and had a final maturity on
1 December 2009. Through interest rate swap arrangements
entered into by DSB, the cost of the fixed rate Senior Guaranteed

Notes was determined on floating rate basis.

° The HK$450 million 2-year Fixed Rate Note (the “Fixed Rate
Note”) issued by DSB on 2 November 2007 under DSB’s Euro
Medium Term Note Programme, and is listed on the Singapore
Stock Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Fixed Rate Note
carried interest at 4.13% per annum and had a final maturity on
2 November 2009. Through interest rate swap arrangements
entered into by DSB, the cost of the Fixed Rate Note was

determined on floating rate basis.

At 31 December 2008, the change in the fair value of issued debt
securities designated at fair value through profit or loss attributable to
changes in external market prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a loss
of HK$21,398,000 and that attributable to own credit standing is a gain
of HK$2,218,000. The amount that the Group would be contractually
required to pay at maturity to the holders of these issued debt securities

is HK$29 million lower than the above carrying amount.
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

42.

{5 55

g

®A

§

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. Subordinated notes

—RBAE —TINE

2009 2008

150,000,000 7T A —Z — A E 2K US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating

FRRERR GEH) Rate Notes due 2015 (Note (a)) 1,163,235 1,162,500
150,000,000 7T A =T — - F 2 Hi K US$150,000,000 Subordinated Fixed

ERREGHE GEL) Rate Notes due 2017 (Note (b)) 1,145,786 1,040,438
150,000,000E LA = Z — N FEIHAR US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating

FEBEERE GER) Rate Notes due 2016 (Note (c)) 1,163,235 1,162,500
200,000,0003 7T K A JE B & B ET US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated

GET) Fixed Rate Notes (Note (d)) 1,129,979 1,903,278
52,000,000 Tk A JE B & (B BT US$52,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated

(GEI) Fixed Rate Notes (Note (e)) - 403,000

BENAFEASEEZH AER

PR R E e T QBT R

RE R AT AR

REZZNFERZZFZNFA » RNEBRERY]
IRERNFEEAMNEEEHEAUATEFERE
FE)T AER o

Fa
(5)

198

W BARFIRITR ST RFHA=—+HBHETZ
150,000,000 7T 7= [E AR B A2 5 P £ T W 45 7 5E
RUTINE R Z SEEER ((EH]) o LEER
BR_ZE—RFRAANBEE - BEMEEERA
“T-ZHFRANEc ARTREHRENEER
B WEBZHSR=EAHETRITRZERS
MA+2F - UB=EABT—K - B W&
BAREEEUEERED  FANFEEETA
—EABMELRITRAEREM—BASTEF - &
BEEBSERBEEAIME  RFRITAIRERNE
R A AR SR AN T SR E B AEEEE
e A GEBD) B

RFMITEBERRAE —TZNFFR

4,602,235 5,671,716

Designated at fair value through

profit or loss 1,145,786 1,040,438
At fair value under fair value hedge

(for hedging interest rate risk) 1,129,979 1,903,278
At amortised cost 2,326,470 2,728,000

4,602,235 5,671,716

During 2009 and 2008, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.

Note:

(@) This represents US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 29 April 2005 (the
“Notes”), which are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Notes
will mature on 6 May 2015 with an optional redemption date falling on 6
May 2010. Interest rate for the Notes is set on a quarterly basis based on
3-month LIBOR plus 60 basis points from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will reset and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 160
basis points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the
HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the
optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date.
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

i
(2)

(%)

D ARFRIR_ZEZTRAFENATNBETZ
150,000,0003 L& B5.451 % EERER ST £
MW AEAMMERNEERERES ([E
®l) c WEBBHER_Z—+tENAT/\BHE
HoREMBEERA-T——F//\A+/\A &
BOTAEHBEEBEEEER  £EK5451% &
FERME—IXK - B MEBREEEEEER
e FRNFEEETAER AT HEBRREE
EHEERM_BE-T2TF wESELESERE
SRR - REERITRI RN IB B E R A A
HRFIENFBAEEEEERME GEHH) &
1 o REIRITINE B —ERR ERTTR] S A RI Hi &
A IS ETS B & E I SR R AR TTIRTT R F 47 2
RERNZEF SR -

T ARFBRITR=_TSTAEAB-BEITZ
150,000,0003% 7T 1E #7 A3 32 5 Fr b i S 4% R 5E
AT INERZ SR ERR ((EF]) o LEERS
BR-E—R"FEAA=HEH - BIEHEERA
A=A - ARTAEZHBEHESR
B WEHZHESER=EAHETRITRERS
tE+REEF  WE=EABET IR - Ei& - fn
EREREREEEEABE  FRHOFESER]
REMBABMETRITAZEFSM—BEHTF - 5
BEBSEREEIE - KHFIBITAIAEZHEE
BHRERBEHRFEN KB AREEEER
FiE GESP») & ©

WD AFBIR =TT LE-_A+ BRI
200,000,000 7T 7£ ¥ h14% 22 5 B k£ 1 3 1% 578
BEENINEARRE B KAREER ([EH]) -
hEEHZREEBEERA-S—tHF A+t
BEIE - AETAEHBREREER £84
6.253% @ BEFHE—K - Hig - WEBKRE
BEUEEEAERD  ARONEEETA=EA
HETRTRERSN—BNTEHT - ERES
BB RTELIE - KFIRITAIAEBHEER
FEFISEARFEN KA UEEEERBRAS
GEEBD) &R - RFTRITIANE B2 —BIBRERITEI L
=42 RS A I E 15 80 B E F S =R R AR TR
TREREABEWNFEFEMRK -

R_ZBZAFR - AFRITATEELEERER
S #FE/RT70,000,000% T2 HDRE - MABL
ELBEENESEESERZREMAERED
i - ZAELERERENREZEZEDHA
Fe Wik [EBRERS 2 FKRE]AT °

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42.

Subordinated notes (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

(©

This represents US$150,000,000 5.451% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 18 August 2005
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The
Notes will mature on 18 August 2017 with an optional redemption date
falling on 18 August 2012. Interest at 5.451% p.a. is payable semi-annually
from the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the
Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will
bear interest at the then prevailing 5-year US Treasury rate plus 220 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

This represents US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 2 June 2006 (the
“Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. The Notes will mature on 3 June 2016 with an optional
redemption date falling on 3 June 2011. Interest rate for the Notes is set
on a quarterly basis based on 3-month LIBOR plus 75 basis points from
the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes
are not redeemed, the interest rate will reset and the Notes will bear
interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 100 basis points. DSB may, subject to
receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but
not in part, at par either on the optional redemption date or for taxation
reasons on interest payment date.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 16
February 2007 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Notes carry an optional
redemption date falling on 17 February 2017. Interest at 6.253% p.a. is
payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional redemption
date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will reset
and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 190 basis points.
DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem
the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional redemption
date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An interest rate
swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to
floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an
international bank.

In 2009, DSB repurchased a portion of the Notes with a total notional
principal of US$70,000,000 at a discount, and such repurchased Notes
were cancelled after receiving prior approval of the HKMA. The difference
between the carrying amount of the liability and the consideration paid is
included under “Net gain on repurchase of subordinated debts” in the
consolidated income statement.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

= ('

(%) WIARFBITR ST N\F+ A=+ NBHET
252,000,000% 7T 3 M 4% R E == E M I E
REE BKAKERER ((EH]) - WEEFZE
BHEEERA—T=Ft+-A=tA-584
10% ' AETEREFENE—IK - BREBES
SERERMA - AFRTA R EEE B K
AHBEARAENRBUNEABERERRE
(FEB1H) B ©

TERIBRAMIRT ZEAEMMN —_ETNF=
A-TRBAETZESRBERFZ—8D &%
ERBRCHANRTEESEESERRLMAE
BRZZETNF=ZA_+HHEBHEE -

BENAFEGE B EZ 8 ABn 2 B EEK
A EINBIISER (FlaA : =K - SME) RE(E
EMRREE 2 ATEEHREBEE_ZTNF+=
A=1+—B1EFE 5 5lA1%36,463,000/4 T (=
T T \F : [51883,296,0007% ) k& B
141,076,000/ 7T (ZZZ )\ : Iz199,292,000
YEIT) ©

NEBENSREBHIHKFZEOENNSE
A FATAI 2 BRE(E1K 104,000,000/ 7T (Z 2=
J\E : {K231,000,000/87T) °

PO KT RITEBAR A F

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. Subordinated notes (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

@

This represents US$52,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as upper Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 29 December
2008 (the “Notes”) and are unlisted. The Notes carry an optional
redemption date falling on 30 December 2013. Interest at 10% p.a. is
payable semi-annually from the issue date. DSB may, subject to receiving
the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in
part, at par either on the optional redemption date or for taxation reasons
on interest payment date.

As a part of the capital and financing arrangements, which took place on
25 March 2009, for increasing the capital base of DSB, the Notes had
been fully repaid by DSB on 25 March 2009 after receiving the prior
approval of the HKMA.

The change in the fair value of subordinated notes designated at fair

value through profit or loss attributable to changes in external market

prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a gain of HK$36,463,000 (2008: a
loss of HK$83,296,000) and that attributable to own credit standing is
a loss of HK$141,076,000 (2008: a gain of HK$199,292,000) respectively
in the year ended 31 December 2009.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$104 million

lower (2008: HK$231 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEE T Thz37R)

43, EALHLIA 43. Deferred income tax

BEFRIEEENBENEIEIAEEFT G ZHTE Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
S 54 BN ERF 18 B E A BN HATH 18 & B MR TR 18

BRFE IS G R D AT - 2 SR

legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against

current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

™ to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:
—EEAE —ZTZTN\F
= Group 2009 2008
EEFIBEE Deferred income tax assets 77,268 159,380
BERIEAE Deferred income tax liabilities (6,969) (1,575)
—EThE —ZTTN\EF
= Group 2009 2008
BEEFIBEE Deferred income tax assets:
-AET—EAABRKE ZELETRIBEE — Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered after more than
12 months 293,514 355,095
RIEFIBAE - Deferred income tax liabilities:
-EE+T_EARBREEZECERIEBEEE — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
settled after more than 12 months (223,215) (197,290)

FRERIEE ST T The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:
—ETAFE —ZTTN\F

£ Group 2009 2008
—H—H At 1 January 157,805 (79,634)
T U5 5 B 1A 75 1 [ 48 Tax credited to the income statement

(P &E17) (Note 17) 7,274 9,892
RIEZBRAFIE (ST ) /= # Tax (charged)/credited to equity

(P =+47) (Note 47) (94,783) 227,547
EHER Exchange difference 3 -
+=-—HA=+—H At 31 December 70,299 157,805

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 e{el
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

43, WALBLIA (&)

EEVREERABERAFEZEE  TRER
HRBEESER TR ZEHRNT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

9% JE 8 JE O - Deferred income tax assets:
BELH
REEEREE NERBRE REfh
Impairment  Accelerated REEM Deferred
allowances and tax BEBEE  Investment  expenses &it
£E Group provisions depreciation ~ Taxlosses  revaluation  and others Total
“2E)\-H-H At 1 January 2008 29,954 612 - 128,351 6,059 164,976
R R A B Credited to the income statement 5,725 12 120 - 12,635 18,492
RER R A E Credited to equity - - - 177,686 - 177,686
g Reclassification - - - - (6,059) (6,059)
“EE\E+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2008 and
k=ZEENE-R-H 1 January 2009 35,679 624 120 306,037 12,635 355,095
RREEREE/ () Credited/(charged) to the income statement 14,732 (624) (120) - (12,638) 1,350
REEEAT Charged to equity - - - (76,598) = (76,598)
EiEZ Exchange difference P)] - - - - P)
BN E Reclassification - - - - 13,669 13,669
“EEAETZR=1-H At 31 December 2009 50,409 - - 229,439 13,666 293,514
9 B IH AU - Deferred income tax liabilities:
MERBRE RENEES
Accelerated  fTEEff Investment  REEf
B tax  Premises  properties Investment Hth ait
£E Group Provisions depreciation  revaluation revaluation  revaluation Others Total
—2Z)\5-f—-H At 1 January 2008 4,533 22,101 176,282 41,518 - 176 244,610
REEEAS L/ (BE) Charged/(credited) to the income statement 29,419 (9,836) - (13,734) - 2,751 8,600
RUEER (B%) /i (Credited)/charged to equity - - (49,965) - 104 - (49,861)
BN Reclassification (6,059) - - - - - (6,059)
“FE\E+-A=1-H At 31 December 2008 and
R=EENE-F-H 1 January 2009 27,893 12,265 126,317 21,184 104 2,927 197,290
RIREERR (B8 /S (Credited)/charged to the
income statement (37,285) 795 24,866 8,455 - (2,755) (5,924)
RNEREAZ Charged to equity - - 18,106 - 79 - 18,185
EHZE Exchange difference - - - - = () ()
EHNAE Reclassification 13,669 - - - - - 13,669
“EERE+-R=1-H At 31 December 2009 4217 13,060 169,289 36,239 183 167 223,215

el KEFRITEBEERLAE —ZETNFFTR
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

43, WALBLIA (&)

Ty FARARERER GLH) B 2R ER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. Deferred income tax (Continued)

The deferred income tax (charged)/credited to equity during the year is

1] as follows:
—EEBhE —TTN\F
= Group 2009 2008
PR R w2 A EFE Fair value reserves in shareholders’ equity:
- 17 (3%47) — premises (Note 47) (18,106) 49,965
- A B F S5 (T aE47) — available-for-sale securities (Note 47) (76,677) 177,582
(94,783) 227,547

44. BEH AV Z Gith

BBANEZANRE BEEEEQRIZ —REEE
FTETRPMEL 2 EHRFTIMT

44. Balances with Group companies

Included in the following statement of financial position captions are

balances with group companies arising from transactions conducted

on normal commercial terms:

—EZThE —ZTTN\EFE
59 Group 2009 2008
ER P AR N Bl A B Balances with the holding
company
EEEFER Deposits from customers 17,666 7,095
B[R ZHT B R R Z &k Balances with fellow subsidiaries
FHEERKEMEEB Advances and other accounts 6,437 7,995
BEEFEX Deposits from customers 1,184,467 1,936,274
HMER A kTELR Other accounts and accruals 2,884 3,539
—EThE —ZTTN\EF
AT Company 2009 2008
ENNY /NI 3 Balances with a subsidiary
RITEERR Bank balances 17,789 19,076

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 [E{iE]
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45. AR A fE KR
(H) & AR

RBERREREADREEEGERRERE KB
ANBEBEZEREENT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of project and acquisition of fixed assets

at the end of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

—EEAE —TTN\F
5 Group 2009 2008
BHEBRREH 2R Expenditure authorised but
not contracted for 97 766
ERENERRERER ZFAX Expenditure contracted but
not provided for 92,823 98,821
92,920 99,587

(Q) & B&fE

AEFBBEERABRIMVEERETEFPZERMTA
BHeBEREEERRINESENT

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-

balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to

customers are as follows:

eEHNLE
Contract amount
—EEhE —TIENEF
&= Group 2009 2008
BEEFERE® Direct credit substitutes 628,899 704,420
RS2 AIEE Transaction related contingencies 14,104 6,898
RE S ME kAR Trade-related contingencies 536,962 364,258
A R4 BUE M D 7B T8 2 il A 2 A e Commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice 32,030,819 32,922,775
H fth A HE Other commitments with an original
RAHR & maturity of:
- DR—%F - under 1 year 3,859,558 2,673,642
-—F RN E -1 year and over 933,340 938,980
7 HFR Forward forward deposits placed 61,508 73,547
38,065,190 37,684,520
EE R INESEE
Credit risk
weighted amount
—EBhE Z—ZTINF
5 Group 2009 2008
A B E R Contingent liabilities and commitments 1,459,809 1,286,256

PV KETSRITEBERLAE —ZETNFETR
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45. BAR A fE KR (@)
(R) OB Z & &

TR EERZ MEAERRTEEEER
FFRETREBZEE

L]

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. Contingent liabilities and commitments (Continued)
(c) Assets pledged
Assets pledged as collateral with the HKMA and with unrelated financial

institutions under repurchase agreements are as follows:

ZE2AF —TT)N\F

HIEEER®2#FS (M23)
A EES (M aE27)
REDHEFH (:E28)
BEEER K ERKIE
Rz EHEZE (FsE26)

(T) BEHERSE

IARKEAEEA - HAATEEYERLLEEM
MARRAX N 2 REBENRATEMT :

Group 2009 2008
Trading securities (Note 23) 4,689,792 -
Available-for-sale securities (Note 27) 781,976 399,022
Held-to-maturity securities (Note 28) 148,065 178,918
Investments in securities included in
the loans and receivables category
(Note 26) 93,603 57,429
5,713,436 635,369

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessee, the future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as

follows:
—ETAFE Z—ZTTNF
£ Group 2009 2008
—F AR Not later than 1 year 88,794 81,619
—FURERSF Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 113,410 54,256
HEFENE Later than 5 years 33,392 24,300
235,596 160,175

IMARKESHEA - HATEEYERLLEEM
MARRAX NN 2 REBENRATEMT :

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as

follows:
—EEhE —ZTTN\F
£E Group 2009 2008
—F AR Not later than 1 year 14,544 17,791
—FUEREREF Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 840 14,529

15,384 32,320

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009 [B2{if]
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. A 46. Share capital
—EEhE —ZTTN\F
2009 2008
SEERRA Authorised:
1,500,000,000 A% & @R 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of
BREE1ET HK$1 each 1,500,000 1,500,000
—EZhE ZTENF
2009 2008
B 8 & IR & &N
BETRBRRKRA Issued and fully paid: Number of Share Number of Share
Tak  BREEVET Ordinary shares of HK$1 each shares Capital shares Capital
—H—H At 1 January 932,758,869 932,759 931,416,279 931,416
BITH R D FT S 3UE Proceeds from shares issued 179,000,000 179,000 - -
BEOIROBER=ZZLE Issue of shares in lieu of 2007
REARL B final dividend - - 1,342,590 1,343
+=-A=+—8 At 31 December 1,111,758,869 1,111,759 932,758,869 932,759

RER - ZRAF)ZE1T179,000,0000% 5 I E@AL T2
A% AR » HF125,000,0000% X BAXALD © AER
1,000,000,000/8 T2 E3X + =FiEEMKIFES0 ()
m G e

RN AR B ([ZRRETED - B
RIS BIBITUAR » 4710 (ZZEZNEF : 47
) RMGAE LATREE1,750,0000% (Z T T )\ 4
1,750,0000%) B EE1ETLZ AR BRKG - BEFR

FTHHESREBNRRITHAE - BZaTEIK
VEEZETNFTA=+T—HBIE 5 (=25
T )\F : 51) SRR LAFREE250,0008% (ZZZ N
£ : 250,0000%) BREE ST 2 A2 Al fkHm A
A N BB T AR o

X

=

AENBEFRBRITRABHEA 2 BIEHED A
ARBBHERHWT -

During the year, 179,000,000 new ordinary shares were issued to the
holding company of which 125,000,000 ordinary shares were issued in
settlement of the HK$1 billion loan facility as described in Note 50(a)(I)(i).

Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”), 47
(2008: 47) options to subscribe for 1,750,000 shares (2008: 1,750,000
shares) of HK$1 each of the Company had been granted to certain
Directors and senior executives of the Group since the inception of the
Scheme. Up to 31 December 2009 and since the incorporation of the
Scheme, 5 (2008: 5) options to subscribe for 250,000 shares (2008:
250,000 shares) of HK$1 each of the Company lapsed due to

resignation of a grantee.

Movements in the number of the Company’s shares in the share options

held by Directors and senior executives during the year are as follows:

RBREPRGEHE
Number of shares
in options
—EEAF Z—ZTEN\F
2009 2008

—B—BRT=A=+—~

P KT IRITEBAR A F

—ZETNEFR

At 1 January and at 31 December 1,500,000 1,500,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BT A5 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
46. A (@) 46. Share capital (Continued)
FEAWER TR 2 RIEHE ° No share options were granted or lapsed during the year.
RT+ZA=+—BIHRETE 2 RRESES 0 Particulars of the outstanding options as at 31 December are as follows:
N
ARERRAHE
AREHE Number of shares
RTRRAEE Date of grant and exercise price Number of options in the options
“EEAFE CZEN\F CEEAF C3E)\E
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EFEME+-A-TRA  BOFESRI6.T0ET 25 November 2004, at an exercise price of HK$16.70 per share 5 5 250,000 250,000
“EEREN\A-TRA  BOFEESRI4A0BT 25 August 2005, at an exercise price of HK$14.40 per share 20 20 550,000 550,000
“EERET-RTR  BOFESRI42ET 30 December 2005, at an exercise price of HK$14.32 per share 5 5 250,000 250,000
“EERENACTRA  BOEESRIT0BT 25 September 2006, at an exercise price of HK$17.30 per share 5 5 100,000 100,000
ZEZLELATAR  RORESRITSIET 19 July 2007, at an exercise price of HK$17.84 per share 7 7 350,000 350,000
42 42 1,500,000 1,500,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
47. fEf 47. Reserves
Rk
TEERREE REZHRE (&)
R EE BARE  Premises  Investment EXGE General REEA
Share Consolidation  Revaluation Revaluation  Exchange Reserve  Retained &t
&8 Group Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note (i)) Earnings Total
ZEEN\E-A-H At 1 January 2008 2,209,149 (220,986) 768,786 (611,582) 28,867 700,254 5,423,522 8,298,010
ARHERARTEES Fair value losses on
LATERE avalable-for-sale securities and
revaluation of premises - - (106,874)  (1,396,982) - - - (1,508,856)
FESERBRTEEEES  Investment revaluation reserve
REMERENEE transferred to income statement
upon impairment of
avallable-for-sale securities - - - 297,618 - - - 297,618
HETHLERS Disposal of available-for-sale
securities - - - (18,490) - - - (18,490)
NEERRREERREES Deferred income tax asset
MEACETHEEE /EE  recognised/iabilities released on
ERERBAE () movements in premises
revaluation reserve and
investment revaluation
) reserve (Note 43) - - 49,965 177,582 - - - 227,547
RERLENEMER Reserve realised on disposal
of premises - - (4,852) - - - 4,852 -
ROENEMER Revaluation reserve transferred to
EfERRERERA retained earnings for depreciation
of premises - - (12,491) - - - 12,491 -
BERIRE AN ERE Exchange difference arising on
MEXZE translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities - - - - 39,293 - - 39,293
EURR B EIMET Issue of ordinary shares pursuant
LERRRN to scrip dividend arrangement 19,306 - - - - - - 19,306
SHEIRHER Payment of share issue expenses (19) - - - - - - (19)
EEsT Profit for the year - - - - - - 188,642 188,642
“ERHERDRE 2007 final dividend - - - - - - (139,719 (189,712)
“ZE\ERHRE 2008 interim dividend - - - - - - (167.897)  (167,897)
“EE\Et-A=1-A At 31 December 2008 and
R-ZENE-A-A at 1 January 2009 2,228,436 (220,986) 694,534 (1,551,854) 68,160 700,254 5,321,898 7,240,442
AHERA RAIEEMR Falr value gains on
LATENE avalable-for-sale securities
and revaluation of premises - - 326,407 428,102 - - - 754,509
REEHEEBERTELESS  Investment revaluation reserve
HENELZhaE transferred to income statement
upon impairment of
available-for-sale securities - - - 16,048 - - - 16,048
HETHLEES Disposal of available-for-sale
securities - - - 24,519 - - - 24,519
NEERRREERRE Deferred income tax asset
FUMEE B released/liabilities recognised
HBAE/BAEL on movements in premises
i (IRER) revaluation reserve and
investment revaluation reserve
(Note 43) - - (18,106) (76,677) - - - (94,783)
EREERNENEMER Revaluation reserve realised on
disposal of premises - - (37,513) - - - 31,513 -
ROENEnEH Revaluation reserve transferred to
ERREERARH retained earnings for depreciation
of premises - - (12,105) - - - 12,105 -
BERINB AN ERE Exchange difference arising on
MELZER translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities - - - - (3,020) - - (3,020)
ETERRRA Issue of ordinary shares 1,123,400 - - - - - - 1,123,400
SRENRHER Payment of share issue expenses (60) - - - - - - (60)
ERRH Profit for the year - - - - - = 600,826 600,826
ZEENETZRAZ1-H At 31 December 2009 3,351,776 (220,986) 953,217 (1,159,862) 65,140 700,254 5,972,342 9,661,881
PO KFTSRITEBEER AT TENFFER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

47. fEf ) 47. Reserves (Continued)
G Note:
(i) AEBZHBMBRITAT » KFIRITREHR @i) The Group’s Hong Kong banking subsidiaries, DSB and MEVAS, are
7 AREBBRTEBKIAEEREERENZ required to maintain regulatory reserve to satisfy the provisions of the
BE BREERE RZTESNF+ZA=+ Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purposes. At
—H - KIRITREPRTE DB B HLGE —R 31 December 2009, each of DSB and MEVAS has earmarked a regulatory
R R AREB B FH4EE305,774,0008 0 (=T reserve of HK$305,774,000 (2008: HK$472,301,000) and HK$18,343,000
J\SE : 472,301,000/ 7T) K 18,343,000/% 7T (= (2008: HK$12,714,000) in the consolidated general reserve and retained
TENF : 12,714,00087T) 2 S BIEREEH profits respectively. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly
& o ﬁ*mfﬁfﬁz BE S BESHEAR WA through equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.
HEBSERETEN
% 125 B REBEF
Share Retained a5t
NG| Company Premium Earnings Total
—EENF—-—H—H At 1 January 2008 2,209,149 91,509 2,300,658
BITROBER-_ZZTLF Issue of shares in lieu of 2007
RHEARR B final dividend 19,287 - 19,287
F 2 Profit for the year - 338,698 338,698
—EELFERARE 2007 final dividend - (139,712) (139,712)
—EE\FHRERE 2008 interim dividend - (167,897) (167,897)
—EENFF+=_A=+—H At 31 December 2008 2,228,436 122,598 2,351,034
—EENF—HA—H Wkt At 1 January 2009, as above 2,228,436 122,598 2,351,034
ZEITRAD FT1S RIE Proceeds from shares issued 1,123,400 - 1,123,400
XETRHER Payment of share issue expenses (60) - (60)
FEEHE Loss for the year - (19,638) (19,638)
—EEAFE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2009 102,960

BREB R REHIET7I9BIRFTE
EAFE+-A=+—B A #REHKEL
102,960,000 7T (Z T )\ 4F :

JE) ©

I N/ =

122,598,000/%

3,351,776

3,454,736

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2009, calculated
under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted
to HK$102,960,000 (2008: HK$122,598,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEE T Thz37R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

48. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statements

EBEW=NEER 2 & (@  Reconciliation of operating profit before gains or losses on certain
M B EE B IR M AFREERR investments and fixed assets to net cash flows from operating
activities
—EZhEF —TENF
2009 2008
ETHRERETEEENRKBIEN 2 ZERT Operating profit before gains or losses
on certain investments and fixed assets 182,276 800,483
>‘¥ﬂ SBA Net interest income (2,134,754) (2,207,586)
S Dividend income (5,773) (5,894)
f?@ﬁ%@ﬁéﬁﬁ REMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 427,660 658,535
B EER 2R ERE Unwind of discount on loan impairment (15,429) (6,326)
& Depreciation 97,671 95,492
B EE 2 EH Amortisation of intangible assets 16,443 19,036
R B Wik 2 B R % AR Advances written off net of recoveries (568,612) (162,211)
R ) Interest received 3,127,382 4,839,371
BEARHE Interest paid (671,021) (1,670,025)
B AR S Dividend received 26,428 5,894
BEEREBEEA2EERM Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 482,271 2,366,769
BEBERBEBECE Changes in operating assets and liabilities
REHBABA=EAZBANRERTRE Change in money at call and short notice
with an original maturity beyond
three months (967,549) -
REBIHBB=EA 2 ERTHFER2EE) Change in placements with banks with an
original maturity beyond three months (2,495,470) =
BIEEERARNEARZEZY Change in trading securities (2,277,491) (359,370)
TESMIAZE Change in derivative financial instruments (576,245) 988,467
EBEUAFE2BEZST ABEN Change in financial assets designated
CRHEEZED at fair value through profit or loss 554,058 786,408
E)E' ERZ#T) Change in advances to customers 3,833,914 295,558
RITER & Change in advances to banks 29,226 (18,800)
Efﬁﬁﬁ 8% ﬁ Change in other accounts 428,492 1,835,612
BEEE; A&J&'Hﬁl IR K R Change in investments in securities
CEAREZE included in the loans and receivable
category (44,793) (877,163)
Al %%zx‘éﬂ Change in available-for-sale securities (2,303,712) 2,069,093
2 B HE 7‘#2%3 Change in held-to-maturity securities 969,517 (786,684)
& U 3£ HT HEBE R &8 Change in loans receivable from
a jointly controlled entity 4,285 9,553
RITER B Change in deposits from banks (1,008,458) (208,074)
RIEEERZNEEZE Change in trading liabilities 276,881 (897,650)
E)E'T? R EE) Change in deposits from customers 7,681,757 5,949,586
EE $f§.ﬁrzﬁﬁi\%§b Change in deposits from customers
d‘]\?@ sMEPERZE designated at fair value through
profit or loss (471,065) (2,671,423)
HibR A RBR 2 EE) Change in other accounts and accruals (217,776) (2,074,348)
R Exchange adjustments (90,007) (400,800)
HEZEBRANRS Cash generated from operating activities 3,807,835 6,506,734
INBERITREBREREBERZAE Interest paid on subordinated notes and
debt securities issued (301,607) (383,663)
TREBTHNEREZFE Interest paid on certificates of deposit issued (114,434) (306,022)
EHEENEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (662) (54,812)
BB Overseas tax paid (6,654) (28,578)
KETEF) AR FE Net cash from operating activities 3,384,478 5,733,659

AN AHRITEBABRAT —TF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

o

Bl& A H R W5 @) 48. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statements

(Continued)

il

() EHeRERAN  BekFRELEER (b)  For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
ERBEERFE=EAKA T Z T equivalents comprise the following balances with maturity of three
ek REEBESEEANRR A EER months or less from the date of acquisition, deposits that are
HRERTReHE TR readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

—BRAE —TTNF

£ Group 2009 2008
H & R ERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 2,453,928 2,434,158
JREVEA B E =18 A sk A T 2B A &8 B F 5K Money at call and short notice with

an original maturity within three months 7,031,889 10,231,009
[REIHA R E =18 A sk A N 2 EERITHI A7 K Placements with banks with an original

maturity within three months 1,787,279 1,656,950
RHIEEERAZNES Trading securities 2,355,682 913,421

13,628,778 15,235,538

(M) EXRFBEERS ()  Major non-cash transaction
RZZZNF - N A]%17125,000,0000% 5 & i During 2009, the Company issued 125,000,000 new ordinary shares in
A&+ LAE S A% A &1#% F 2. 1,000,000,0005% settlement of the HK$1 billion loan facility granted by the holding
TER - BEALRZ S 2 BEEH M FES0 () (1)) company. Further details of this transaction are set out in Note 50(a)()(i)-
49. WA B EK 49. Loans to officers
HEREBNBENFE161BIE - ERTRBAEZ Particulars of loans made to officers and disclosed pursuant to section
HIRHENAT 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:
+t-—A=+—A#&& FRERES G
Balance outstanding Maximum balance
at 31 December during the year
—EEAE ZZTENFE ZBEAFE ZZTENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
e MF B EE Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of principal
and interest 33,581 58,048 51,155 65,860
ERAERERE Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of guarantees 8,149 8,149 8,149 8,149
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

50. ARA#EANLZAS

BREALRZFALAENERXHEELZFS
—7 B HEERMBREERK T ET
EERTES - WEEMTRALZE HKRZES
FHAEAFER > REALTRESBEEEA
4 .

“ETAER-TTNE  AREEEMEA
TEEAEEZRRAT  ARMBAR - 2R
ARZBRAEEEERIERHRAAEAY
8N ATETHERS - AATBIHRTE
FERMALE MIEHEN - DHREHIIN
TR (F) () BRFEBEEMEZ X DETE
M- %S EERERREERENEREY N
B RAREHEAMEZ RS HREAEEY
ERET  AMRS  —REEERRIER &
AT BB RAAND AR R BF T -

b2

Al
Al

o

AP KT RITEBAR A E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. Related-party transactions

Related parties are those parties, which have the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control

or common significant influence.

During 2009 and 2008, the Group entered into various transactions with
related parties including the holding company, fellow subsidiaries of
the Group, companies directly or indirectly controlled or significantly
influenced by the shareholders or directors of the holding company.
These, as described in Note (a)(l) below and being continuing connected
transactions, had been reviewed by the Company’s independent non-
executive directors in their review of the financial statements of the
Group. Based on their review and enquiry with management, the
Company’s independent non-executive directors were satisfied that all
of the continuing connected transactions were conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms, and in accordance with relevant agreements on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.



A 265 W P i
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

50.

A REN L2 5 @)

HEMEALZEARZNT !

() B Jie 24 ) B [l 22 B J§ 2 W) 4 22 5

(n AR

AR REBZEN B A RN FEANEER
ARIRRARMB ARSI 2 HEBERS
(ERRBBBERSGMBRARESR LT
A (T ETRAI E14A148) MBI REA
THZWARZE - ZER S 2 BEKRE
WA IRE EWARBIE14A.3502)8 &k
14A36(1)E% * BANRASEE 2 FE LR o

o  RESRMBRARBEAHRT &
BIRTT - RFIERRTT - RIERE
BERAR ([HE]) FE=ER AT RA
ENBRRARZGZWARZIHERFE
ERBE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. Related-party transactions (Continued)

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow

subsidiaries
() Income and expenses

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries within the Group
received and incurred the following income and expense from
the continuing connected transactions (within the definition of
Rule 14A.14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”))
entered into with the holding company and fellow subsidiaries
during the year. The aggregate values of these transactions are
within or consistent with the respective annual caps applicable
to the Group pursuant to Rules 14A.35(2) and 14A.36(1) of the
Listing Rules.

° Income or expense arising from transactions involving
subsidiaries, namely DSB, MEVAS, BCM and Vanishing
Border Investment Services Limited (“VB”), with the holding

company and fellow subsidiaries subject to annual caps:

ZEBAF —TT)N\F

£H Group 2009 2008
EATHRLE GE() Interest paid (Note (i)) (52,275) (35,580)
BUERITFEE (5£()) Bank charges received (Note (i) 6,590 6,884
EWHERERAEERE KX Rentals and related building management

(7 (i) fee and charges received (Note (ii)) 11,918 11,166
ENHERERAEERE Rentals and related building management

KBS (G (ii)) fee and charges paid (Note (iii)) (4,522) (4,522)
BEREEE ((v) Management fees received (Note (iv)) 13,409 18,254
B R RS GEV) Insurance commission received (Note (v)) 17,218 27,135
B RERRE (FE(vi) Insurance premiums paid (Note (vi)) (9,834) (10,258)

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

50.

214

A REN L2 5 @)

() By B A W) T[] 2R B Jo A W) 9 22 ) (40)

0

(0]

(i)

RFBOTEEERD A

WA K5 i ()

RERZRABRRRZMNBRRREEREES
BE - ERERAREMMERRITRS -

ENMETIARB=FKMERITAR - K
FriRTT - BRARTLRFIFERRITERZR
EMBARZERNFE X - FRZF
FAEERE DS Lt 2 44

R-ZETNF=A=-1+HAB @ #ERAFM
A A)FR£1,000,000,0008 T2 B K ([3%
B - LMERA R AIRAFIRITIRELRE
INERGEE - BRZASHBERSERAE
S R1TEI I S N850 2 o A D BN Z
BRZENEACEBRERERAARNZ
ZZNFNAT/\BAEKRSE T2 E®R
#17.2.125,000,0008% ¥ 17 (KRR T 2
BYBRRR-ZTAFAA+SBRITZ
REFFRIA @B (EERLEMRERR - B
—TENE=A-+HBE=ZETAFA
A+ABHM - AARSZERAERR
A& {5 2 F) B 528,661,000 7T °

RFTIRTT - EHRTTIORPIREERITRIR
WERRITIRTE - BEXFRAEE  REE
BERIBE - 12— R EGFUEURTT T4
& o o RITASRBRERAR (TRH
AB] —HRFEMBRR) EEFF A
RHTRIT - BHRITIORPIRBRIRITET
ZERREXRENRS - ET5RER
ZERTINEPRSER - ZFIRTR
5 22 BE 0 B BR 5E 4F B T 4R 1 45 18 1 42
1k e

HERASEDETRRZHERR

RFIRTT  BPIMERTRES —KKE
AAHEEEERDEETEEREEY
ETARMABREM=HRZHBAEAKR
iR IRE AR QR (TRFTRER RTS]) -
RIRBRAREER DA (TRFRERAI])
FORPIRIR B R A F (DRFIRERD) EE
REME o RFRIT  RPIRHERIT R
BIEMELZ ERKARATAS - AH
RERARTS « AHTER I 32 SR PIARIR YRR
He =HE KREEBRERHEMARR
BER - ZERERN _ZZN\FIHIE
BHEME  —TENF-A—HBER -

—ETNFEF

i
==

&

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50.

(a)

Related-party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

U

Note:
(i)

(ii)

Income and expenses (Continued)

Arising from the extension of credit facilities and provision of
deposit taking and other standard banking services to the holding
company and fellow subsidiaries

Interest was paid by three banking subsidiaries, namely DSB,
MEVAS and BCM, on deposits received from the fellow
subsidiaries. The balances of deposits outstanding as at the end
of the year are set out in Note 44 above.

The holding company advanced a HK$1 billion loan (the “Loan”) to
the Company on 25 March 2009 to enable the Company to provide
additional capital resources to DSB. Interest on the Loan was
agreed at 6-month HIBOR plus 350 basis points. The Company’s
repayment obligation on the Loan was discharged after the Loan,
with the approval of independent shareholders of the Company
passed in the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on 16
September 2009, was capitalised by the Company by the issue of
125 million new shares of the Company at HK$8 per share on 18
September 2009. The interest paid by the Company to the holding
company on the Loan for the period from 25 March 2009 to 18
September 2009 was HK$23,661,000.

Bank charges were levied by DSB, MEVAS and BCM on the
provision of standard banking services covering cheque clearing,
investment dealing services, etc. on normal commercial terms. In
addition, merchant fees were charged at market rates to Dah Sing
Life Assurance Company Limited (“DSLA”, a fellow subsidiary) on
settlement of insurance premiums by its customers using credit
cards issued by DSB, MEVAS and BCM. These banking
arrangements are for an indefinite term and can be terminated in

accordance with market practice.

Lease and sub-lease of properties to fellow subsidiaries

DSB, BCM and another subsidiary, VB, have leased and sub-leased
certain of their owned and rented properties to DSLA and three
other fellow subsidiaries, Dah Sing Insurance Services Limited
(“DSIS”), Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited (“DSIA”) and Macau
Insurance Company Limited (“MIC”) as their office premises. DSB,
BCM and VB received from DSLA, DSIS, DSIA and MIC the lease
rentals, and air-conditioning charges, building management
charges and other utilities charges based on the actual amount of
costs incurred. These leases which had expired in 2008 have been
renewed for a two-year period effective from 1 January 2009.
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50.

AREANLZZ 5 (4

0

) B o ) % [ 2R i 4 W B 22 5 (D)

WA K5 i ()

i ()

(iii)

(iv)

HERASBDET R RZHE QR

ARIABEHEINH B EWE T AR
EEST  HI=EE+LF+ZA=+ /R
BER - REA=F -

M A X ) K% [R) 24 Y BB 2 R B G B e AT

AR 75

%

MRZZBTXE+=—A=+N\B - KFRTT
REKEB AR BIERMEERIT) Eﬁiﬁ“
NAIZER BN R IT R s
TEHE—A—HBRER - BEWE - $E
TFHE?%WJE% C RETIRITAR B E R FKLLE
RITB AR BIEKRAF j(%ﬂ%[&ﬁﬁ
% j(%ﬂ%[ﬁﬁfﬁ AIRBERA
([RFRRR]) }ﬁF‘W%ﬁXR&&F?/\%% =
BRAF (T?@FﬂA%J)%ﬁﬁﬁfigﬁﬁ
% BEZESTRMSGHESE B
R - EEXE - BRNFRE ,ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ
% BEREESEREMITERY - B
RERSRIBEZERE 2 ET ERFAX
EBE -

—~

ZTN\F+ZA=+RH - KFRITE
R A R AT B RATHR RS ek
—EENF-A-RBRER REM

D8RRI 3

RATIRER ARTS B RFTAR B (R IR B R #T 3R 1T
&%ﬂ_ﬂﬂfﬁﬁ B % 5] 2 8 R AR E R IE

% 0 ANORPIRER FORPI A S BRI %
iE TERE 7 H MBI IR - BB HR

DITHRRIEER D AT R —RIREE
m e Btk - RFTERTT - BHRERTT RORFIE
FRTE-REBEGRUIAE - ZER
ZERRFEIUR BT N\FEmziH
# - BEEWME  B-TTAF—HA—H
AR o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. Related-party transactions (Continued)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

() Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)
(iii) Lease and sub-lease of properties from fellow subsidiaries

DSLA has leased a portion of its owned property to DSB as its
branch office for a term of three years effective from 28 December
2007.

(iv)  Provision of computer and administrative services to the holding
company and fellow subsidiaries

On 28 December 2006, DSB (and its subsidiaries including BCM
entered into a new computer and administrative services
agreement with the holding company for a fixed term of two years
with effect from 1 January 2007. Pursuant to the service agreement,
DSB is to provide to the latter and certain of the fellow subsidiaries
including DSLA, DSIS, DSIA, Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited
(“DSI”), MIC and Macau Life Insurance Company Limited (“MLIC”)
management support services including retail branch and
marketing support, computer services, operations support,
autopay services, treasury services, risk management support and
other administrative services. The fee is determined at the end of
the year by reference to the estimated actual cost of providing the
services.

On 30 December 2008, DSB entered into a new Computer and
Administrative Services Agreement with the holding company for a
fixed term of two years with effect from 1 January 2009.

(v) Distribution and Agency Agreements

DSIS, and DSIA had entered into distribution agreements and
agency agreements with each of DSB and MEVAS and MIC and
MLIC have entered into distribution agreement and agency
agreements with BCM, for the marketing and distribution of life
and general insurance products through their network of bank
branches. DSB, MEVAS and BCM are entitled to receive
commissions calculated on normal commercial terms. The
agreements entered into in 2006 and expired in 2008 have been
renewed for a fixed term of two years commencing 1 January 2009.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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50.
(1) 52

216

BHHEANLZR S &)
o AV B 0N W) B [ &R MG D A W) I AR
Er (%)
() AR (%)
5T ()
(Vi)  RIFASB - AFIRE - SRPURBR KIRPIA
EATIROZ RBR RS

(1

REIFAEHRETIR

KFASBREEESHRRERZ (HREGE
BRERKHBITREARTEEZEAER
# - EAREERIZIBER) MAHRIT

LRRRITIRERRIRE - REVRIES
B2 MAERGERIZ - RAERRTE
MRBRE - KTASTRREES TER
BERAFRITMERARITHE 2 Hi K&
SRERRR c BAABR-ZT A F
BN =TT N\FERZRE - BEH
ME HZZEZNF—A—HEER - K
TABSRBRIIAZSREANEEE T ZRE

WEASFER E_TTNF AEEX
RFATASRBFASZRESH
4,088,000 7T (ZZZ )\ : 5,147,000
JT) °

RATIR R BOR PR IR AR 3T 8R1T RERIT &
BEMKE DA ZBE  RARERZ 5
ANREBERERE REGESERSE - §
ExR AREMT o8 BETREE
EREREREASI - RETIRHRE

KB PIRBR AR H — AR T o 3 R AN R
migft - WASEESH - E-_TTNF -
REEL N FRIRE RPIRB 2 RE
/435,746,000 (—ZZFZ )\E 5,111,000
BIT) °

2 A [ 4 B
Mi3E44 -

ARFBITEEERAT —ZTNFFH

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50.

(a)

Related-party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with the ultimate holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

0

Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(vi)

(1

Insurance services provided by DSLA and DSI, MIC and MLIC

Under the Credit Life Insurance Policy Agreements which cover
personal loans, credit card lending and mortgage loans extended
by DSB and MEVAS, DSLA provides insurance cover to DSB and
MEVAS in return for a premium which is calculated based on the
outstanding balances of the relevant loans on normal commercial
terms. DSLA also underwrites insurance policies to cover the death
and/or critical illnesses of certain loan customers and staff of DSB
and MEVAS. Policies entered into with DSLA in 2006 and expired
in 2008 have been renewed for a fixed term of two years
commencing 1 January 2009. Both DSLA and MLIC underwrite
insurance policies to cover staff of the Group and are subject to
renewal annually. Premiums paid by the Group to DSLA and MLIC
in 2009 totalled HK$4,088,000 (2008: HK$5,147,000).

DSI and MIC underwrite general insurance policies in the name,
and for the benefit, of DSB and other companies of the Group
including policies covering domestic motor, property all risks,
public liability, money, electronic equipment, employees’
compensation and group personal accident. The policies are
subject to renewal annually. The policies are provided to the Group
on DSl and MIC’s normal, written commercial terms. Premiums paid
by the Group in 2009 totalled HK$5,746,000 (2008: HK$5,111,000).

Inter-company balances

Inter-company balances are shown under Note 44.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. Related-party transactions (Continued)
(b) Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors and key

management personnel

The Group provides credit facilities to, and takes deposits from
the Group’s key management personnel, their spouses and

companies which the key management personnel have significant

BB ZEHRINT - influence. For the year ended 31 December, the following
balances were outstanding:

—EBEEhE —TTN\F

E3L] Group 2009 2008

BER KRB Loans and advances 33,526 50,278

T Deposits 635,748 425,031

ER Guarantees 149 149

(i) FTEEEASHZ

RNARTEEEABAHITES - HBRIM
ERREEKZIRAKIFEI2 -

51.  DAJB A 7 5 R Sk I 5t 38

REBBBARRA 2 BBAEE ([KIRITEE
) REZERARAFEREFRFRAFZR
BetEat &l (TR & B at 811) SR AR (D B ERER
B TEEERSRITHRALR - ERESZ AR
7 RETE RN < AEN 25 RHFE12

(FH) W 84T 4 10 it 38

AR FEREMBARE TEENESRK
o BEREFAFARTREMBRREZER
BRETERRAEEEHRBENREENRSE
B UWBERDEHBETRND - ARBITERMAL
BEXMNEHNBITER T Z R

Maximum aggregate amount of loans
and advances during the year 52,956 55,118

(i)  Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Company are executive

directors and their remunerations are included under Note 12.

51. Share-based compensation plans

Share-based compensation through the Company’s Share Option
Scheme (the “DSBG Scheme”) and the Share Option Scheme of the
holding company, Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the “DSFH
Scheme”), is available to Directors and senior executives of the Group.
Details of the share-based compensation paid to directors are disclosed
in Note 12.

(a) DSBG Scheme

The Company issues to certain directors and employees of its
subsidiaries share options on terms that allow the Company or its
subsidiaries to make cash payments, determined based on the intrinsic
value of each share option, to the directors or employees at the date of
exercise instead of allotting newly issued shares. The Company has
the intention to adopt this cash settlement practice in respect of the

existing share options issued.
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51. DABtAn 25 FEpE R 51 # (4

() SR SR A7 48 Tt 31 (g

2 5 RNRRE TR ARG B A 2 AR R AR ATHR T ©
BT RBREZTRERRBEERESAHERS
FERAR (BEERSZFT]) EmiEfZ17.03(9)
IRETE @ AARAIRBEBRXSMEE ZRDER
THZWHEBHARARRGER T AR AR S
Bz FARMEZREE  ZRREZITEHR—
CERER T HHBIE—Z=F,AFAH -

(&) KW 4wt

RS HBETEREMBATNEFESREER
BAE - B IES A FAT S BREMB A TER
ST R MR E RS RN

SEE  UWERDEMBITRMD - KIFTESBER
MRS BRI RITEFERLEBARETERT
2 RIEHE -

ZERBBETIZAHERERR _ZZTRFNHA
= H/\BBIL 2 ¥ BB AT 8] 2 5K S R A P
T BT ZRBEZTEEESRBEEREERS
Bt ETEBIZFE17.03QGETE * RAFERNE
BRIMEBZBRODERTRAZKHERAHE
BEMHERTHEARERSHZ PR MHEZER
BE - ZRBREZITER-RENER T RHE
AHE-EFENEFEA -

HEMRERRESTE  AEEEHER
26,834,000/8 7T (ZZZ )\ : 3,998,000/ 7T) /&
BRZERAREATEZEE - WATFETIA=
B EERAIR TR 2 REGTE - A&
EITAZERRE  R-ZETZNEHRALID
22,836,000 T (ZZ TN\ F : X ) B &
42,540,000 7T) ° % 5% T & WA S # A2 RE
ELRBRER_ZZNFT_RA=1T—HILER
©EBE(CZEENF : EREEH) °

AEN KT RITEBARAF

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

51. Share-based compensation plans (Continued)
(a) DSBG Scheme (Continued)

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Scheme. The exercise prices of the options granted
was determined in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“SEHK”) prevailing in force, being the higher of the
closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date
of grant, or the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The exercise
period is generally between the first and sixth anniversaries from the

date of grant.

(b) DSFH Scheme

DSFH issues to certain directors and employees of its subsidiaries share
options on terms that allow DSFH or its subsidiaries to make cash
payments, determined based on the intrinsic value of each share option,
to the directors or employees at the date of exercise instead of allotting
newly issued shares. DSFH has adopted the cash settlement practice
and intends to continue this practice in respect of the existing share

options issued.

The share options are granted in accordance to the terms and
conditions of the new Share Option Scheme established by the
shareholders of DSFH on 28 April 2005. The exercise prices of the
options granted was determined in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK prevailing in
force, being the higher of the closing price of DSFH’s shares traded on
the SEHK on the date of grant, or the average closing price of DSFH’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.
The exercise period is generally between the first and sixth anniversaries

from the date of grant.

With respect to the two share option schemes described above, the
Group has recorded liabilities of HK$26,834,000 (2008: HK$3,998,000)
in respect of the fair value of the share options. Such fair value is
determined by using the Trinomial Pricing Model using the major
assumptions set out in the following table. The Group recorded a total
expense for the share options of HK$22,836,000 in 2009 (2008: a
reversal of expenses of HK$42,540,000). The total intrinsic value of the
share options for which the grantee’s right to receive cash had vested
as of 31 December 2009 is nil (2008: HK$Nil).
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51.

Share-based compensation plans (Continued)

The inputs into the Trinomial Option Pricing Model were as follows:

AHRGEEHE
DSBG Scheme
ZEENE RENE
2009 2008
CBRtE  CEEtE 33N CEERF  C3EEE  CEEME EE(E CST4E CE55F CTEIRE C5ERf CEEME
tAthA  tAtAR AA-TER t-B=tR NA-tER t-B=tER +AtAR tATAR MAZTER A=t NAZTRE +-A=fEA
19 Jul 19 Jul 25 Sep 30 Dec 25 Aug 25 Nov 19ul 190ul 25 Sep 30 Dec 25Aug 25 Nov
ol Grant date 2007 2007 2006 2005 2005 2004 2007 2007 2006 2005 2005 2004
ARFARTZA Share price of the
=1-H Company as at
BB 31 December (HKY) ne  Me M 1e 1R 116 557 557 557 557 551 557
fipE(En) Evercise price (HKS) 1784 1784 113 1432 1440 1670 1784 1784 173 1432 1440 16.70
A AR (GE() Expected volaiity
(Note () 60.9% 60.9% 60.9% 60.9% 60.9% 60.9% 54.3% 54.3% 54.3% 54.3% 54.3% 54.3%
£5(5) Time to maturty years) < <4 <4 <2 <2 < <2 <5 <4 <3 <4 <2

BRI () Risk free rate (Note (i) 0.47% 1.31% 1.0% 0.61% 0.47% 0.22% 0.43% 1.12% 0.96% 0.79% 0.11% 0.53%

it (i) Expected dividend rate

(Note i) 1.63% 1.63% 1.63% 1.63% 1.63% 1.63% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92%

RF&matEl
DSFH Scheme
—EERE —ZTTN\F
2009 2008

—EELE —EE2RF —TTLF —EThF

ABRA=tNH NA=+EHB AA=+AB NAZ+HH

®¥H Grant date 28 Sep 2007 25 Aug 2005 28 Sep 2007 25 Aug 2005
REFemn+=A4 Share price of DSFH
=+—H as at 31 December

Z IR {E (B 7T) (HK$) 43.0 43.0 19.88 19.88

1T1EE (Br) Exercise price (HK$) 61.93 51.71 61.93 51.71

TERTR & (GE()) Expected volatility (Note (i) 67.7% 67.7% 62.4% 62.4%

FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <4 <2 <5 <3

A J2 B R R (R (1)) Risk free rate (Note (ii) 1.45% 0.47% 1.16% 0.71%

TEET IR 2R (R (i) Expected dividend rate (Note (iii)) 1.79% 1.79% 7.19% 7.19%

G Notes:

(i) TEHRIER ZREN T E B 2 AT —FAKIE (i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility of
MatE - WRFBERFRITEBERFTSFAR the share price during the one year period immediately preceding the
B2KE - BB ERARBRE 2 FEHARZTBRHE measurement date and is based on the assumption that there is no
B WEEAMNER - material difference between the expected volatility over the time to

maturity of the options and the historical volatility of the shares in DSBG
and DSFH set out above.

(i) ERBRMNEREMFHEBINEESRE 2K (i)  Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
R o time to maturity.

(iiiy TEHARREERNIZBARSEME ° (i) Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.
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51. HETRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

51. Share-based compensation plans (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related
weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

A3 RAT R B & A$T&mcE
DSBG Scheme DSFH Scheme
ZBENE ZZEN\fF “EENE ZZEN\F
2009 - 2008 2009 - 2008
BF¥TEE RTYABE RF¥UEE RTYABE

AHBTEE ﬂﬂ%?iﬂ K%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%l Mg AHeR MERHY AFER Mg

ARESR k& AR TRE ARESR k& AR IET TRE

RGHE (& 7) 1"%5(9 (%) RG8AE (& 7) KA E (%)

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted ~ Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

DSBG shares average DSBG shares average DSFH shares average DSFH shares average

in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise

options price options price options price options price

granted (HK$) granted (HKS) granted (HK$) granted (HKS)

—A—H At 1 January 1,500,000 15.77 1,500,000 15.77 2,100,000 52.68 2,100,000 52.68

BT Granted - - - - - - - -

BEE/KE Cancelled/Forfeited - - - - - - - -

Bt Exercised - - = - - - - _

RECL] Expired = = = - - - - -

+ZA=1-H At 31 December 1,500,000 15.77 1,500,000 15.77 2,100,000 52.68 2,100,000 52.68
+ZA=+-H Exercisable at

CIKRN: 31 December 1,150,000 15.64 820,000 15.51 1,600,000 52.22 1,180,000 52.06

ARFRZZBZNFETZA=+—HBRITEZR The Company’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2009

[t 2 TTEEN F14.328 T 217.84B L (= have a range of exercise prices from HK$14.32 to HK$17.84 (2008: in

NE  TRENF14.328 T E17.8487T) - KH the range of exercise prices from HK$14.32 to HK$17.84), and a

IEFHFBRE DTFEHAR/1.90F (ZTEZNEF : weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.90 years (2008: 2.90

2.90%F) - AN _ZETENF+_A=+—H
RITEZ RREZITEEN T51.7157LE61.93
BIL(ZEENEF : NTF51.718 L E61.93%5
7o) ¢ RENMBEFEFEIBRELITFERR1.85F (=
TT)\F : 2.85%F) o

RFALERRBERTARRSRITRAR (=
ZTNF  8) RFALEANES R BIE
BFARARBRSRITHAR (ZZTNE &) -

52. HiHHARAZ HEIH
R-ZE—ZTFE_-F+—H K¥FETET
225,000,000 0 T T SR E(ETS @ Z&EE

ISTERN NN 22 5 P = T 4% L8 AR FT 4R 1T HO B
MER (REBCRITE (BA) BRI ESCFT4E
fR) o ZEHFE6.625% @ R _ZE_FTF_A
+—BEH -

T —TF - AT LA BITHRE - K5
RITA DRI 2 7 X &@@%%ﬁ R =
E—hFERAFBH(MEITR_E—ZFFHAH
R EHEMD (fifFE42)) (F%%%%J) 2150,000,000%
TLH)IZ B 1&&1% o FEER A AR - K5
RITR_ZE-—ZZF_AT+HLhBEBEH
124,580, 000%752%1%%%% o BEER EEHLE
i YE —T—FFE - AT ABRETE AR
SRATZ B hNE AR ELHE o

| 220 EETHEL LR

—ZETNEFR

years). DSFH'’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2009 have
a range of exercise prices from HK$51.71 to HK$61.93 (2008: in the
range of exercise prices from HK$51.71 to HK$61.93), and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1.85 years (2008: 2.85 years).

No share options were granted to senior executives of the Company
during the year (2008: Nil). No DSFH’s share options were granted to
senior executives of the Company during the year (2008: Nil).

52. Events after the end of the reporting period

On 11 February 2010, DSB issued US$225 million 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as supplementary capital of DSB (subject
to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) which
are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
The Notes will mature on 11 February 2020 and carry an interest rate of
6.625% per annum.

Concurrent with the launch of the above new issue in February 2010,
DSB offered to fully redeem at par, by way of an open tender, the full
amount of the US$150 million Subordinated Floating Rate Notes due
May 2015 (but callable on 6 May 2010 (Note 42)) (the “Old Notes”).
Based on acceptance by noteholders, a total of US$124.58 million of
the Old Notes were redeemed by DSB on 19 February 2010. The Old
Notes redeemed were cancelled and excluded from DSB’s
supplementary capital base with effect from 19 February 2010.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does

not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. Capital adequacy ratio

The table below summarises the ratios and the composition of
regulatory capital of the Group. The individual entities within the Group
and the Group complied with all of the externally imposed capital
requirements by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”).

—RBAE —TINE

+=A +=A
=t+—-A =+t—HA
As at As at

31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008

EAF R E
— D
_ s

E =L

BARF R ETIARFIRIT AR DR (TRFTRT])
WiRa MR (BIERMEERITERA R (DR
RBFERTT]) RAFTIRIT (P B BR AR ([RFR
T(FRED])) - SRRRITERA R (TERRT])
K D.A.H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands)
Limited ([DAHCI) 2ZiR173 (BZ) D E
EREANERATENES O X - ZERT R
ZWAEEZED TS RERMEIERR

RBEBRITEMRD  EXAEEFEEMZHE
RITARAETERERNTRLEREEZFR - R
FIRRRITABTEMRMARITEEENRER
RFRIT(PE) RETHEHTERITEEENR
E o AEE LA RFERHZE -

Capital adequacy ratio
— Core 10.2% 6.8%
— Overall 16.8% 13.6%

The capital adequacy ratio represents the combined ratio of the
consolidated position of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) (covering
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited) (“DSB China”)), MEVAS Bank Limited (“MEVAS”) and D.A.H.
Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) Limited (“DAHCI”) computed on Basel
Il basis with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital

adequacy ratio takes into account market risk and operational risk.

Only the Hong Kong incorporated banking subsidiaries within the Group
are subject to the minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking
regulations and DSB China is subject to China banking regulations.

The above ratios of the Group are calculated for reference only.
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1. HARFRE @) 1. Capital adequacy ratio (Continued)
MRENERNERERAEFE LRE—STNE The capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above
FTZA=tT—"HBERRRLELEMANTAT : capital adequacy ratios as at 31 December 2009 is analysed as follows.

—RBAE —TINE

+=A +=A
=t-8 =1-*8
As at As at

31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008

AR Core capital
28 2 B 3R 9 3 3 AR AR R Paid up ordinary share capital 4,007,749 2,707,749
f% 154 B Share premium 55,519 55,519
7 s Reserves 5,054,929 3,808,200
R Less: goodwill (811,690) (811,690)
W HEEEE Less: other intangible assets (140,432) (126,875)
B FIRERIEE E Less: net deferred tax assets (4,830) (4,150)
8,161,245 5,628,753
B EIRIBEBE AN 2A T Less: 50% of total amount of
deductible items (453,449) (454,040)
BB R Core capital 7,707,796 5,174,713
B hn & 7R Supplementary capital
BHETWRMEBESELNFE Reserves on revaluation of holding of
land and building 237,355 197,762
At AZREBEEE ZEERBELEER Eligible amount of collective
BB A impairment allowances for impaired
assets and regulatory reserve 682,329 783,661
A HEFEFNEGHRERE Revaluation reserve for
available-for-sale investments 741 237
EHPR1ZEEIR Perpetual subordinated debt 1,008,137 1,953,000
BHRERE Term subordinated debt 3,488,193 2,814,377
B AnE A 4258 Total Supplementary capital 5,416,755 5,749,037
AT ET A Z K & R 2058 Eligible amount of
Supplementary capital 5,416,755 5,628,753
B EIRIBEAE AN 2A T Less: 50% of total amount of
deductible items (453,449) (454,040)
B & AR Supplementary capital 4,963,306 5,174,713
BARE AR Total capital base 12,671,102 10,349,426

el KFTIRITEBARAT —TTAFER
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Liquidity ratios

—RBAE —TINE
2009 2008

REE S L%

MBESLERAEENBRITATNRAEFA
TEABEEANFARBDES L ENBHEF
B - ZRBE S ERBERITEMRPISE DM
RAMITEE ©

RIBIRITRGD - EARKEAN M 2 M BRTT
REBETREEZ L EHEENR - AEH Lt
MWL RFAERHSE o

3. A HEE kR
RS # T

TINRAKREE—_FTAF+_A=+—Hzx
TTMEEER &Y% Z MNEFHE (B M 2 SMNEF 5
FRIBL AT SMNEIERE10%) - R HEMEE Z LI E
B e

Liquidity ratio 57.3% 48.9%

The liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average liquidity ratio of the Group’s banking subsidiaries for
the twelve months of the financial year. The liquidity ratio is computed
with reference to the methods set out in the Fourth Schedule of the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

Only the locally incorporated banking subsidiaries within the Group are
subject to the minimum liquidity ratio requirement under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance. The above ratios of the Group are calculated for

reference only.
3.  Currency concentrations

Equivalent in HK$ millions

The following sets out the Group’s net foreign exchange position in
USD and other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of
the total net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2009

and the corresponding comparative balances.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

Currency concentrations (Continued)

FH AR H # W oT (8D Equivalent in HK$ millions (Continued)

EY AR B
—EENF+=A=+—H At 31 Dec 2009 usD CNY MOP
HEEE Spot assets 27,339 4,060 3,026
REBE Spot liabilities (25,918) (4,056) (4,921)
mEIE A Forward purchases 39,005 34 -
RHE N Forward sales (38,163) (28) -
HARERE R R AR Net options position = - -
&/ (&) B F58 Net long/(short) position 2,263 10 (1,895)
BRI RERE Net structural position - 113 -

£t AR ek
—ZEZEN\E+=-A=+—H At 31 Dec 2008 uUsbD CNY MOP
REEE Spot assets 32,558 2,156 2,895
REAE Spot liabilities (28,104) (2,208) (4,526)
REE A Forward purchases 30,681 107 1
REIEN Forward sales (32,991) (111) -
AR AR SRR Net options position (1,063) @) -
&/ (58) B35 Net long/(short) position 1,081 (58) (1,630)
EBMERESRIFE Net structural position = 114 =

MR 3 RRA RN EESRRESER

AHE - AN RFEERASEBI DT

BIERS -

PPV K ETRITEBER A 7

the Group’s overseas branches.

—ZETNEFR

The net options position is calculated using the delta equivalent

approach. The net structural position includes the structural position of
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEE T Thz37R)

(W) #4730 B2 % P S (LR

(a)

Loans and advances to customers

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

38 4 A B DL 3 HR A b DR o B 43 Ll 2y

according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage

#r) covered by collateral
“ZBAF+=-A=+-A ZZEN\F+-A=+—H
As at 31 Dec 2009 As at 31 Dec 2008
BENEH EResE
ZEARARE ZER mIRE
ZEDL ZBADL
% of gross % of gross
REBELR advances  REEHH advances
Outstanding covered  Outstanding covered
balance by collateral Balance by collateral
ERAFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITEER Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEERE - Property development 611,218 65.0 448,282 83.6
-MEKRE — Property investment 11,209,001 89.2 10,102,405 92.4
-t - Financial concerns 333,243 47.7 373,243 91.4
-BRELLRL — Stockbrokers 52,265 100.0 9,707 53.4
-PBEETEE - Wholesale and retail trade 1,001,216 96.3 1,187,833 87.3
-BUEX - Manufacturing 657,570 86.9 885,724 78.3
- B KB RE - Transport and transport
equipment 3,207,328 97.4 4,241,249 93.5
- BT - Recreational activities 157,565 - 23,507 25.7
- AR - Information technology 902 422 418 -
- HAh - Others 1,847,970 92.7 2,140,815 88.7
19,078,278 89.0 19,413,183 90.9
A Individuals
-EEIEEEEEE - - Loans for the purchase of
[(FLAZEEEE] R flats in Home Ownership
[(HEBHEFEIET Scheme, Private Sector
ER Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,398,373 100.0 1,625,129 99.9
-BEEMEEMEER — Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 10,462,174 99.9 10,715,925 99.7
-EAFRER — Credit card advances 3,173,620 - 3,371,802 =
- Hfth - Others 6,510,864 62.9 6,513,226 58.5
21,545,031 74.0 22,226,082 72.5
EEEEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 40,623,309 81.0 41,639,265 81.1
BHRME Trade finance 3,136,776 68.4 4,457,618 64.0
EEBAIMEAHER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 13,405,074 83.3 14,902,190 82.2
57,165,159 80.9 60,999,073 80.1

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(ABEE T Thz37R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4, B EHRBBER &) 4.

() AT B2 % PR s (DRSO (a)
38 o1 8 S DA AR i R I 4 4 bl A3
#r) ()

ERAH R AR E S ERBI10%HIA L4
% HEERETRE - R KER AR
AFENERAEEENT

Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified
according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage

covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting
10% or more of the total balance of advances to customers, the
attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, and individually

and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances are as follows:

BXREE
R EE
HB=EA 18 Bl FE AT
Gross WEEE HEEE
advances Individually  Collectively
REEBEH HWEER  overdue for as d assessed
Outstanding Impaired over3 impairment impairment
“EZAE+=-HA=1+—H  Asat31Dec 2009 balance loans months  allowances  allowances
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IHER Industrial, commercial
and financial
-MERE - Property investment 11,209,001 15,802 - 1,063 60,825
A Individuals
-BEHMAEEMEER - Loans for the
purchase of other
residential
properties 10,462,174 6,765 8,406 1,358 8,836
BERET
B R EE
BB={EA 18 Bl 7 mETy
Gross HEEE AEERE
advances Individually  Collectively
REEBELR WMEER  overdue for assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired over3 impairment impairment
—EEN\E+=-A=1t—H As at 31 Dec 2008 balance loans months  allowances allowances
EBEFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITEeR Industrial, commercial
and financial
-MERE - Property investment 10,102,405 14,785 = 5,429 17,862
A Individuals
-EEEMEEMEER - Loans for the
purchase of other
residential
properties 10,715,925 1,111 1,839 407 3,211

Pl KFTIRITEBARAET —TTAFER
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEE T Thz37R)

4. KPR AR @) 4. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

() AT B2 % PR s (DRSO (a) Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified
I 43 JU B DA 32 AR A i DR B2 4 43 G 4y according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage
Br) () covered by collateral (Continued)

TREBFANERGSRER 2L EFIREES

BB MBI -

The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the

amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year were

disclosed in the tables below.

KEEREE
KREFEEBEER HMEZEX
M #5% Recoveries of
Loans advances
HigEE written  written off in
New off as previous
—EBNE 2009 allowances uncollectible years
EEBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEeH Industrial, commercial and financial
-MERE - Property investment 298 - 5,737
(EPN Individuals
-BEEMEEMEER ~ Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 1,927 231 2,621
2,225 231 8,358
BEEREE
REEEBEER HMEZEX
2% Recoveries of
Loans advances
HMILEE written  written off in
New off as previous
—EENE 2008 allowances uncollectible years
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITEeR Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEKRE — Property investment 5,205 542 -
EA Individuals
-EBEEMEENEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 133 921 957
5,338 1,463 957

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009



il 7o B 255 R

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(ABEE T Thz37R)

4. Jég J:' %‘/’ & ﬁg T}\
LU PN EE Y

TR P R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(b)

Non-bank Mainland exposures

—BBAF+=A=1-H
As at 31 Dec 2009

1l 51 5 4&
EEEER BEAEX BEERE
ARy EREE SRR Individually
On-balance Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet MEXEE  impairment
REUFESR Type of counterparties exposure  exposure Total allowances
A B R BE S Mainland entities 3,046,123 - 3,046,123 -
R B K BE BASNA B K Companies and individuals
A - s REER outside Mainland where the
AR B K e {5 AR credits are granted for use
in the Mainland 5,543,273 578,294 6,121,567 164,245
H 32 5 T i H = Other counterparties the
WRE BB NIERTT exposures to whom are
HEPRK considered by the Group
to be non-bank Mainland
exposures 214,212 - 214,212 -
—ZEENFE+=-A=+—H
As at 31 Dec 2008
1l 51 2 1
EEEER EEEEX REERE
A EREE NI BREE Individually
On-balance Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet #Ex%  impairment
REHFEE Type of counterparties exposure exposure Total allowances
Hh B K BE R Mainland entities 2,484,332 - 2,484,332 -
8 BK B LASNA B K Companies and individuals
BA - mpkEE R outside Mainland where the
AR B K B {5 A credits are granted for use
in the Mainland 8,184,005 420,865 8,604,870 314,368
H 32 5 8 F i H R Other counterparties the
WRE BB NIERTT exposures to whom are
HEPE R considered by the Group
to be non-bank Mainland
exposures 50,138 - 50,138 -
F: FERBREEERFERREREMEERR Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and
Bz&%8 - other balances of claims on the customers.
PRI RETIRITREBARAD A TENFEFER
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(ABEE T Thz37R)

4. #&fﬂj‘)\
(W) % W35 i 2 % P 8k S Jos i &
e

BEFEFRZBREOSTIRECEERRERRZ
RHOBFREMDE - —RME - BEERWER
TR ST AR Z B - RS RE
% o

TRBEFPERERERENNT - —FT/\FHR
BIZHECR LA EREFRREBE 2 EE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue loans

by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that of

the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area. The position presented for 2008 has been restated
to incorporate the effect of transfer of risk under guarantee

arrangements described above.

ST PTG
+=A=t-A +=A=+-A

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

BEPENEE Gross advances to customers
-B% - Hong Kong 48,779,171 52,094,469
-/ - China 1,479,379 1,229,503
- B - Macau 6,151,486 6,578,169
-Hfh - Others 755,123 1,096,932
57,165,159 60,999,073
RZBZENGFR_TENF+_A=+—H " B In relation to the Group’s impaired advances and overdue advances,

ZRRERBBER cFE L AEBERENARRE
BEEFRRBETBEBADINTESBRETAER
T e

5. A8 i R BRAR R KR 2 AR

R EEZ —ETAF T+ A=+—HER
TR LR TDARFIRITHGE RN (BIEBRF R
HRITRAFTIRTT (R ED)) - ERRIRTT RDAHCIZE
CIRTTEE (BAS) RED A 2 75 AR B ZER AR
BEEFGTENEHLE - REEEE EPHRE
Misk2. 2Rl tEg s 2 A -

over 90% of the outstanding balance as at 31 December 2009 and
2008 were classified under Hong Kong after taking into account the

effect of transfer of risk.

5. Capital charge for credit, market and operational risks

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2009 disclosed in Note
1 above represents the combined ratio of the consolidated position of
DSB (covering BCM and DSB China), MEVAS and DAHCI computed on
Basel Il basis with reference to the methods set out in the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules. For accounting purposes, the basis of consolidation

is described in Note 2.2 to the financial statements.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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5. fEE -~ W R AR R B AR

)

BREARER ZEARZRBALIT

(i) &S bR B A Z K

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. Capital charge for credit, market and operational risks

(Continued)

The capital charge for each class of exposures are summarised as

follows:

(i) Capital charge for credit risk

—EBhE —"TITN\F
2009 2008
o= RE M B B I Sovereign exposures 1,431 3,841
N BALR R AR Public Sector Entity exposures 38,372 31,260
fﬁ 17 B A Bank exposures 797,761 723,094
B 25 7 [ B A Securities firm exposures 3,500 1,998
/£ = = bz Corporate exposures 2,307,769 2,425,695
REER Cash items 5,134 9,110
EE T ER A E Regulatory retail exposures 591,682 672,674
FEZRBER Residential mortgage loans 768,960 777,442
Hh R 260 R = fae A 42 Other exposures which are not past
due exposures 644,545 566,633
780 HA 3 B A 2 Past due exposures 71,103 49,567
BEBBERARREE 2 EARENRE Total capital charge for
on-balance sheet exposures 5,230,257 5,261,314
BEEFERE® Direct credit substitutes 11,645 15,356
B ZHE 2 ABR Transactions-related contingencies 11,641 35,985
BB ZHE AR Trade-related contingencies 6,261 4,379
RETEHR Forward forward deposits placed 45 251
H A EcHE Other commitments 87,193 46,930
[EXREL Exchange rate contracts 36,819 42,429
FEEH Interest rate contracts 16,031 32,134
=t A1 Equity contracts 158 402
FEETETASYN Credit derivatives contracts = =
AEBBERINEAE 2 ERE KB Total capital charge for
off-balance sheet exposures 169,793 177,866
sERRZEARTRE Total capital charge for credit risk 5,400,050 5,439,180

WHETAKE A B E AR L Z B it
BREARNWNHE  UFAEBE L EREETE
= o

PRI KT RITEBAR A F

This disclosure is made by multiplying the Group’s risk-weighted

amount derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the

institution’s actual “regulatory capital”.
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(0

(i) 7B IR A R

REBRAPESE A ETIBER -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. Capital charge for credit, market and operational risks

(Continued)
(i) Market risk capital charge
The Group uses the Standardised Approach for calculating market risk.

—EEAE+ZA=+—H —EENF+=A=1+—8H
As at 31 Dec 2009 As at 31 Dec 2008

B B 4 B4 2R BAER ERINESHE EREXR
Risk weighted Capital Risk weighted Capital
amount charge amount charge
F =R g o (B4 B ) Interest rate exposures

(including options) 997,905 79,832 1,090,150 87,212

SN BEE [ e 7 & Foreign exchange exposures
(BREES LR (including gold and options) 1,965,241 157,220 1,719,080 137,526
2,963,146 237,052 2,809,230 224,738

At 2 [\ e AN SRR B AR IR PR R AR 1T RORHTER AT
(FRE) BRATZITER KB -

(iii) AR LB 2 B A B R
AEBHAEREEGTE LS ERERE -

The risk-weighted amount included those amounts arising from
derivative contracts executed by BCM and DSB China.
(iii) Operational risk capital charge

The Group uses the Basic Indicator Approach for calculating operational

risk.

—2RhAE _—FTNF
2009 2008

RIERR 2 ERENR

6.  JE\BE A B

AEERESERRE MEHEN L E BT
ENERRBIEARER -

RREREINAAEE: FERR  TmHER
% MXREAR - RBESREBRRBERR - FE
RRZEEERRRAKEZEEAS HHE
EEE - WENTERE - MWAEBERE LY
BRHNEREB RGO EES -

Capital charge for operational risk 409,846 418,049

6. Risk management

The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it

through a well-developed management structure.

Risk management is focused on the five major areas of risk — credit
risk, market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and operational risk.
Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios comprising
commercial, wholesale and retail lending, equipment and hire purchase
financing, and treasury and financial institutions wholesale lending.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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(ABEE T Thz37R)

6.\ BEEHE (%)

RED T HRRTRNER - EREAK
BEERBRAZEERGNEEABRINCE
BEX (BREMEBZE@ER) B -

) 2= L i 4 R ) = ) A ) 58 3 ) 5| B SR B ) B
BRI T B B LR o

nBEERRELBMARE MWK
BRERBRTERNERERF BTRASZTRELR
BHIRNEMAMELEZERKAEBRZA

B o

BRI HmR M 3R E < MR E RN -
FHEZERERFRMNT o

Hith

(FF) 45 PO e e B8 S

ExgMARNNRERERS FEEBNEE -
BRERESTH  EFESNEERHE

o  HAEEBHRMBERABREERS R
HEBMEEMWEREE REMER

s HMBAMFUBIENERER  BEREE
MITHEZES > BREEEZZE SN
1E AR (LLHTRR) - EELAH MK
REBIEREE Rk

o  HBEE  BREUREMDONTERIEMBIE

=

RECERLBEHEERRBMNE
TEEERRENTRBT AR -

1o
) I8

® 5
o
i

g O

RPN KT IRITEBAR A F

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. Risk management (Continued)

Market risk arises mainly in Treasury and is associated principally with
the Group’s on-balance sheet positions in the trading book, and off-
balance sheet trading positions including positions taken to hedge

elements of the trading book.

Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition

resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.
Liquidity risk arises across the Group’s statement of financial position.

Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from

external events.

Apart from the description of financial risk management disclosed in
Note 3 to the financial statements, the other risk management aspects

are disclosed below.

(@) The risk management structure of the Group

The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for the
management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the Board in

relation to risk control are:

° the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure that
credit and other risks are properly managed at both the

transaction and portfolio levels;

° the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
conducted through operational and administrative control
systems including the operation of the Group Audit Committee;
review of key results (against forecasts), operational statistics and

policy compliance; and

° financial performance by analysis against approved budgets and

analysis of variations in key non-financial measures.

The Executive Committee has been delegated the authority to oversee
and guide the management of different risks which are more particularly
managed and dealt with by Group Risk Division and different functional

committees.
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SEHB AR A EEENE B ERBOBRR
EMEE - RERRBERTEBRAREERZS
gRTHZESRESSEREERBRAN -
ERBERMER TENRE - REREEMK
EIMEIERBIET - BN ERIM BT ENRR
SERERFEHNZEMBEAEENEE AR

B - BREEHTS - QFETE A8 ERE
M AEEELEERABERRNTBETAN
ZE - EREFEERRARBER  SERBITE
ZEERLERGENES - XHH R EERR
HENEBRR - KERRITESEEER
FMEBHEEXRAREZES -

AEERREENEXNAFERAEEAEN
BREx  UREAKERENSETHEER
KM (5 /03 2 42 B2 7% 15 48 B A L B A0 (3 4

EEERRBEIERET  AEEFEZREAE
BREIRAE ) - SO AN ST A B 51 S B A R A
HEEEARCHNZE - AEBERYAEEKE
AR A LR S & B — R 5 B0 B E TR A
DMTH - &tglﬂDﬁii“"i’ﬂﬁ%&ﬂ&ﬂﬂkﬂu
e TEHE BN R T EME EHIBNEL -
ﬁ?ﬁ@&#%’uﬁﬂﬁ%@ﬂMQBZ**%}EE&
FSEERIHEEER -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. Risk management (Continued)
(b) Group risk function

The independent Group Risk function is responsible for ensuring that
policies and mandates are established for the Group as a whole. Group
Risk Division monitors and reports the Group risk positions to the Board
via the Risk Management Committee and the Executive Committee,
sets standards for financial risks and data integrity and ensures that
the financial risks are fully considered in the product planning and
pricing process. Group Risk Division reviews and approves all credit
and risk exposure policies for the Group including the approval of
exposures to new markets, economic sectors, organisations, credit
products and financial instruments which expose the Group to different
types of risks. In determining risk policies, Group Risk Division takes
into account the guidelines established by the HKMA, business
direction, and risk adjusted performance of each business. Group Risk
Division is also represented on the lending or risk committees of the

Group’s operating divisions and businesses.

The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance the
overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables the Group
to meet the changing regulatory requirements and enter into credit
exposures with the confidence that it understands the associated risks

and rewards.

The Group is continuing to evolve its risk management capabilities
under the aegis of the Head of Group Risk Division, increasing the focus
of its risk strategy on risk and reward and returns on capital. The Group
uses a range of risk measurement and analytical tools in its
management of the various risks which it faces in its day-to-day
businesses and these are continually being enhanced and upgraded to
reflect the ever-changing business needs and the requirements of the
regulators. The Risk Management and Control function is part of Group

Risk Division and reports directly to the Head of Group Risk Division.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6.

(©)

Risk management (Continued)

Business division credit committees

Each of the operating divisions of the Group has its own credit or risk

committee responsible for approving and recommending policies, limits

and mandates for risk control within their respective business areas.

This is consistent with the Group’s approach of devolving responsibility

for risk management to the individual business areas under the aegis

of the Group Risk function. As such, each business credit risk function

reports to both Group Risk Division and the business area which it

supports.

(d)

Credit risk
(i) Credit risk exposures

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services (“Standard & Poor’s”),
Moody’s Investors Services (“Moody’s”) and Fitch Ratings are the
external credit assessment institutions (“ECAIs”) that the Group
uses for the assessment of its credit risk exposures to banks,
sovereigns, public sector entities, and collective investment
schemes as well as securitisation exposures and exposures to

corporates that do not qualify as regulatory retail exposures.

The process it uses to map ECAI issuer ratings to exposures
booked in its banking book follows the process prescribed in Part

4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. Risk management (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

() EEREFAEGE) ()  Credit risk exposures (Continued)
SATERR
eS|
EEfEIR
2NREZ
BRARAE
Total
ERAEERERE exposure
LBRAE RRTERR covered by
Exposures after BRMEHE REZER recognised
recognised credit Risk-weighted AEaE guarantees
risk mitigation amounts BRIER Total or
BRAE R RETR B RETR 4% exposure recognised
ag (2 (3) (2) (33) Total risk- covered by credit
“EENE 2009 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated weighted recognised derivative
BREH Class of exposures Exposures (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 2) (Note 3) amounts collateral contracts
A58 The Group
B, EEEERM A On-balance sheet
1. IE#E 1. Sovereign 5,313,943 5,257,147 425,111 17,892 - 17,892 - -
2, DEEf 2. Public Sector Entity 807,079 2,313,025 2,197 474,886 4,759 479,645 - -
3 81 3. Bank 25,951,574 25,632,568 347,006 9,824,791 141,217 9,972,008 - -
4, BEE 4. Securities firm 87,510 - 87,510 - 43,755 43,755 - -
5 %8 5. Corporate 32,085,212 11,569,835 19,437,852 9,422,854 190,424,263 28,847,117 742,006 385,792
6. BEER 6. Cashitems 813,420 - 1,680,787 - 64,177 64,177 - -
1. BEEE 7. Regulatory retail 10,014,688 - 9,861,362 - 7,396,022 7,396,022 144,137 183,495
8 FzhE 8. Residential
mortgage loans 20,989,531 - 19,401,798 - 9,611,998 9,611,998 - 1,587,733
9. EftxEH 9, Other exposures
BRAE which are not
past due
exposures 8,092,308 183,877 7,812,929 183,877 7,872,928 8,056,805 35,502 -
10. @HERAE 10, Pastdue exposures 619,990 - 619,990 - 888,781 888,781 11,525 15,803
7. BEEEZS  B. Off-balance sheet
1. BEAMTE 1. Off-balance sheet
IERRE exposures other
EEfTE than OTC
AHIEH derivative
LEERRER transactions or
HERAE credit derivative
contracts 1,835,472 39,487 1,795,985 1,897 1,451,912 1,459,809 181,792 -
2 BAMFEIR 2. OTC derivative
% transactions 1,605,687 1,439,864 165,823 523,795 138,807 662,602 978 31,210
REABENHZ  Exposures deducted
BRAE from capital base 1,863,850
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6. Risk management (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

() (EERERAEE) ()  Credit risk exposures (Continued)
RATERR
#27
EEfETA
AhREZ
BRAELE
Total
ERAEERARK exposure
LERAE ERTERG covered by
Exposures after BRNESE REZER recognised
recognised crecit Risk-weighted HESE guarantegs
risk mitigation amounts BRIES Total or
Bl B34 RETR B RETR aE exposure recognised
oz (i) () (i) (33) Totalrisk- covered by credit
3L\ 2008 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated weighted recognised derivative
BRE Class of exposures Exposures (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 2) (Note 3) amounts collateral contracts
A58 The Group
B OEEBERM A On-balance sheet
1. TREBE 1. Soversign 3,156,165 3,748,843 - 48011 - 48011 - -
2. DEEf 2. Public Sector Entity 207,930 1,937,014 15,571 387,635 3,114 390,749 - -
3 #f 3. Bank 25,865,436 25,435,498 928,317 8,766,122 225,191 8,991,313 - -
4 BHE 4, Securities firm 49,958 - 49,958 - 24,979 24,979 - -
5. %E 5. Corporate 35,370,082 11,910,178 21,431,622 8,904,371 21,416,814 30,321,185 1,045,297 584,606
6. H2EH 6. Cash items 676,368 - 2,043,919 - 113,876 113,876 - -
7. EETE 7. Regulatoryretall 11,456,954 - 11,211,024 - 8408419 8408419 237,662 8072
8 [FEiRE 8. Residential
mortgage loans 21,084,692 - 19,340,810 - 9,718,026 9,718,026 - 1,743,882
9. AftxaH 9. Other exposures
BlaAd which are not
past due
exposures 7,268,418 248,400 6,834,591 250,777 6,832,214 7,082,991 185,427 -
10, @MERBAE 10, Pastueexposures 453,040 = 453,040 = 619,588 619,558 90,717 9,743
L. BEGEFS  B. Offbalance sheet
1. BEMiE 1. Of-balance sheet
TER53 exposures other
FENE then OTC
TR derivative
LEEBER transactions or
EREE credlt derivative
contracts 1,583,065 48,258 1,534,807 9,652 1,276,604 1,286,256 141,997 -
2. FMTETE 2. OTC derivative
25 transactions 2,100,299 1,848,689 251,610 704,386 232,679 937,065 136 36,415
WERERMEZ  Exposures deducted
Ele from capital base 1,850,795
PR AHTIRITRERRAR —ZETNFFH
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6.

T

JoE B A B ()

) & LB ()

() EERRFAEE)

1. A2EEKEESFEHREWER - 1k
ERIFFHERE L)

2. SREEFEAMEERBEEETIRZAE
G A K MR AT AR 2 R B R (BN A R
REIERS T BATRI ARz BB AYE - BER
EARRRNTER 2 BB INEED2ER TE
BABBERAYE 2 E R EEERITA
BRI EEAET YN S A R e
BT 2R -

3. KRB FLRBERE RS T 5T AR ST R AR 2 R R
FRHE o

(i) XBHFIZERERAE

AEEBZEGERITEREERANZS
SMTZANDTTER S - BBRAR S RE
ENERSANERRFRZIFHNRE
HREWEE - Bt FA0NERZEER
REREEIREEAHE@ARNAKEZH
BEELERE) @ ZEERRAEERRD
BEBBERBEAERREAR TR S Y
FOEBEBEERE 2 —MHMER - FE
SRR R AR - R BRI R EMER -

HERREXNREARKESFIBREL
BHAKOERREIESFIRERE
£ AEERRRSHFEMBMGEER
BREGRGEHEBEARBEAE AR - K
KSENRFRGEELRY - RNEERIZ
W EEEE o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6.

(d)

Risk management (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Credit risk exposures (Continued)

Note
1. principal amount or credit equivalent amount, as applicable, net of
individually assessed impairment allowances.

2. including exposures with ECAI issue-specific rating and exposures
which have an inferred rating (i.e. exposures which do not have an
issue-specific rating but whose risk-weights are determined under
the Capital Rules by reference to an ECAI issuer rating assigned to
the obligor of the exposure or to an ECAI issue rating of any other
exposures of the obligor).

3. exposures which do not have ECAI issue-specific rating, nor
inferred rating.

(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures

The Group exercises strict control limits in tenor and outstanding
amounts on net open positions arising from over-the-counter
(“OTC”) derivative transactions, repo-style transactions and credit
derivative contracts booked in its banking book or trading book.
The credit risk exposures associated with these contracts are
predominantly their fair values (i.e. the positive marked-to-market
values favourable to the Group). These credit risk exposures
together with potential exposures from market movements are
managed as part of the overall lending limits allowed to
counterparties. Collateral or other security is generally not

obtained for such credit risk exposures.

Settlement risk arises in situations where a payment in cash or a
delivery of securities or equities is made in expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. To mitigate
settlement risk, daily settlement limits are established for each
counterparty on the aggregate of all settlements on any day. The
Group will also enter into netting arrangements and make
settlement on the basis of delivery against payment as

appropriate.

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. Risk management (Continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)

The following table summarises the Group’s main credit

exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions.

—BRAF —FENE

+=A +=A

=+—H =+—H

As at As at

BITERS OTC derivative transactions 31 Dec 2009 31 Dec 2008

£E Group

AN EIEESEREE Gross total positive fair value 668,396 1,089,861

SEEEEE Credit equivalent amount 1,605,687 2,100,300
RAEHREME - RER Value of recognised collateral by type

- B EFH — debt securities 73 =

— Efth - others 904 136

[\ Be N #E 24 R Risk weighted amounts 662,602 937,065

PR KFTIRITEBEBRAT —ZTNEFF

i
E

&
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEE T Thz37R)

6, } ng/\/ﬁ(\
) & LB ()

(i) XSHFEEREBRFAEE)

6. Risk management (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)

TEREMEESEHFEIEERRFE K An analysis of the credit equivalent amounts or net credit
[B PR INAEEREE 2 DA © exposures, and the risk-weighted amount is summarised as
follows.

EThE ZZEZT)N\F
+=A +=A
Ear=Ig =+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
ITERS OTC derivative transactions 2009 2008
£F Group
HRYE - Notional amounts:
- NEE - Public sector entities 41,681 217,149
- 8R17 - Banks 86,360,985 86,907,023
- =E — Corporates 3,837,263 11,482,924
- Hfth — Others 360,301 1,966,277
90,600,230 100,573,373
EESEEE/ Credit equivalent amounts/
EERERIFE net credit exposures:
- RNE B — Public sector entities 934 12,844
- R1T - Banks 1,434,084 1,766,722
- =E — Corporates 86,866 168,004
- Hfth — Others 83,801 152,730
1,605,685 2,100,300
2P AN BUER Risk-weighted amounts:
- NEBEAL - Public sector entities 187 2,569
- #R17 — Banks 520,904 654,805
- =H - Corporates 57,691 144,952
- Hpth - Others 83,820 134,739
662,602 937,065
R-_ZEFNE+—_A=+—HER-_ZEZE)N There were no credit exposures arising from repo-style

Frt-A=1T—B YEREEBPZAX
HREENERGEHNZEERR -

transactions and credit derivative contracts at 31 December 2009

and 31 December 2008.
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6. JEBRE B ()
(1) 15 KB ()
(i) HIRIE B R

AEEERAZREEERRT A —RAGR
7% (BAR) RADRAI LU D B R INEEZ
AR WRZEMRBHNEESRESTF
K THENEERHLTMNAKNELE
e MELBH 2 BFER - AKREIME
BRF - REBEURERIRREEFNR
EEERH 2R -

2 2 RN 2 T B A5 B
R - PR P 2 A% - AR
TS EES RS AEAKEK - RE
WE 2 IR - AR 2 B AR
TR TR -

(k) T 25 R B

AEBEE AR 2 THER - KAz AR
IR M A2 P ARET I S A MY A 3.3 -

(Q) 'Edsri

AEEFRARE @R A BEEAAEEFEE
ZIEERR - AEER/TISERRZREHR
e

ZI KFTIRITEBAERAET —TTAFER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(d)

(e)

Risk management (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
(iii)  Credit risk mitigation

The credit risk mitigation techniques used by the Group are
generally those recognised by the Banking (Capital) Rules for
reduced capital weighting. Common types of collateral obtained
are cash deposits, real estate properties, as well as taxi and public
light bus medallion. For certain types of advances to customers,
the Group also places reliance on guarantees issued by
governments, public sector entities and corporates with

acceptable credit rating.

The value of all real estate properties taken as collateral is
appraised prior to the inception of the loans. For property
collateral supporting problem accounts, their open market values
are appraised at least every six months. For property collateral
that has been repossessed, the Group’s policy is to arrange for

realisation as soon as practicable.

Market risk

The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of the risk

management policies and procedures adopted are set out in Note 3.3

to the financial statements.

(f)

Asset securitisation

The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to calculate

the credit risk for securitisation exposures. The Group is an investing

institution for all classes of exposures below.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. Risk management (Continued)
(f)  Asset securitisation (Continued)

Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s are the ECAIs that the Group has used

in relation to each and all classes of the securitisation exposures below.

—EENE 2009
£H Group
2L Bk pn BB AR R B
KEE £ 4] Exposures deducted from
e Risk- EXRE BB R f g A&
FH Securitisation Outstanding weighted Capital Core Supplementary
BB R exposures amounts amount requirements Capital Capital
BHELER Synthetic securitisations
-HEBUERETR - Structured investment
vehicle 10,338 10,338 827 34 33
—ETNF 2008
& Group
[ Bz o 7 &b AR B
AEE ] Exposures deducted from
ERER Risk- EABE BLER KT anE A&
FH Securitisation Outstanding weighted Capital Core Supplementary
2 B 7 R exposures amounts amount  requirements Capital Capital
EHEK Synthetic securitisations
-REEEERETA - Structured investment
vehicles 134,269 134,269 10,742 625 624
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6.\ BEEHE (%)
(PF) SRATHE = e e B

AR BN BB A R DRI E BRERRES B
MEFEEAREER N - RARTBIEEANIEER
Wz #E s iR B AR B E 2 E DT MAKERER
BE - MIZRAM - BE - FRRENEEET
PEEESE 2 AEES - R ERBBEF MR
Bz A AR IR 18 S| {ERTE - PRSI AR
MIZEEREEME -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. Risk management (Continued)

(g) Equity exposures in banking book

The Group distinguishes its equity holdings between those taken for

strategic reasons and those taken for capital appreciation purposes at

inception of the acquisition. Equity holdings identified for capital

appreciation purpose is evaluated based on rigorous investment

analysis and is subject to internal guidelines on stock selection,

marketability, valuation, position limit, management action trigger, and

various other control guidelines specified in the Treasury Policy Manual.

Listed equity holdings are valued on the basis of market bid prices.

—EZAE Z—ZZTTNF
& Group 2009 2008
HE /ERMER 2 K Realised gains from
sales/liquidations 7,128 18,595
REIE 2 FEhlkas Unrealised revaluation gains
-EEREREEERRN KGR 2 88 — Amount included in reserves but not
through income statement 32,035 1,496
- HUR B AN & AN 2 58 — Amount deducted from
supplementary capital - 237
(32) $RATHE 2 A & | Fa (h) Interest rate risk exposures in banking book
B
Currency
BT ET BT HAith &t
—EZAF 2009 HK$ Us$ EUR Others Total
=@ il & Interest rate risk shock
EHA-EEHT +200 basis points
- AFEm CRd) - Increase/(Decline)
in earnings 57,000 (92,000) 86,000 (125,000) (74,000)
B
Currency
BT ETT T HAh =
—ETNEF 2008 HK$ us$ EUR Others Total
=R o d e Interest rate risk shock
EA-BEEHT +200 basis points
- AR m/ CRd) - Increase/(Decline)
in earnings (59,000) (21,000) 86,000 (116,000) (110,000)

IV KEFTRITEBERLAE —ZETNFETR




fill 7o B4 255 ERL

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(ABEE T Thz37R)

6. KRB (5D
) PRAR R

AEEEE —AERERBEERREERR - HKE
BRESEEEABRKAEEBMSIRALFTI 28R
ERBR AR - WEB— RIRERBRBUR
TEM  BIERR $#$ﬁ&%ﬁﬂm Sa=Ez4
AHA SR = B E R R T BB - BRI —
ERFAREZERLG - RIERRERZSHIBERL T
BRI MR - 7HE - BEERRE - BiEAK
B &P B M R R R AR 2R - SRANA
FIARERAZ A 1T o

RRERGRBRULAEHAEBXBZZE - K
SECREBASH  RIFETBR RS
HARET2EBRESBPBETAA

%%&W%%V%WE%%W%“%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
FEH A FERELERE - SERKRBEHEEE
ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁZﬁ%&ﬂ@’ﬂﬁﬁlﬁﬂ
EREZEEER-

(3%) M b

BERAREREHRASEZHREN  £ERE
KEERRMAETRCBAEASERR - FLE
AR TwEREE WARSTEFELERN
BHEBE  HBREPERKLMSIEE XRERGE
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. Risk management (Continued)
(i) Operational risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management and operational
risk officers from each business and support function, and operating
through a set of operational risk policies, risk tool-kits, operational risk
incident reporting and tracking system, and control self assessment
and key risk indicator tools. Together with a well established internal
control systems, operational risk in most situations can be adequately
identified, assessed, monitored and mitigated. To allow the operational
risk framework to be clearly communicated to all levels within the
Group, awareness and training programs are conducted from time to

time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event of system
failure or disasters, back-up sites and operational recovery policies and
plans have been established and tested for all critical business and

operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic independent
reviews of internal control systems by external and internal auditors.
Reporting and assessment of the performance of operational risk
management are monitored by the Group Risk Division and reported to

the Group’s Risk Management Committee.

() Reputation risk

Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational errors
or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause customer
concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base or market

share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. Risk management (Continued)
() Reputation risk (Continued)

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high standard
of corporate governance and management oversight, maintenance of
effective policies and procedures with emphasis on internal control,
risk management and compliance; proper staff training and supervision;
proper handling of customer complaints or dissatisfaction; and
adherence to sound business practices. Standards are set and policies
and procedures are established by the Group in all areas, which operate

to reduce vulnerability to reputation risk.

(k) Strategic risk

Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial and
market positions of the Group because of poor strategic decisions,
unacceptable financial performance, improper implementation of

strategies and lack of effective response to the market changes.

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is directly
responsible for the management of strategic risk. Directors formulate
the strategic goals and key direction of the Group, ensure business
strategies are developed to achieve these goals, oversee the strategic
development and implementation to secure compatibility with the
Group’s strategic goals, review business performance, deploy proper
resources to achieve the Group’s objectives, and authorise

management to take appropriate actions to mitigate risks.

() Implementation of the Basel II Capital Accord

The revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel Il has come
into force for all locally incorporated authorized institutions in Hong
Kong from January 2007. To implement Basel Il, the HKMA published
the final Banking (Capital) Rules and Banking (Disclosure) Rules at the
end of 2006.

Basel Il is structured around three “pillars”. Pillar 1 sets out the minimum
capital requirements for a bank’s operational risk, in addition to revising
the “Basel I” treatment of credit risk and market risk. Pillar 2 requires
that banks should have in place sound internal processes to assess
the adequacy of their capital, based on a thorough assessment of their
risks including those risks not covered under Pillar 1, and that
supervisors should carry out supervisory review of this process. Pillar 3
complements Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 through enhanced market
transparency and market discipline by requiring banks to make public
disclosure of information on their risk profiles, capital adequacy and

risk management.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. Risk management (Continued)
(I) Implementation of the Basel II Capital Accord (Continued)

Starting January 2007, DSB and MEVAS adopt the standardised
approach for credit risk and market risk, and the basic indicator
approach for operational risk. These are the default approaches as
specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules. Accordingly, the Group has
overhauled its systems and controls in order to meet the standards

required for these approaches.

(m) The role of Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective
assurance and consulting unit, which is designed to focus on enhancing
and sustaining sound internal control in all business and operational
units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the Group Audit
Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director.
The Division conducts a wide variety of internal control activities such
as compliance audits and operations and systems reviews to ensure
the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness of the systems of control of

the Group.
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To the shareholders of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 220 which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2009 and the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.



M A% S

B R 2 JAE (50

%%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁé%
RIEBEERNBELERE © FIBERZFBURN X
AR H B - BIERH A RN RFFRERME R
BHRIFEERERELNER - £ EZER
m%’ﬁgﬁ%fﬁﬁ/ﬂﬁ”&ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁm
SR R ARB R R EPIES] - URAHEE MR
Zigf - B FERER TWW%%%W& EER
BR - BRNMEBRMEESMRANSTRERN
BEMERAERHNE A NEENE - URFHE
MR BT o

ARBERERESNERRERR EMEE 1
RAZBRMNEZE LIRHEERE -

eI

=37

ARBERR  ZEGAVBRRERBETEY

BHREENEEMRAFHRRATREEAR_-Z

ENF+ A=+ RZUBRRAREBRREZX
BIEFEZENERERE @ YERREE(R
AHEDD Z BimE

BORBKEETMERA
BBHEETEN

HE —T-—TF=-HA=1+mWMAH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2010
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MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch

i 3t Address

E5E Tel

£ 5 Fax

RHFBITARDA
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

EREDT
Hong Kong Island Branches

BERBFAT
Aberdeen
SEBEFROLDIT
Admiralty Centre

38 7 1T

Causeway Bay
FESIT

Central

BaE ST
Fortress Hill
ETHEDT
Gloucester Road

S it 21T
Happy Valley

BREWH 1T
Heng Fa Chuen

HETHESHIT
Johnston Road
tBD1T

North Point

il U 2 1T
Quarry Bay
LEEDT

Shaukiwan

AEE S 1T
Shek Tong Tsui

RO
Sheung Wan

BB I ET205%

20 Wu Pak Street, Aberdeen
SEBERB18EE R OEE —E1058 4

Shop no. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre,
18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty

9B BT fE 5B 4825%

482 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay

EEHER19IRIRAE

Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central

3 278268-2705% JEFI A Ei T

G/F., Sunny House, 268-270 King's Road

HLITE108k AF S B O T

G/F., Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road

055 30 81 55 471355k & B R E b T A5

Shop A, G/F., Kam Yuk Mansion, No.13 Yuk Sau Street, Happy Valley

S AR TR AT 10058 A5 16 BF A5 18 F I b T~ G595

Unit G59, G/F., Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall,

100 Shing Tai Road, Chaiwan

BT T B 1645

164 Johnston Road, Wanchai
SiE433- 43T KKK E

Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King's Road

) f20F I 2 38 96357 1 N A4S A

Flat A4, G/F., 963 King's Road, Quarry Bay

B EIEST-87I AN L IE T G8IL 4
Shop no. G8, G/F., Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road

£ A A B 7H443-45357 1 T 15-165% 48
Shop nos. 15-16, G/F., 443-453 Queen's Road West

FIREHIE T 2885 F M E A E M B2k E1/F BE
G/F & 1/F., No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan

2554 5463

3110 1886

2891 2201

2521 8134

2922 3389

2507 8866

2572 0708

2558 7485

2572 8849

2561 8241

2884 4802

2568 5271

2857 7473

2851 6281

2554 0843

3110 2818

2591 6037

2526 9427

2887 7604

2507 8654

2572 0718

2889 2520

2891 3743

2811 4474

2884 3151

2567 5904

2108 4539

2581 2216

248 IPNEEiEEES

EEERLAT —ZSENFFR
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MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch

i 3t Address

E5E Tel

£ 5 Fax

RHFBITARDA
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

hEES T
Kowloon Branches

EOEDT
Hankow Road
BREDT

Hoi Yuen Road

AR B
Hunghom

ERD AT

Jordan

BEIT
Kwun Tong
EEHWHIT

Mei Foo Sun Chuen

HAST
Mongkok
EE DT
San Po Kong
WK 51T
Sham Shui Po
EREES T
Telford Gardens
TNED1T
Tokwawan
BERDT

Tseung Kwan O

4 E R
HEE PO DT
Tseung Kwan O
(Metro City Plaza)
RPBHF
Tsimshatsui
SRR 24T
Yaumatei

RIDIRE O B TS5 FT & R = b T ESR A6

Shop E, G/F, Sands Building, 17 Hankow Road, Tsimshatsui
BERIRB625 KSR RE S — B T A4

Portion 2 of Factory A, G/F, Block 1, Camelpaint Buildings,
62 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong

AL AR AT 4-65% 1240 B b TS AR

Shop no. A, G/F., Tak Yue Mansion, 4-6 Dock Street, Hunghom

S 38 33555%

335 Nathan Road, Jordan

I EGATH N R —1E

G/F. & 1/F., 49 Mut Wah Street, Kwun Tong
EFZHUE FEES1ENIST CH

Portion C of Shop no. N95, 1/F, Mount Sterling Mall,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen

BT A B FE 69755
697 Nathan Road, Mongkok

e

1 5F R R AL 1055%

10 Choi Hung Road, San Po Kong

IR TR T 12457 10 T

G/F., 124 Fuk Wing Street, Shamshuipo
NEEIB1R TR R 15 — Bl 12 F5A-F6ASR

Units F5A-F6BA, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay
+ & E237TAR = 2 K&

|I-Feng Mansion, 237A Tokwawan Road

B EREREISRE &I T G31-325% & i
Shop nos. G31-32, G/F., The Edge,

9 Tong Chun Street, Tseung Kwan O

15 BB BRI R 0 BB = HA — 121275k
Shop no. 127, Level 1, Metro City Plaza lll, Tseung Kwan O

LRIV IE B IE66-705% & A E
Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui

e i Hh 52X 28 5611 5%
561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei

2992 0963

2191 8103

2365 8110

2385 0161

2389 6219

2370 2660

2394 4261

2326 5165

2361 0951

2927 4130

2365 9035

2752 1223

2927 2101

2366 9121

2782 1339

2992 0931

2191 8723

2363 5917

2782 0993

2341 4638

2370 2006

2391 9104

2350 0894

2958 0985

2755 4967

2363 5696

2752 1098

2702 2305

2311 1491

2385 9285
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MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch

i 3t Address

E5E Tel

£ 5 Fax

RHBITHRDF

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

HREDTT
New Territories Branches

BE DT

Kwai Fong

BRLESST
Ma On Shan Plaza

BREDT
Maritime Square
sy sbakn
Ocean Walk
WEEDT

Sha Tsui Road
PDHEDT

Shatin

EXxa1T
Sheung Shui

REDT

Tai Po

RE 51T

Tai Wai
RKBEEDT
Tin Shui Wai Chung Fu
EBH1T

Tsuen Wan
REDT

Tung Chung

EHRHWPHT

Wah Ming Estate
AT

Yuen Long

ZORF 5 EE T A CREH T

Block C, G/F., Podium Level, New Kwai Fong Gardens,

Kwai Chung

W B S #2110 78 B 60857 55 #2 1L 15 — 18287-2885% 4

Shop nos. 287-288, Level 2, Ma On Shan Plaza,

608 Sai Sha Road, Ma On Shan, Shatin

B KB W 3355 &5 735108 D-E5L 4

Shop nos. 108D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi
7 P98 22 75 168-2365% /& #: 117 93-955% 4

Shop nos. 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun
ZE0 IH B 2885k M

G/F., No. 288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan

Y B ATE HR 0 T 95 4

Shop no. 9, G/F., Lucky Plaza, Shatin

kR 8 % 55-595% JK BRiE T BYE 4

Shop no. B, G/F., Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue,
Sheung Shui

R 20 ZE R K H B AR 012D 5% 4
Shop no. 012D, Tai Po Mega Mall, On Chee Road, Tai Po

ANEKEE S L& T 555% 7

Shop no. 5, G/F., Kam Shan Building, Tai Wai Road, Tai Wai

RKE R E RS — H1325%

Shop no. 132, Chung Fu Shopping Centre Stage 2, Tin Shui Wai
SR A E14-1658 5 % K E

Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan

B | 1) BRF8 BE PR 1 5% SRR B b T 235K 4

Shop 283, G/F., Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street,

Tung Chung, Lantau Island

) 28 22 B 9P 2E AR 75 35, 201 57 4

Shop no. 201, Wah Ming Shopping Centre, Wah Ming Estate, Fanling

TLRAR E 5B R & 12

Tung Cheong Mansion, 59B On Ning Road, Yuen Long

2487 8033

2929 4137

2435 1368

2404 6931

26151510

2606 3533

2671 5030

2667 2588

2691 1272

2448 9008

2492 8102

2109 3484

2677 8830

2479 0167

2489 1253

2633 3432

2435 1582

2404 7130

2615 1099

2601 2413

2672 1533

2664 3637

2606 1531

2448 9112

2415 0984

2109 4353

2669 9950

2474 8498

FINBAT

Shenzhen Branch

=D 17
Shenzhen

BRI E A R AR+ L AE1504BE
Unit 1504B, Shenzhen Development Center Building,
Renmin Nan Road, Shenzhen, China

(86-755)
2519 9033

(86-755)
8205 0399

PN KT RITEBAR A F

STEAEER



£ RAT - AT R

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

4 1T Branch i 3t Address E&E Tel & HE Fax

EBEDTT
Hong Kong Island Branches
FRS1T IR E P 195 IRER K E A5 48
Central A2 Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Rd, Central 2921 2485 2840 1737
HERERT BB ETEE 38 375-3795% I 5L 7 2 K= Hh N ESR 4
Hennessy Road Shop E, G/F, Lee West Commercial Building, 2591 0353 2147 0823
375-379 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai
EEREPDT ERANEF 85
Queen's Road G/F, No. 85 Queen's Road Central 2537 3844 2537 2669
Central
hEEBDT
Kowloon Branches
HEADT NEBEABIREFENEH TERM
Mongkok Shop E, G/F,Carprio Mansion, 1 Lai Chi Kok Road 2928 6705 2374 5557
HRED1T
New Territories Branch
BT HFTMESE e Eitb T 1657
Tuen Mun UG Shop 16, Tuen Mun Town Plaza Phase 2, Tuen Mun 2450 2818 2450 5566
4 1T Branch 3k Address B Tel
1T RYITH RS R B 504750 R Y B R R1T K E161EB-F - KE T
Head Office Unit B-F & K, 16/F, Shenzhen Development Bank Building, (86-755) 2519 9033
5047 Shennan Dong Road, Shenzhen
YRR 1T FYTEYEE LR 201455 IRERNEAR & E S5 BEAL
Shenzhen Zhenye G/F, Block A, Zhenye Building, 2014 Baoan Nan Road, Shenzhen (86-755) 2502 6935
Sub-Branch
/a7 EEmEZIL 865 1/EB
Shanghai Room B, 1/F, 86 North Cao Xi Road, Shanghai (86-21) 2411 3388
MEZS1T mamaILK13655E1-28
Nanchang 1/F & 2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, Nanchang (86-791) 6887 333
EIAT VL &R A )L T AR AR BE 5955
Zhenjiang 59 Jiefang Road, Zhenjiang (86-511) 8530 9999

_ DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009 tH
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MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch 3k Address E5E Tel

BEBXBITHERAA

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

R 21T

Macau Branches

Mg & K S BE 57255k

Main Branch Avenida da Praia Grande, No. 572 (853) 8791 0000

RERT 5 L ) 12 B K5 B5 4357 B

Almirante Lacerda Avenida Almirante Lacerda, No. 43-B (853) 2831 6191

BAOBRDIT BWIRE 5838 K5 1K30-30E5%

Areia Preta Estrada Marginal do Hip6dromo, Nos. 30-30E (853) 2837 8262

FeETEST JRP S 12 K5 B553-595% i T iR ¥ 8T A,B, D4

New Horta e Costa Avenida Horta e Costa, Nos. 53-59, R/C, (853) 2821 6523/
Edf. Grand Oceania, Lojas A,B,D. (853) 2837 1669

BEST RGBT IKEENE13 B N A

Kin Wa Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, S/N, (853) 2845 0759
Edif. Kin Wa, Bloco 13, R/C, Loja “A”

it R 217 B i K E740-4255 At T

Mercadores Rua dos Mercadores, Nos. 40-42, R/C A (853) 2857 2610

W R 7 4 & 45315-3635% & 2% FI| 1 O iy T~ O

Nape Alameda Dr. Carlos D' Assumpc¢éo, Nos. 315-363, (853) 2872 2515
Edificio “Hot Line”, R/C, Loja “O”

BEE ST & E I 4-65%

Palha Rua da Palha, Nos. 4-6 (853) 2837 3762

AT 02T A4T M 2957

Ponte e Horta Praca Ponte e Horta, No. 29 (853) 2837 8704

DRBERIT B RITR & 874025

Ribeira do Patane Rua do Visconde Pago d’Arcos, No. 402, R/C (853) 2895 2942

T2 REH ST T ZAF RS EK695FA

Sidonio Pais Avenida Sidonio Pais, No. 69-A (853) 2857 3637

BlST BILER D E - —EHmm I E F 18 “CC

Toi San Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N, (853) 2823 8483

Jardim Cidade Nova Bloco 18, R/C Loja “CC”

&FDIT

Taipa Branches

RKFREBDIT
Prince Flower City
BRI

Tak Fok

BHFRENERFIEN — BRI

Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai Sau Kok, R/C |, Taipa

BIFERABRERESICEFHE

Avenida de Kwong Tung, S/N, Edificio Tak Fok Seaview Garden,

Loja “F”

(853) 2884 2788

(853) 2882 1308

BERAT

Coloane Branch

BIRDIT
Coloane

B35 R 95D
Largo do Matadouro, No. 9-D

(853) 2888 2374

Pl KEFRITEBERLAT —ZETENFETR







